
 

 

Jeff Ussery, Mayor 
Brandon Self, Ward I 

Garry Wilson, Ward II 
John Jones, Ward III 

Charlie Brashers, Ward IV 

Eric Franklin, Ward I 
Gerry Pool, Ward II 

Matt Russell, Ward III 
Jim Deichman, Ward IV 

 
 

AGENDA 
City Council Meeting 

Republic Community Center-Community Room  
711 E. Miller 

June 16, 2020 at 6:30 PM 

Call Meeting to Order 

Opening Prayer 

Pledge of Allegiance to the United States Flag 

Proclamations 

Citizen Participation 

Consent Agenda 

1. Approve June 2, 2020 City Council Regular Session Minutes.  

2. Approve Vendor List. 

3. Approve Utility Billing Adjustments. 

Board, Commission, and Committee Schedule 
June 4, 2020        Board of Adjustment Meeting 
June 8, 2020        Planning & Zoning Meeting 
June 16, 2020        City Council Meeting 
July 21, 2020        City Council Meeting 

Old Business and Tabled Items 

4. 20-24 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Amending the Municipal 
Code of the City of Republic, Missouri, by Amending Title I, “Government Code,” Chapter 130, 
“Municipal Court,” Article I, “General Provisions,” Regarding the Term of Office for Municipal 
Judges. 

Other Business (Resolutions) 

5. 20-R-18 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Declaring the Results 
of the June 2, 2020 Municipal Election. 

Recognition of Council Members 

Swearing-in of Elected Officials 

Election of Mayor Pro-Tem 

New Business (First Reading of Ordinances) 

6. 20-25 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Approving Amending 
the Zoning Code and Official Map by Changing the Classification of Approximately 0.47 Acres, 
Located at 127 East Mill, from Medium Density Single-Family Residential (R1-M) to Two-Family 
Residential (R-2). 

7. 20-26 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Approving Amending 
the Zoning Code and Official Map by Changing the Classification of Approximately 0.47 Acres, 
Located at 616 North Phelps Avenue, from Medium Density Single-Family Residential (R1-M) to 
High Density Single-Family Residential (R1-H). 

1



 

 

Other Business (Resolutions) 

8. 20-R-19 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Awarding the Bid for 

the Fencing and Kennel Construction at the Republic Animal Control Facility. 

9. 20-R-20 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Awarding the Bid for 

the Observation Cages Construction at the Republic Animal Control Facility. 

10. 20-R-21 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Awarding the Bid for 

the Purchase of Network Switching Hardware. 

11. 20-R-22 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Approving the Audit 

Report for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2019. 

Finance Report 

Reports from Staff 

Executive Session:  No further action, other than announcing adjournment by the Mayor, shall take 
place after an Executive Session that is scheduled as the last matter on the Agenda unless otherwise 
stated on the Agenda or as allowed per RSMo. 610.02. 

RSMo 610.021.1 Pending and/or potential litigation. Closed session. Closed vote. Closed record. 

RSMo 610.021.2 Real estate acquisition. Closed session. Closed vote. Closed record. 

RSMo 610.021.3 Hiring, firing, promotion, or disciplining personnel. Closed session. Closed vote. 
Closed record. 

Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Individuals addressing the Council are asked to step to the microphone and clearly state their name and 

address before speaking. In accordance with ADA guidelines, if you need special accommodations to 
attend any city meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s Office at 732-3140 at least three days prior to the 

scheduled meeting. All meetings are tape recorded for public viewing. 

2



 

1 | P a g e  
C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  M a y  1 9 ,  2 0 2 0  

Jeff Ussery, Mayor 
Brandon Self, Ward I 

Garry Wilson, Ward II 
John Jones, Ward III 

Charlie Brashers, Ward IV 

Eric Franklin, Ward I 
Gerry Pool, Ward II 

Matt Russell, Ward III 
Jim Deichman, Ward IV 

 
 

MINUTES 
City Council Meeting 

Republic Community Center Gymnasium  
711 E. Miller 

June 02, 2020 at 6:30 PM 

Call Meeting to Order 

The regular session meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Greene County, Missouri, was 
called to order by Mayor Jeff Ussery at 6:33 p.m. at the Republic Community Center. Council Members 
in attendance were: Eric Franklin, Jim Deichman, Garry Wilson, Brandon Self, John Jones, Matt Russell, 
Charlie Brashers, and Gerry Pool. Others in attendance were: City Administrator David Cameron, 
Assistant City Administrator Jared Keeling, Assistant City Administrator Lisa Addington, Police Chief Brian 
Sells, City Attorney Scott Ison, Assistant Public Works Director Garrett Brickner, Public Information 
Officer Mike Landis, Principal Planner Karen Haynes, and City Clerk Laura Burbridge. 

Opening Prayer 

Opening prayer was led by City Administrator David Cameron. 

Pledge of Allegiance to the United States Flag 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Jeff Ussery. 

Proclamations 

Mayor Jeff Ussery read the proclamation for Republic Employee Appreciation Week.  

Republic City Employee Appreciation Week 

Citizen Participation 

Mayor Ussery opened Citizen Participation at 6:36 p.m. No one came forward so Mayor Ussery closed 
Citizen Participation at 6:36 p.m. 

Consent Agenda 

Motion was made by Council Member Russell and seconded by Council Member Pool to approve the 
consent agenda. The vote was 8 Aye-Deichman, Russell, Pool, Franklin, Self, Wilson, Jones and Brashers. 
0 Nay. Motion Carried. 

May 18, 2020 Administrative Work Session Minutes-Water and Wastewater Master Plans 

May 19, 2020 Administrative Work Session Minutes-Agenda Software Training 

May 19, 2020 City Council Regular Session Minutes 

Board, Commission, and Committee Schedule 
June 4, 2020        Board of Adjustment Meeting 
June 8, 2020        Planning & Zoning Meeting 
June 16, 2020     City Council Meeting 
July 21, 2020       City Council Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 

3

Item 1.



 

 2 | P a g e  
C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  M a y  1 9 ,  2 0 2 0  

Old Business and Tabled Items 

20-21 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Approving Amending 

the Zoning Code and Official Map by Changing the Classification of Approximately 23.5 Acres, 

Located at the 7500 Block of West Farm Road 174, from Agricultural (Ag) to High Density 

Single-Family Residential (R1-H). 

Motion was made by Council Member Jones and seconded by Council Member Wilson to have 
the second reading of Bill 20-21 by title only.  The vote was 8 Aye-Franklin, Pool, Russell, 
Deichman, Brashers, Jones, Wilson, and Self.  0 Nay.  Motion Carried.  Karen Haynes was 
available to answer any questions from Council.  Council Member Pool motioned for the passage 
of Bill 20-21.  Council Member Franklin seconded.  A roll call vote was taken.  The vote was 8 
Aye-Franklin, Pool, Brashers, Wilson, Deichman, Jones, Russell, and Self. 0 Nay.  Motion Carried. 

 20-22 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Vacating a Water Line 
Easement on Lot 1 of the Old Stone PDD. 

Motion was made by Council Member Deichman and seconded by Council Member Brashers to 
have the second reading of Bill 20-22 by title only.  The vote was 8 Aye-Franklin, Pool, Russell, 
Deichman, Brashers, Jones, Wilson, and Self.  0 Nay.  Motion Carried.  Karen Haynes was 
available to answer any questions from Council.  Council Member Pool motioned for the passage 
of Bill 20-22.  Council Member Deichman seconded.  A roll call vote was taken.  The vote was 8 
Aye-Brashers, Pool, Self, Jones, Deichman, Wilson, Franklin, and Russell. 0 Nay.  Motion Carried.   

 20-23 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Authorizing the City 
Administrator to Enter into an Infrastructure Development Agreement with Turner Residential 
Holding, LLC for Infrastructure for Phase 1 of the A’vila Residential Subdivision. 

Motion was made by Council Member Wilson and seconded by Council Member Pool to have 
the second reading of Bill 20-22 by title only.  The vote was 8 Aye-Franklin, Pool, Russell, 
Deichman, Brashers, Jones, Wilson, and Self.  0 Nay.  Motion Carried.  Karen Haynes was 
available to answer any questions from Council.  Council Member Franklin motioned for the 
passage of Bill 20-22.  Council Member Brashers seconded.  A roll call vote was taken.  The vote 
was 8 Aye-Brashers, Franklin, Wilson, Self, Russell, Jones, Pool, and Deichman. 0 Nay.  Motion 
Carried.  

New Business (First Reading of Ordinances) 

 20-24 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Amending the 
Municipal Code of the City of Republic, Missouri, by Amending Title I, “Government Code,” 
Chapter 130, “Municipal Court,” Article I, “General Provisions,” Regarding the Term of Office for 
Municipal Judges. 

Council Member Russell motioned for the first reading of Bill 20-24 by title only. 
Council Member Franklin seconded. The vote was 8 Aye-Self, Franklin, Pool, Wilson, Deichman, 
Russell, Brashers, and Jones. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. Scott Ison provided an overview of the bill. 
Mayor Ussery reminded Council that this was a first read and to get with Mr. Ison with any 
questions prior to the next meeting. 

 

 

 

4

Item 1.



 

 3 | P a g e  
C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  M a y  1 9 ,  2 0 2 0  

Other Business (Resolutions) 

 20-R-16 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Authorizing the City 

Administrator to Enter Into an Agreement with Midwest Public Risk for Property and Liability 

Insurance for Fiscal Year 2020-2021. 

Motion was made by Council Member Pool and seconded by Council Member Wilson to 
approve Resolution 20-R-16.  Scott Ison provided an overview of the Resolution.  The vote was 8 
Aye-Self, Franklin, Pool, Wilson, Deichman, Russell, Brashers, and Jones.  0 Nay.  Motion Carried. 

 20-R-17 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Authorizing a Special 

Fireworks Display Permit to South Creek Church. 

Motion was made by Council Member Wilson and Seconded by Council Member Pool to 
approve Resolution 20-R-17.  Duane Compton provided an overview of the Resolution.  The vote 
was 8 Aye-Self, Franklin, Pool, Wilson, Deichman, Russell, Brashers, and Jones.  0 Nay.  Motion 
Carried. 
 

Reports from Staff 

City Administrator David Cameron thanked the Parks and Recreation staff for putting this meeting 
together for us.  It was essential to get everyone together while still following the orders.  Mr. Cameron 
shared it is great to see everyone out and about.   

City Administrator David Cameron shared that Debbie lost her father last week.  He was a missionary 
and died suddenly of a massive heart attack.  Mr. Cameron asked that everyone put her in their 
thoughts and prayers.  She has had to cover a lot due to the loss of a position and was working 
today.  Her sister is a missionary and she had to communicate the loss through Messenger.  Mr. 
Cameron shared we love and value Debbie.  Mr. Cameron shared the finance report will be next meeting 
due to this. 

City Administrator David Cameron reported a number of complaints about internet speed in the 
community.  While it is partly because so many people have been using more internet while working 
from home, we do have an ongoing issue in this community with service and that is something we 
continue to work on and engage in discussions.  We will do our best to facilitate this, but those issues 
are up to the providers in a competitive market to resolve.  We hope for updates from those providers 
on what they are doing.  Mr. Cameron shared we will put out some feelers to see what the community 
feels and needs and will approach the providers to see if we can get someone to partner with us.  Our 
franchise agreement with Cable America should be renewed every 10 years and is up for renewal so 
there is some room to discuss infrastructure with them during this franchise agreement. 

City Administrator David Cameron shared while people are losing their jobs, there is still favor on the 
community because there has not been any slow down on development and has possibly been an 
increase.  Mr. Cameron thanked staff, Council, and the Planning and Zoning Commission for their 
work.  We hope to announce one of those projects that will be good for the community and another one 
that was discussed today.  Mr. Cameron shared it speaks a lot to Council, staff, and the community and 
we are led by conviction. 

City Administrator David Cameron shared this is his last meeting before taking some time away.  This is 
his last meeting with Charlie and John.  Mr. Cameron thanked them both for their leadership and not 
being yes people.  They can debate and have a great disagreement while still working together.  We 
have worked through a lot of challenges such as the noise issue, and we appreciate their leadership and 
allowance for us to do our job.  The risk taken particularly on the Garton Business Park was great and 

5

Item 1.



 

 4 | P a g e  
C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  M a y  1 9 ,  2 0 2 0  

they were two of the founders of that.  Mr. Cameron shared he appreciates the legacy they leave and 
their fingerprints are on it.  We will miss Charlie and John and they are still welcome to call. Mr. 
Cameron shared it is very easy to stay committed in this job with this Council's support.  Mr.  Cameron 
thanked them for their service to the community and wished them both the best.   

Mayor Jeff Ussery spoke about the City Employee Appreciation and shared this is a calling.  Today is an 
Election Day.  Mayor Ussery shared he wished he had an opponent and hates to see the position 
unopposed.  Mayor Ussery shared 200 dollars a month isn't a lot, but we have a conviction about it 
because we take the time to serve the citizens.  Mayor Ussery shared Mr. Russell is successful outside 
this role and he called him when appointing his seat asking if he would be willing to serve.  Mr. Self was 
also an appointment and has been on several years because he wants to see Republic better.  Everyone 
has been very involved, and Garry has served 20 plus years.  There is something to all that 
service.  Mayor Ussery shared it is important to recognize Council in the employee appreciation as 
well.  That 200 dollars doesn't cover it when something like COVID-19 comes along. 

Council Member Franklin shared he agreed with Mayor Ussery about the uncontested election.  Mr. 
Franklin shared while driving through Republic, you would not know there is an uncontested election 
and there is a lot of interest around here.  Mr. Franklin thanked Mayor Ussery for the kind words and all 
the city employees for everything they do.  Mr. Franklin thanked the County Clerk for making it possible 
to vote today and shared he felt safe when voting.  Mr. Franklin shared he is thankful to the first 
responders including the Police and Fire and our prayers are with them.   
 

Adjournment 

Mayor Ussery adjourned the meeting at 7:10 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________           ____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk                                                Jeff Ussery, Mayor 
 

 

6

Item 1.



Vendor No. & Name Added Added User

06924 - Terracon Consultants, Inc. 05/01/2020 Rachel Reich-Graef

06947 - Del Fire Store 05/13/2020 Rachel Reich-Graef

06948 - ISA Corp. 05/13/2020 Rachel Reich-Graef

06949 - Encompass Supply Chain Solutions 05/13/2020 Rachel Reich-Graef

06950 - Nautilus, Inc. 05/13/2020 Rachel Reich-Graef

06951 - Hy-Vee, Inc. 05/13/2020 Rachel Reich-Graef

06952 - Formed Plastics, Inc. 05/13/2020 Rachel Reich-Graef

06953 - TracFone Wireless, Inc. 05/13/2020 Rachel Reich-Graef

06954 - Advance Corp. 05/13/2020 Rachel Reich-Graef

06955 - Anthem Sports 05/13/2020 Rachel Reich-Graef

06956 - Industrialautomationparts.com 05/14/2020 Rachel Reich-Graef

06959 - Dept. of Health & Human Services 05/16/2020 Rachel Reich-Graef

06961 - JLH Legacy Properties 5, LLC 05/21/2020 Rachel Reich-Graef

07020 - AmeriGas - 7603 05/27/2020 Rachel Reich-Graef

Vendor Audit Report
For the City of Republic

Date Range:  05/01/2020 - 05/31/2020

7

Item 2.



Date Customer Overread/Leak Leak In Water Gallons Adjusted Amount Adjusted Sewer Gallons Adjusted Amount Adjusted
4/3/2020 Christina Pollpeter Leak Toilet 7,384                                                 26.29                              7,384                                                69.92                              

4/3/2020 Hurricane Car Wash Leak Service Line 92,550                                              329.48                            185,100                                            1,752.90                         

4/3/2020 Jay & Angela Baker Leak Toilet 2075 7.39                                2075 19.65                              

4/3/2020 Patti Sanderson Leak Toilet 880 3.13                                880 8.33                                

4/3/2020 Robert Ferreira Mildew cleanup 0 -                                  21377 202.44                            

4/3/2020 Sandra Saenz Leak Toilet 1763.5 6.28                                1763.5 16.70                              

4/3/2020 Nicholas Foster Leak Toilet 1150 4.09                                1150 10.89                              

4/3/2020 Ronald & Joan Bradshaw Leak Service Line 18183.5 64.73                              36367 344.40                            

4/3/2020 McCormack Auto Repair Leak Service Line 9520 33.89                              19040 180.31                            

4/22/2020 Jordon & Conni Addotta Leak Sprinkler system -                                                     0.00 11,900                                              $112.69

4/22/2020 Kimberly Nicely Leak Outside Faucet 4,675                                                 16.64 9,350                                                $88.54

4/22/2020 William Greeson Leak Toilet 1,450                                                 5.16 1,450                                                $13.73

4/22/2020 Stanley Sides Leak Outside Faucet 1,284                                                 4.57 2,567                                                $24.31

4/22/2020 Stanley Ricks Leak Service Line 9,595                                                 34.16 19,190                                              $181.73

4/22/2020 Marilyn Burleson Leak Hot Water Heater 1,434                                                 5.10 2,867                                                $27.15

4/24/2020 Carrie Roat Overread 4,300                                                 15.31 -                                                    

8

Item 3.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 
20-24 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
Amending the Municipal Code of the City of Republic, Missouri, by 
Amending Title I, “Government Code,” Chapter 130, “Municipal Court,” 
Article I, “General Provisions,” Regarding the Term of Office for 
Municipal Judges 

Submitted By: Scott Ison, City Attorney 

Date: June 2, 2020 
 

 

Issue Statement 

Consideration of an Ordinance amending Section 130.040 to reflect the changes in the City’s Charter and 

to change the time to appoint Municipal Judges. 

 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

On April 2, 2019, the voters of the City voted to amend the Charter of the City.  One of the amendments 

was to change the term of the Mayor and Council Members to four-year terms.  This proposed Ordinance 

changes the wording to clarify the two-year appointments will still occur every two-years in even-

numbered years when a newly elected Mayor or Council or both are sworn into office. 

This proposed Ordinance also changes the time for the Mayor to appoint Municipal Judges and for Council 

to provide their advice and consent.    Under the current Ordinance, the Mayor had to appoint Municipal 

Judges at the first meeting after the Mayor was sworn into office.  This proposed Ordinance allows the 

Mayor up to 90 calendar days after they are sworn into office before they must appoint Municipal Judges. 

 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

9

Item 4.



BILL NO. 20-24 ORDINANCE NO. 20-

BILL NO.  20-24 Page 1 of 2  ORDINANCE NO. 20-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, BY 

AMENDING TITLE I, “GOVERNMENT CODE,” CHAPTER 130, “MUNICIPAL COURT,” 
ARTICLE I, “GENERAL PROVISIONS,” REGARDING THE TERM OF OFFICE FOR 

MUNICIPAL JUDGES 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (herein called the "City" or “Republic”) is a 
municipal corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

WHEREAS, On April 2, 2019, the voters of the City voted to amend the Charter of the 
City; and  

WHEREAS, the amendments to the Charter included changing the term of the Mayor and 
Council and the timing of elections in the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Council deems it necessary to amend Chapter 130 to reflect the Charter 
changes as voted on and adopted by the Citizens and to provide greater time a newly elected 
Mayor has to appoint and Council to provide advice and consent of Municipal Judges.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
REPUBLIC AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Title I, “Government Code,” Chapter 130, “Municipal Court,” Article I, 
“General Provisions,” is hereby amended by amending Section 130.040, “Term 
of Office,” to read as follows:   

Section 130.040 Term of Office. 

The Municipal Judge or Judges shall be appointed for two-year terms within 90 calendar days at 
the first meeting after the newly elected Mayor and or Council or both are sworn into office in 
even-numbered years and in each even-numbered year thereafter. The term of the Municipal 
Judge shall be two (2) years or until a successor is appointed, and if the appointment was made 
for less than two (2) years then until the unexpired portion of the two-year term is completed. If 
for any reason the Municipal Judge vacates his/her office during his/her term, a successor shall 
be selected to complete the term of office. The selection shall be made in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 130.030 of this Chapter. 

EXPLANATION —Matter in bold-face type in the above is added language.  Matter in 
strikethrough in the above is deleted. 

Section 2. All other Sections of the Municipal Code of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
not specifically referenced in this Ordinance shall remain unmodified and 
in full force and effect. 

Section 3. The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by 
reference. 

10

Item 4.



BILL NO. 20-24 ORDINANCE NO. 20-

BILL NO.  20-24 Page 2 of 2  ORDINANCE NO. 20-

Section 4. The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any provision hereof 
is declared invalid, unconstitutional or unenforceable, such determination 
shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance. 

Section 5. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage 
as provided by law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Republic, Missouri, this _____________ day of ____________________ 2020. 

________________________________ 
Jeff Ussery, Mayor 

Attest: 

_________________________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: __________________________________________, Scott Ison, City Attorney 

Final Passage and Vote: _______________________________________________________________ 

11

Item 4.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 20-R-22 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, Declaring the Results of the June 2, 2020 Municipal Election. 

Submitted By: Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

Date: June 16, 2020 
 

 

Issue Statement 

To declare the results of the municipal election held on June 2, 2020. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

On April 2, 2019, citizens of Republic were asked to vote for Mayor and four Council seats. Attached are 

copies of the certified election results from Greene and Christian County Clerks. 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

12

Item 5.



RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-

RESOLUTION NO. 20-R- 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 

DECLARING THE RESULTS OF THE JUNE 2, 2020, MUNICIPAL ELECTION 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, ("City" or “Republic”) is a municipal 
corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, 
and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the official return of the April 7, 2020 held on June 2, 2020, municipal election 
has been certified to the Republic City Council by the Greene County Clerk and Christian County 
Clerk and it is desired to declare the results of said election.   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The election, heretofore referred to, has been found to have been held in all 
respects as required by the Constitution and Laws of the State of Missouri, and 
the Charter and Ordinances of the City of Republic, Missouri, all duly qualified 
electors of the City of Republic, and no others were permitted to vote, and that 
the results of said election are found and declared to be as follows: 

 
Mayor 
For A Four-Year Term – Vote for One   
Jeff Ussery – Number of Votes - 427 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER – WARD 1 
For A Four-Year Term – Vote for One   
Eric Franklin – Number of Votes - 84 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER – WARD 2 
For A Four-Year Term – Vote for One   
Garry E. Wilson – Number of Votes - 84
 
COUNCIL MEMBER – WARD 3 
For A Four-Year Term – Vote for One   
Christopher Updike – Number of Votes - 122 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER – WARD 4 
For A Four-Year Term – Vote for One   
Jennifer Lynne Mitchell – Number of Votes - 122 

 
 

Section 2. Attached and incorporated hereto as Attachment A and Attachment B are the 
full, true, and correct copy of the election certifications cast at the June 2, 2020, 
election received from the Greene County Clerk’s Office and the Christian 
County Clerk’s Office and said certifications of election results are the final and 
last certifications of election results for said election, and that said certifications 
of election results constitute the official returns of the election pursuant to 
Section 115.507, Revised Statutes of Missouri. 

 

13

Item 5.



RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-

RESOLUTION NO. 20-R- 

Section 3. The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Section 4. This Resolution shall take effect after passage as provided by law. 

 
 PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Republic, Missouri, this 16th day of June 2020.
 

           
     Jeff Ussery, Mayor 

Attest: 
 

      
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk

Approved as to Form: ___________________________________, Scott Ison, City Attorney  

Final Passage and Vote:  ________________________________________________________  

14

Item 5.



Attachment B

15

Item 5.



16

Item 5.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 20-25 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, Approving Amending the Zoning Code and Official Map by 
Changing the Classification of Approximately 0.47 Acres, Located at 
127 East Mill, from Medium Density Single-Family Residential (R1-M) 
to Two-Family Residential (R-2). 

Submitted By: Community Development Department 

Date: June 16, 2020 
 

 

Issue Statement 

April and Bryan Swanson have applied to change the Zoning Classification of approximately point four-

seven (0.47) acres of property located at 127 East Mill from Medium Density Single-Family Residential 

(R1-M) to Two-Family Residential (R-2). 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The property subject to this Rezoning Application is comprised of approximately point four-seven (0.47) 

acres of land located at 127 East Mill.  The property is currently vacant, containing no residential or 

accessory structures; the Applicant has expressed interest in building a duplex on the parcel. 

The following paragraphs contain brief analyses of present site conditions as well as the proposal’s 

relationship to adopted plans of the City. 

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan 

The City’s Comprehensive Plan generally encourages the expansion of residential development through 

proactive rezoning of land at appropriate locations.  Appropriate locations are described generally 

throughout the Plan, with regard to the relationship of land at particular locations to infrastructure 

capable of supporting various intensities and densities of uses.   

The Plan more particularly describes appropriate future land uses through the depiction of a “Future 

Land Use Map” (FLUM).  In this case, the FLUM depicts the subject property as having a Main Street 

District FLUM designation.  The City’s Adopted 2005 Land Use Plan has identified the “Main Street 

District” Future Land Use Map designation as a Mixed-Use area described as, “Downtown Republic; mix 

of office, retail commercial, multi-family and loft residential.”  

The Main Street District was introduced in the Land Use Plan to accommodate future recommendations 

from a Main Street Development Plan aimed to guide development in the areas surrounding Main 

Street.  This plan’s goal was to create new regulations for new development and redevelopment by  

17

Item 6.



 

 

creating a new zoning district, Main Street District (MSD); although the Main Street District was codified 

as a new zoning district, the area identified in the FLUM does not contain any MSD zoning.   

The 2005 Land Use Plan identifies Land Use Goals and Objectives relating to residential development, 

as follows: 

 Goal:  Cost-effective Private Development Density.  Encourage higher density development that 
will reduce the amount of infrastructure and cost to the developer and reduce the maintenance 
costs by the City. 

 Objective:  Use the Land Use Plan to promote and guide the development of land at 
higher densities to reduce the amount of infrastructure constructed within the City. 

 Policies:   

 Plan for higher density development that will reduce the cost of maintenance of 
new infrastructure improvements, such as water, sanitary sewer, stormwater 
and roads. 

 Goal:  Encourage the development of Infill Housing 

 Objective:  Promote infill housing development 

 Policies:   

 Promote infill development as a means of maximizing existing infrastructure and 
encouraging reinvestment in existing neighborhoods 

 Goal:  Diversify the Republic Housing Market. 

 Objective:  Promote all types of residential development. 

 Goal:  Improve the quality of all types of housing in the City. 

 Objective:  Encourage the development of high-quality housing regardless of the size, 
type, and density of housing being constructed. 

The 2005 Land Use Plan identifies “Neighborhood Principles and Development Guidelines,” which 
“provide guidance for how a mixture of land uses can work together to create community.”   

 Principle:  Republic should be a full-service community for a diverse population consisting of 
neighborhoods designed for human interaction. 

 Guideline:  A range of housing types and sizes to accommodate household of all ages 
and sizes should be provided in each Republic neighborhood.  A mix of housing types 
within a neighborhood creates visual and economic variety as well as opportunities for a 
more diverse population. 

The general trend of development in the vicinity of the subject property, along East Mill and surrounding 
streets is that of a neighborhood of well-established, single-family dwellings.   

Compatibility with Surrounding Land Uses 

The subject property is surrounded by Medium Density Single-Family Residential (R1-M) Zoning to the 

north, south, east, and west.  The adjacent properties appear to be utilized as single-family residences, 

with the exception of the property located to the north at the corner of South Pine Avenue and East Elm 

Street, which appears to be utilized as a multi-family complex. 

The land uses permitted in the Two-Family Residential (R-2) Zoning District include single-family 

dwellings, zero lot line dwellings, duplexes/two-family dwellings, and residential accessory structures.  

18

Item 6.



 

 

Capacity To Serve Potential Development and Land Use 

Municipal Water and Sewer Service:  The parcel contained a single-family home until several years ago 

when the home was demolished; the home was served by City of Republic water and sanitary sewer 

service.  The site was previously served by a six (6) inch water main and eight (8) inch sanitary sewer 

main located along East Mill Street.  The sanitary sewer flows to the Shuyler Creek Lift Station and then 

through a force main to the Wastewater Treatment Facility; the Lift Station and Treatment Facility 

currently have capacity to serve the site.  The City’s water system currently has capacity to serve a 

potential duplex at this location. 

Transportation:  A Traffic Impact Study (TIS) was not required for the Rezoning Application due to the 

very low increase in traffic volumes for a single parcel, zoned for Two-Family Occupancy. 

Floodplain:  The subject parcel does not contain a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA/Floodplain). 

Sinkholes:  The subject parcel does not contain any identified sinkholes. 

Extent to which Proposed Amendment Creates Nonconformities 

Any existing single-family residential uses presently conducted on the subject property would be 

permitted to continue as is at the time of rezone until such time as the use is altered in a way that would 

remove that lawfully existing nonconforming status.  Types of alterations that would cause the removal 

of that status include redevelopment, expansion of the nonconforming use, substantial destruction of 

the nonconformity, etc. 

Recommended Action 

Staff considers the proposed Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning) to be generally consistent with the 

goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan, generally consistent with the trend of residential  

development in the vicinity of the site , generally compatible with surrounding land uses, and able to 

be adequately served by municipal facilities.  Based upon this analysis (performed without the benefit 

of evidence and testimony of a public hearing), Staff recommends the approval of this application. 

 

19

Item 6.



BILL NO. 20-25 ORDINANCE NO. 20-

BILL NO. 20-25  Page 1 of 2  ORDINANCE NO. 20-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
APPROVING AMENDING THE ZONING CODE AND OFFICIAL MAP BY CHANGING 

THE CLASSIFICATION OF APPROXIMATELY 0.47 ACRES, LOCATED AT 127 EAST 
MILL, FROM MEDIUM DENSITY SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (R1-M) TO TWO-

FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (R-2)

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (herein called the “City” or “Republic”) is a 
municipal corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, 
organized, and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

WHEREAS, an application for amendment to the Zoning Code and Official Zoning Map 
to rezone real estate located at 127 East Mill and comprising approximately 0.47 acres from 
Medium Density Single-Family Residential (R1-M) to Two-Family Residential (R-2), was 
submitted to the Community Development Department Staff by April and Bryan Swanson 
(hereinafter “Applicant”); and 

WHEREAS, the Community Development Staff did thereafter submit said application to 
the Planning and Zoning Commission which did set June 8, 2020, as the date a public hearing 
would be held on such application and proposed amendment; and 

WHEREAS, notice of the time and date of the public hearing was given by publication on 
May 20, 2020, in The Greene County Commonwealth, a newspaper of general circulation in the City, 
such notice being at least 15 days before the date set for the public hearing; and 

WHEREAS, the City gave notice of such public hearing to the record owners of all 
properties within the area proposed to be rezoned and within 185 feet of the property proposed 
to be rezoned; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was conducted by the Planning and Zoning Commission on 
June 8, 2020, after which the Commission rendered written findings of fact on the proposed 
amendment and rezoning and, thereafter, submitted the same, together with its 
recommendations, to the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission by a vote of 4 Ayes to 1 Nays, 
recommended the approval of such application for rezoning; and 

WHEREAS, the application for rezoning and to amend the Zoning Code and Official 
Zoning Map was submitted to the City Council at its regular meeting on June 16, 2020, after which 
the City Council did proceed to vote to rezone such property and amend the Zoning Code 
accordingly. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. That the Zoning Code and Official Zoning Map are hereby amended insofar 
as the same relates to a certain tract of realty located at 127 East Mill and 
comprising approximately 0.47 acres from Medium Density Single-Family 

20

Item 6.



BILL NO. 20-25 ORDINANCE NO. 20-

BILL NO. 20-25  Page 2 of 2  ORDINANCE NO. 20-

Residential (R1-M) to Two-Family Residential (R-2), such tract being more 
fully described as follows: 

All of the East Half (E1/2) of Lot Two (2),  SPARKMAN’S SECOND 
ADDITION, to the City of Republic, GREENE County, Missouri, according 
the recorded plat thereof.  

Section 2. In all other aspects other than those herein amended, modified, or changed, 
the Zoning Code and Official Zoning Map shall remain the same and 
continue in full force and effect. 

Section 3. The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 

Section 4. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 
provided by law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Republic, Missouri, this _____________________ day of ______________________ 2020. 

Jeff Ussery, Mayor 
Attest: 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: ___________________________________, Scott Ison, City Attorney 

Final Passage and Vote:  ________________________________________________________ 

21

Item 6.



22

Item 6.



23

Item 6.



24

Item 6.



Section 405.130. "R-2" Two-Family Residential District
Regulations. [CC 1999 §§26-104 — 26-108; Ord. No. 03-56 §1,
8-25-2003; Ord. No. 04-64 §1, 10-11-2004]

A. Purposes. The intent of the "R-2" Two-Family Residential District
is to permit and establish regulations for two-family residential
dwellings at a density of approximately 6.7 units per acre.
Internal stability, harmony, attractiveness, order and efficiency
are encouraged by providing for adequate light, air and open
space for dwellings and related facilities and by consideration of
the proper functional relationship and arrangement of the
different uses permitted in this district. This district is intended
for areas that have access for vehicular traffic from collector or
higher classification streets without crossing minor streets in
adjoining neighborhoods.

B. Uses Permitted.

1. Model homes in accordance with Section 410.190.

2. Single-family dwellings, the use of which shall comply with
the area requirements of the "R1-H" High Density Single-
Family Residential District regulations.

3. Zero lot line dwellings, the use of which shall comply with the
area regulations of the "R1-Z" district regulations.

4. Two (2) family dwelling.

5. Accessory buildings and structures. As required by Section
405.640 of this Chapter.

6. Group homes. The exterior appearance of the home and
property shall be in reasonable conformance with the general
neighborhood standards. No group home shall be located
within two thousand five hundred (2,500) feet of another
group home.

C. General Regulations. Property and buildings in the "R-2" District
shall be subject to the following regulations:

1. Street frontage. Each lot shall have a clear, direct frontage an
a dedicated City street.

2. Platting requirements. Each two-family dwelling shall be
located on its own individual platted lot. If areas for common
use of occupants of the development are shown on the plat,
satisfactory arrangements shall be made for the maintenance

:1

25

Item 6.



of the common open space and facilities, whether in the form
of a neighborhood association or public dedication.

3. Off-street parking. As required by Article VI of this Chapter.

4. Accessory buildings and structures. As required by Section
405.640 of this Chapter.

5. Trees. There shall be a requirement of one (1) tree for each
dwelling unit in order to enhance private space. The trees
shall be of a variety that provides shade and screening and
shall be at least six (6) feet in height at the time of planting.

D. Height And Area Regulations. The height and area regulations set
forth in Article V shall be observed.

Section
405.130

Section
405.130

:2

26

Item 6.



TO THE CITY COT-]NCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI:

Please take notice that the undersigned property owner(s) acknowledge that they are the owner(s) of
either of the areas of the land (exclusive of streets and alleys) included in such proposed change or
within an area determined by lines drawn parallel to and one hundred and eighty-five feet distant from
the boundaries of the district proposed to be changed and that said owner(s) do protest and object to said
proposed rezoning of Planning and Zoning Commission Case No. REZN 20-004, City Council Bill No..

(if applicable). This protest is given in contemplation of the provisions of City Code
and applicable laws. Petitions must be tiled with the City Clerk's Otllce located at 213 N Main St
Republic, Missouri, 65738. prior to the City Council's vote on the rezoning.

Printed Name of Owner: Owner(s) Address: Property Address
(if different):

Orvner(s) Signatu re(s)

.hn* m.0hriq t!+EElrn/L,, Ll;rfin -b*^"[fl, f/-,[*n
rt fO+tlateaE" te l.rl E /.i/*tnro,,b l,o1/1, trDt^,"-r"^*il-1",*() ) \-\

PLEASE NOTE:
l. All owners of record must sign the petition exactly as shown on the deed in order for their

property to be included in the required thirty percent.
2. Each property olvner must sign his or her name personally'. Spouses cannot sign for each

other.
3. A Notary Public must witness each signature.

THE NOTARY EXICTITING THIS PETITION MUST WITNESS ALL SIGNATURES

STATE OF MISSOURI

COUNTY OF GREENE

on this L{g auy of) | 7 O , befbre me personally appeared the above named
person(s), to me known to be the person or persons described in and who executed the foregoing instrument and
acknorvledged that she/she/they executed the same as their ltee act and deed.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF. I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official sealon the day and
year first above rvritten.

(Seal)

Signature of Notary' Public

My Commission Expires:

)
)
)

SS

( ,20

20,2023

Page 2 of2 l-rpdatcd I l/9/llt

27

Item 6.



Cify of Republic
Rezoning Protest Petitions General Information

Pursuant to 89.060 RSMo.- and Republic Municipal Code Section 405.980(4)(l), Such regulations.
restrictions. and boundaries may trom time to time be amended. supplemented. changed, modified or
repealed. In case, however, of a protest against such change duly signed and acknowledged by the
owners of thirty percent or more, either of the areas of the land (exclusive of streets and alleys) included
in such proposed change or within an area determined by lines draw'n parallel to and one hundred and
eight-v-five feet distant from the boundaries of the district proposed to be changed. such amendment
shall not become effective except by the favorable vote of two-thirds of all the members of the
legislative body of such municipality. The provisions of section 89.050 relative to public hearing and
official notice shall apply equally to all changes or amendments.

Anyone may attend the public hearing to be held by the Planning arrO Zorirg Commission or at the first
reading of the rezoning ordinance by the City Council to hear information, ask questions, and to speak
for or against the rezone. These public meetings are published as to the titne and place by the City Clerk
in electronic format and at City Hall located at2l3 N Main St., Republic, Missouri .65738. In addition,
you can contact the City Clerk at 417-732-3140.

4ll rezarrlrc prqtest peJitious musllbe received bv the Citv Clerk. prror ts the City{stlustl q yptc su
the rezoning. The rezoning protest petitions must be sent to or hand delivered to:

City of Republic
ATTN: City Clerk
213 N Main Street
Republic, MO 65738

If you have any questions about this process. please call either the City Clerk's Office at 417-732-3140
or the Community Development at 417 -732-3 150.

Page I of2 Lipdatcd I lr9lllt

28

Item 6.



TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI:

Please take notice that the undersigned property owner(s) acknowledge that they are the owner(s) of
either of the areas of the land (exclusive of streets and alleys) included in such proposed change or
within an area determined by lines drawn parallel to and one hundred and eighty-five feet distant from
the boundaries of the district proposed to be changed and that said owner(s) do protest and object to said
proposed rezoning of Planning and Zoning Commission Case No. REZN 20-004, City Council Bill No."

(if applicable). This protest is given in contemplation of the provisions of City Code
and applicable laws. Petitions must be filed with the City Clerk's Office located at 213 N Main St
Republic, Missouri, 65738, prior to the City Council's vote on the rezoning.

PLEASE NOTE:
1. All owners of record must sign the petition exactly as shown on the deed in order for their

property to be included in the required thirty percent.
2. Each property owner must sign his or her name personally. Spouses cannot sign for each

other.
3. A Notary Public must witness each signature.

THE NOTARY EXECUTING THIS PETITION MUST WITNESS ALL SIGNATURES

STATE OF MISSOURI )
) ss.

cor.rNTY oF GREENE )

on this fL*, .f A;W. ,20&!, ,before me personally appeared the above named

person(s), to me known to be the perio'n or persons described in and who executed the foregoing instrument and

acknowledged that she/she/they executed the same as their free act and deed

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal on the day and

year first above written.

(Seal)

Signature of Notary Public

Printed Name of Ovrner: Owner(s) Address: Property Address
(if different):

Owner(s) Signature(s)
z7

T^unr l/r vIor tuV €. t5tu5tD-"k
I < <( l4:l st,lu.L),,ffi,h,, I lf^(7-

0 il

My 20?3Ml Commission ErPires:

.J.r,tt 23;trLb Page 2 of 2 Updated 1l/9/18

Z;--Z*1(oJ,TA, 26nq < t#h1l-tL-p

29

Item 6.



City of Republic
Rezoning Protest Petitions General Information

Pursuant to 89.060 RSMo., and Republic Municipal Code Section 405.980(.4)(l), Such regulations,
restrictions, and boundaries may from time to time be amended, supplemented, changed, modified or
repealed. In case, however, of a protest against such change duly signed and acknowledged by the
owners of thirty percent or more, either of the areas of the land (exclusive of streets and alleys) included
in such proposed change or within an area determined by lines drawn parallel to and one hundred and
eighty-five feet distant from the boundaries of the district proposed to be changed, such amendment
shall not become effective except by the favorable vote of two-thirds of all the members of the
legislative body of such municipality. The provisions of section 89.050 relative to public hearing and
official notice shall apply equally to all changes or amendments.

Anyone may attend the public hearing to be held by the Planning and Zoning Commission or at the first
reading of the rezoning ordinance by the City Council to hear information, ask questions, and to speak
for or against the rezone. These public meetings are published as to the time and place by the City Clerk
in electronic format and at City Hall located at2l3 N Main St., Republic, Missouri,65738. In addition,
you can contact the City Clerk at 417-732-3140.

All rezoning protest petitions must be received by the Ciw Clerk. orior to the Ciw Council's vote on
the rezoning. The rezoning protest petitions must be sent to or hand delivered to:

City of Republic
ATTN: City Clerk
213 N Main Street
Republic, MO 65738

If you have any questions about this process, please call either the City Clerk's Office at4l7-732-3140
or the Community Development at 417 -732-3150.

Page I of2 Updated 1ll9/18

1

30

Item 6.



31

Item 6.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 20-26 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, Approving Amending the Zoning Code and Official Map by 
Changing the Classification of Approximately 0.47 Acres, Located at 
616 North Phelps Avenue, from Medium Density Single-Family 
Residential (R1-M) to High Density Single-Family Residential (R1-H). 

Submitted By: Community Development Department 

Date: June 16, 2020 
 

 

Issue Statement 

White Oak Holding, LLC has applied to change the Zoning Classification of (0.47) acres of property 

located at 616 North Phelps from Medium Density Single-Family Residential (R1-M) to High Density 

Single-Family Residential (R1-H). 

 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The property subject to this Rezoning Application is comprised of approximately (0.47) acres of land 

located at 616 North Phelps Avenue.  The property currently contains a single-family residential 

structure in uninhabitable condition.   The Applicant has expressed interest in demolishing the existing 

structure, subdividing the parcel into two (2) parcels, and building two (2) new single-family residential 

dwellings. 

The following paragraphs contain brief analyses of present site conditions as well as the proposal’s 

relationship to adopted plans of the City. 

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan 

The City’s Comprehensive Plan generally encourages the expansion of residential development through 

proactive rezoning of land at appropriate locations.  Appropriate locations are described generally 

throughout the Plan, with regard to the relationship of land at particular locations to infrastructure 

capable of supporting various intensities and densities of uses.   

The Plan also more particularly describes appropriate future land uses through the depiction of a 

“Future Land Use Map” (FLUM).  In this case, the FLUM depicts the subject property as having a 

Medium Density Residential designation.  The City’s Adopted 2005 Land Use Plan has identified the  

 

32

Item 7.



 

Medium Residential” Future Land Use Map designation as an area of two-family residential 

development at 4-7 units per acre and neighborhood compatible institutional uses.  

The 2005 Land Use Plan identifies Land Use Goals and Objectives relating to residential development, 

as follows: 

 Goal:  Cost-effective Private Development Density.  Encourage higher density development that 

will reduce the amount of infrastructure and cost to the developer and reduce the maintenance 

costs by the City. 

 Objective:  Use the Land Use Plan to promote and guide the development of land at 

higher densities to reduce the amount of infrastructure constructed within the City. 

 Policies:   

 Plan for higher density development that will reduce the cost of maintenance of 

new infrastructure improvements, such as water, sanitary sewer, stormwater 

and roads. 

 Goal:  Encourage the development of Infill Housing 

 Objective:  Promote infill housing development 

 Policies:   

 Promote infill development as a means of maximizing existing infrastructure and 

encouraging reinvestment in existing neighborhoods 

 Goal:  Diversify the Republic Housing Market. 

 Objective:  Promote all types of residential development. 

 Goal:  Improve the quality of all types of housing in the City. 

 Objective:  Encourage the development of high-quality housing regardless of the size, 

type, and density of housing being constructed. 

The 2005 Land Use Plan identifies “Neighborhood Principles and Development Guidelines,” which 

“provide guidance for how a mixture of land uses can work together to create community.”   

 Principle:  Republic should be a full-service community for a diverse population consisting of 

neighborhoods designed for human interaction. 

 Guideline:  A range of housing types and sizes to accommodate household of all ages 

and sizes should be provided in each Republic neighborhood.  A mix of housing types 

within a neighborhood creates visual and economic variety as well as opportunities for a 

more diverse population. 

The general trend of development in the vicinity of the subject property, along North Phelps Avenue and 

surrounding streets is of well-established single-family dwelling neighborhoods.   

 

33

Item 7.



 

Compatibility with Surrounding Land Uses 

The subject property is surrounded by Medium Density Single-Family Residential (R1-M) Zoning to the 

north, south, east, and appear to be utilized as single-family residences. 

The land uses permitted in the High Density Single-Family Residential (R1-H) Zoning District include 

single-family dwellings, residential accessory structures, golf courses, and schools.  

Capacity To Serve Potential Development and Land Use 

Municipal Water and Sewer Service:  The parcel currently contains an uninhabitable single-family home 

served by City of Republic water and sanitary sewer service.   

The site is served by a four (4) inch water main and eight (8) inch sanitary sewer main located along 

North Phelps Avenue.  The sanitary sewer flows directly to the Wastewater Treatment Facility.  The 

City’s water system and Wastewater Treatment Facility currently have capacity to serve potentially two 

(2) new residential single-family dwellings at this location.  

Transportation:  A Traffic Impact Study (TIS) was not required for the Rezoning Application due to no 

increase in traffic volumes for a single parcel to transition from Medium Density to High Density Single 

Family Residential Zoning; a potential Minor Subdivision dividing the parcel into two (2) High Density 

Single-Family parcels will not increase traffic volumes to warrant a TIS. 

Floodplain:  The subject parcel does not contain a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA/Floodplain). 

Sinkholes:  The subject parcel does not contain any identified sinkholes. 

Extent to which Proposed Amendment Creates Nonconformities 

Any existing single-family residential uses presently conducted on the subject property would be 

permitted to continue as is at the time of rezone until such time as the use is altered in a way that would 

remove that lawfully existing nonconforming status.  Types of alterations that would cause the removal 

of that status include redevelopment, expansion of the nonconforming use, substantial destruction of 

the nonconformity, etc. 

 

Recommended Action 

Staff considers the proposed Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning) to be generally consistent with the 

goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan, consistent with the trend of residential  development 

in the vicinity of the site , compatible with surrounding land uses, and able to be adequately served by 

municipal facilities.  Based upon this analysis (performed without the benefit of evidence and testimony 

of a public hearing), Staff recommends the approval of this application. 

 

34

Item 7.



BILL NO. 20-26 ORDINANCE NO. 20-

BILL NO. 20-26  Page 1 of 2  ORDINANCE NO. 20-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
APPROVING AMENDING THE ZONING CODE AND OFFICIAL MAP BY CHANGING 
THE CLASSIFICATION OF APPROXIMATELY 0.47 ACRES, LOCATED AT 616 NORTH 
PHELPS AVENUE, FROM MEDIUM DENSITY SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (R1-M) 

TO HIGH DENSITY SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (R1-H)

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (herein called the “City” or “Republic”) is a 
municipal corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, 
organized, and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

WHEREAS, an application for amendment to the Zoning Code and Official Zoning Map 
to rezone real estate located at 616 North Phelps Avenue and comprising approximately 0.47 acres 
from Medium Density Single-Family Residential (R1-M) to High Density Single-Family 
Residential (R1-H), was submitted to the Community Development Department Staff by White 
Oak Holding, LLC (hereinafter “Applicant”); and 

WHEREAS, the Community Development Staff did thereafter submit said application to 
the Planning and Zoning Commission which did set June 8, 2020, as the date a public hearing 
would be held on such application and proposed amendment; and 

WHEREAS, notice of the time and date of the public hearing was given by publication on 
May 20, 2020, in The Greene County Commonwealth, a newspaper of general circulation in the City, 
such notice being at least 15 days before the date set for the public hearing; and 

WHEREAS, the City gave notice of such public hearing to the record owners of all 
properties within the area proposed to be rezoned and within 185 feet of the property proposed 
to be rezoned; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was conducted by the Planning and Zoning Commission on 
June 8, 2020, after which the Commission rendered written findings of fact on the proposed 
amendment and rezoning and, thereafter, submitted the same, together with its 
recommendations, to the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission by a vote of 5 Ayes to 0 Nays, 
recommended the approval of such application for rezoning; and 

WHEREAS, the application for rezoning and to amend the Zoning Code and Official 
Zoning Map was submitted to the City Council at its regular meeting on June 16, 2020, after which 
the City Council did proceed to vote to rezone such property and amend the Zoning Code 
accordingly. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. That the Zoning Code and Official Zoning Map are hereby amended insofar 
as the same relates to a certain tract of realty located at 616 North Phelps 
Avenue and comprising approximately 0.47 acres from Medium Density 

35

Item 7.



BILL NO. 20-26 ORDINANCE NO. 20-

BILL NO. 20-26  Page 2 of 2  ORDINANCE NO. 20-

Single-Family Residential (R1-M) to High Density Single-Family Residential 
(R1-H), such tract being more fully described as follows: 

All of Lot Twenty Four (24) and the South Fifty Three (53) feet of lot Twenty 
Five (25) in the G.W. HINES SECOND ADDITION, a Subdivision the Town 
of Republic, Greene County, MO, according to the recorded plat thereof. 

Section 2. In all other aspects other than those herein amended, modified, or changed, 
the Zoning Code and Official Zoning Map shall remain the same and 
continue in full force and effect. 

Section 3. The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 

Section 4. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 
provided by law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Republic, Missouri, this _____________________ day of ______________________ 2020. 

Jeff Ussery, Mayor 
Attest: 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: ___________________________________, Scott Ison, City Attorney 

Final Passage and Vote:  ________________________________________________________ 

36

Item 7.



37

Item 7.



38

Item 7.



39

Item 7.



Section 405.100. "R1-H" High Density Single-Family
Residential District. [CC 1999 §26-18]

A. Purposes. The intent of the "R1-H" High Density Single-Family
Residential District is designed for seven thousand (7,000) square
foot single-family detached residential uses at higher densities of
approximately six (6) dwelling units per acre. Internal stability,
harmony, attractiveness, order and efficiency are encouraged by
providing for adequate light, air and open space for dwellings and
related facilities and by consideration of the proper functional
relationship and arrangement of the different uses permitted in
this district. This district is intended for areas that have access
for vehicular traffic from collector or higher classification streets
without crossing minor streets in adjoining neighborhoods.

B. Uses Permitted.

1. Model homes in accordance with Section 410.190.

2. Single-family dwellings.

3. Accessory buildings customary, incidental and subordinate to
the main building.

4. Churches or other places of worship, including parish houses
and Sunday Schools, but excluding overnight shelters and
temporary outdoor revivals, on a minimum of two (2) acres of
land, to provide sufficient land area for off-street parking,
bufferyards and proper site design to lessen impact on
adjoining residential neighborhoods. The requirements of
Article VI and X regarding parking, loading, landscaping, and
open space shall be required.

5. Home occupations in accordance with Section 405.630.

6. Public school, elementary and high, and educational
institutions having a curriculum the same as ordinarily given
in public schools, on a minimum of two (2) acres of land, to
provide sufficient land area for off-street parking, bufferyards
and proper site design to lessen impact on adjoining
residential neighborhoods. The requirements of Article VI
and X regarding parking, loading, landscaping, and open
space shall be required.

7. Golf courses and country clubs.

8. Any use conforming at the time the district is mapped.

:1

40

Item 7.



9. Group homes. The exterior appearance of the home and
property shall be in reasonable conformance with the general
neighborhood standards. No group home shall be located
within two thousand five hundred (2,500) feet of another
group home.

C. General Regulations. Property and buildings in the "R1-H"
District shall be subject to the following regulations:

1. Street frontage. Each lot shall have a clear, direct frontage on
a dedicated City street.

2. Platting requirements. Each dwelling shall be located on its
own individual platted lot. If areas for common use of
occupants of the development are shown on the plat,
satisfactory arrangements shall be made for the maintenance
of the common open space and facilities, whether in the form
of a neighborhood association or public dedication. The plat
shall indicate the easements and covenants appurtenant
thereto.

3. Off-street parking. As required by Article VI of this Chapter.

4. Accessory buildings and structures. As required by Section
405.640 of this Chapter.

5. Trees. There shall be a requirement of at least one (1) tree for
each platted lot in order to enhance private space. The tree
shall be of a variety that provides shade and screening and
shall be at least six (6) feet in height at the time of planting.

D. Height And Area Regulations. The height and area regulations
shall be provided in accordance with the requirements set forth in
Article V.

Section
405.100

Section
405.100

:2

41

Item 7.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 20-R-19 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, Awarding the Bid for the Fencing and Kennel Construction at 
the Republic Animal Control Facility. 

Submitted By: Garrett Brickner, Assistant Public Works Director 

Date: June 16, 2020 
 

 

Issue Statement 

To award fencing and kennel construction for the Animal Control Facility to Carnahan White LLC.  

 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The City of Republic requested bids to supply and install 40 dog pens with 6' tall chain link with 3' wide 

gates. The 20 inside cages approximately 6' 10" x 10' with a 4' tall aluminum divider on each cage. The 

20 outside cages approximately 6' x 9' 6" with a top, and outside  

perimeter fence of approximately 120' of 6' tall chain link with 2 - 3' wide gates. All materials Shall be 

black poly coated with top and bottom rails on all fence with a 9 ga fused bonded chain link. Post Shall 

be installed with a 1/4" x 6" x 6" plate and 1/2" x 4" anchor bolts.  

 

The City received two bids for this project: Carnahan White at $53,800 and Midmark Corporation at 

$94,036.  

 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution 20-R-19. 

 

42

Item 8.



RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-19
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AWARDING THE BID FOR THE FENCING AND KENNEL CONSTRUCTION AT THE 

REPUBLIC ANIMAL CONTROL FACILITY

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, ("City" or “Republic”) is a municipal 
corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, 
and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

WHEREAS, the City solicited sealed bids for the fencing and kennel construction at the 
Republic Animal Control Facility (herein called the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, two vendors provided duly submitted bids for the Project and the lowest 
bidder was Carnahan White, LLC, all bids being on file with the City Clerk; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to accept the lowest, responsible bid to govern the 
Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The submitted bid from Carnahan White, LLC, attached hereto as “Attachment 
1” and incorporated herein, is accepted for the Project at the unit prices shown 
thereon and not to exceed $53,800.00. 

Section 2. The City Administrator, or designee, on behalf of the City of Republic, is 
authorized to enter into an agreement with Carnahan White, LLC, for the 
Project, said agreement to be in substantially the same form as “Attachment 
2”. 

Section 3. The City Administrator, or designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to take 
the necessary steps to execute this Resolution. 

Section 4. The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 

Section 5. This Resolution shall take effect after passage as provided by law. 

 PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Republic, Missouri, this 16th day of June 2020. 

Jeff Ussery, Mayor 
Attest: 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: ___________________________________, Scott Ison, City Attorney 

Final Passage and Vote:  ________________________________________________________ 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-19
43

Item 8.



Attachment 1

44

Item 8.



45

Item 8.



Page 1 of 12 
Carnahan-White, LLC – Contractor Agreement 

CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

THIS CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into this _____ day of 
________________, 2020, by and between the City of Republic Missouri (“City”) and 
Carnahan-White, LLC, (“Contractor”), collectively referred to as “Parties”. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, City is a municipal corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, 
Missouri; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor is a Missouri Limited Liability Company located at 1845 S St Hwy 
MM, Springfield, MO 65802, with at SSN/Federal Tax ID Number of 35-249-4025; and 

WHEREAS, City solicited sealed bids through an Invitation for Bid, hereinafter described 
on Exhibit A – Invitation for Bid, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor submitted a bid that was received by the City, which bid is attached 
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B – Bid Submittal; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor has become the lowest responsible bidder for furnishing the 
supervision, labor, tools, equipment, materials and supplies and for the services described in 
Exhibit C – Description of Work, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein; and   

WHEREAS, City desires to engage Contractor for the reroof of the Republic Police 
Department facility (“Project”), hereinafter described on Exhibit C – Description of Work. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and agreements hereinafter set 
forth, the City and Contractor agree as follows: 

1. Ability to Contract: Contractor warranties that it has the legal ability to enter into this
Agreement and fulfill the terms contained herein.

2. Manner and Time for Completion: The Contractor will furnish all supervision, labor, tools,
equipment, materials and supplies necessary to perform, and to perform said work at
Contractor's own expense in accordance with the Agreement and any applicable city 
ordinances and state and federal laws within the time specified in this Agreement. 

3. Terms and Conditions: In addition to the requirements to comply with applicable city,
state and federal law, the Contractor shall become familiar with the technical
specifications and requirements for construction projects of the City and shall comply 
with those provisions applicable to this project. 

4. Sales Tax Exemption:  The Agreement price does not include and the City shall not pay
any sales or use taxes on the materials used in the project. Pursuant to the provisions of
RSMo. Section 144.062, the City will provide the Contractor with a Project Exemption 
Certificate and a Missouri Tax Exemption letter from the City to use in purchasing 

Attachment 2

46

Item 8.



Page 2 of 12 
Carnahan-White, LLC – Contractor Agreement 

materials on a tax-free basis. It will be the Contractor’s responsibility to provide the 
documentation to any subcontractor.  These documents will be used solely for purchase 
of materials being directly incorporated into or consumed in the construction of the work 
under this Agreement. 

5. Payment Shall Not Exceed: The City hereby agrees to pay the Contractor for the work
done pursuant to this Agreement according to the payment schedule set forth in this
Agreement upon acceptance of the work by the City and in accordance with the rates 
and/or amounts stated in the Exhibit B – Bid Submittal, which by reference is made a 
part hereof. It is expressly understood that in no event will the total compensation and 
reimbursement to be paid to the Contractor under the terms of this Agreement exceed the 
sum of $53,800.00, unless specifically and mutually agreed to in writing by both the City 
and the Contractor. No partial payment to the Contractor shall operate as approval of 
acceptance of work done or materials furnished hereunder. 

6. Payment:  One lump sum payment will be made by City to Contractor once all work is
fully completed and performed as determined by the City and upon receipt of all
applicable lien waivers, final release, prevailing wage documents, and other documents 
that may be required by City. 

7. Contingency Set Aside: The Agreement amount set forth in paragraph 5 above may
include amount specified in the Notice of Award which shall be set aside as a
contingency allowance. Although the contingency allowance may be included in the total 
amount of the Agreement, the Contractor shall not be entitled to be paid any portion of 
the contingency allowance unless and until specifically authorized by written change 
order to the City’s initial Notice to Proceed. The contingency allowance shall be 
authorized solely in the event additional work not included or specified in the base bid is 
required. 

8. Prevailing Wage:  If this project is valued at more than $75,000.00, not less than the
prevailing hourly rate of wages, as set out in the wage order attached to and made part of
the specification for work under the contract, must be paid to all workers performing 
work under this Agreement (see Section 290.250, RSMo).  The Contractor will forfeit a 
penalty to the contracting public body of $100 per day (or portion of a day) for each 
worker that is paid less than the prevailing rate for any work done under this Agreement 
by the Contractor or by any sub-contractor (see Section 290.250, RSMo).  For detailed 
information on rules and occupational titles, see 8 CSR 30-3.010 through 3.060).    
During periods of excessive unemployment (any month immediately following two 
consecutive calendar months during which the level of unemployment in the state has 
exceeded five percent (as measured by the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics), only 
Missouri laborers (persons who have resided in Missouri for at least thirty days and 
intend to become or remain Missouri residents) and laborers from non-restrictive states 
(persons who are residents of a state which has not enacted state laws restricting Missouri 
laborers from working on public works projects in that state, as determined by the Labor 

47

Item 8.



Page 3 of 12 
Carnahan-White, LLC – Contractor Agreement 

 

and Industrial Relations Commission), (see Excessive Unemployment section), may be 
employed under this Agreement, except that other laborers may be used when Missouri 
laborers or laborers from non-restrictive states are not available, or are incapable of 
performing the particular type of work involved, if so certified by the Contractor and 
approved by the contracting officer.  (See Sections 290.550 through 290.580, RSMO). 

9. Performance Bond and Labor & Materials Payment Bond: The Contractor shall execute a 
Performance and Maintenance Bond and a Labor and Materials Payment Bond with 
surety approved by the City and on the forms approved by the City, each bond shall be in 
the amount of $53,800.00, conditioned upon the full and faithful performance of all major 
terms and conditions of this Agreement and payment of all labor and material supplies. It 
is further mutually agreed between the parties hereto that if at any time after the 
execution of this agreement and the surety bond(s) hereto attached for its faithful 
performance and payment of labor and material suppliers, the City shall deem the surety 
or sureties upon such bond(s) to be unsatisfactory, or if, for any reason, such bond(s) 
ceases to be adequate to cover the performance of the work, the Contractor shall, at its 
expense, within five days after the receipt of notice from the City to do so, furnish an 
additional bond or bonds, in such form and amount, and with such surety or sureties as 
shall be satisfactory to the City. In such event no further payment to the Contractor shall 
be deemed to be due under this Agreement until such new or additional security for the 
faithful performance of the work and the payment of labor and material suppliers shall be 
furnished in a manner and form satisfactory to the City. The corporate surety on any 
performance or payment bond must be licensed by the State of Missouri and if the 
required bond exceeds $25,000 must be listed in the United States Treasury Circular 570. 

10. Insurance Requirements: Without limiting any of the other obligations or liabilities of the 
Contractor, the Contractor shall secure and maintain at its own cost and expense, 
throughout the duration of this Agreement and until the work is completed and accepted 
by the City, insurance of such types and in such amounts as may be necessary to protect it 
and the interests of the City against all hazards or risks of loss as hereunder specified or 
which may arise out of the performance of this Agreement.  The form and limits of such 
insurance, together with the underwriter thereof in each case, are subject to approval by 
the City.  Regardless of such approval, it shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to 
maintain adequate insurance coverage at all times during the term of the Contract.  
Failure of the Contractor to maintain coverage shall not relieve it of any contractual 
responsibility or obligation or liability under this Agreement. 

The certificates of insurance, including evidence of the required endorsements hereunder 
or the policies, shall be filed with the City within 10 days after the date of the receipt of 
Notice of Award to the Contractor and prior to the start of work.  All insurance policies 
shall provide 30 days written notice to be given by the insurance company in question 
prior to modification or cancellation of such insurance.  Such notices shall be mailed, 
certified mail, return receipt requested, to:   

48

Item 8.



Page 4 of 12 
Carnahan-White, LLC – Contractor Agreement 

 

 City of Republic, Legal Department, 221 North Main, Republic, MO  65738 
 

The minimum coverage for the insurance referred to herein shall be in accordance with 
the requirements established below: 

a.  Workers’ Compensation………Statutory coverage per RSMo. 287.010 et seq 
       Employer’s Liability…………………………………………….$1,000,000.00 

b.   Commercial General Liability Insurance, including coverage for Premises, 
Operations, Products and Completed Operations, Contractual Liability, Broad 
Form Property Damage, Independent Contractors, Explosion, Collapse, and 
Underground Property Damage and endorsed for blasting if blasting required.  
Such coverage shall apply to bodily injury and property damage on an 
“Occurrence Form Basis” with limits of $2,905,664 for all claims arising out of a 
single accident or occurrence and $435,849 for any one person in a single 
accident or occurrence. 

c.   Automobile Liability Insurance covering bodily injury and property damage for 
owned, non-owned and hired vehicles, with limits of $2,905,664 for all claims 
arising out of a single accident or occurrence and $435,849 for any one person in 
a single accident or occurrence. 

d.   Subcontracts.  In case any or all of this work is sublet, the Contractor shall require 
the subcontractor to procure and maintain all insurance required in this Paragraph, 
Insurance Requirements, hereof and in like amounts.  Contractor shall require any 
and all subcontractors with whom it enters into a contract to perform work on this 
project to protect the City through insurance against applicable hazards or risks 
and shall, upon request of the City, provide evidence of such insurance. 

e.    Notice:  The Contractor and/or subcontractor shall furnish the City prior to 
beginning the work, the policy as specified in this Paragraph, Insurance 
Requirements, and satisfactory proof of carriage of all the insurance required by 
this contract, with the provision that policies shall not be canceled, modified or 
non-renewed without 30 days written notice to the City. 

f.    Pending Legislation: In the event the scope or extent of the City’s tort liability as 
a governmental entity as described in Section 537.600 through 537.650 RSMo. is 
broadened or increased during the term of this Agreement by legislative or 
judicial action, the City may require Contractor, upon 10 days written notice, to 
execute an Agreement addendum whereby the Contractor agrees to provide, at a 
price not exceeding Contractor’s actual increased premium cost, additional 
liability insurance coverage as the City may require to protect the City from 
increased tort liability exposure as the result of such legislative or judicial action.  
Any such additional insurance coverage shall be evidenced by an appropriate 
certificate of insurance and shall take effect within the time set forth in the 
addendum. 

11. Contractor's responsibility for subcontractors: The Contractor shall be as fully 
responsible to the City for the acts and omissions of its subcontractors, and of persons 
either directly or indirectly employed by them, as Contractor is for the acts and omissions 
of persons it directly employs.  Contractor shall cause appropriate provisions to be 
inserted in all subcontracts relating to this work, to bind all subcontractors to Contractor 
by all the terms herein set forth, and insofar as applicable to the work of subcontractors 

49

Item 8.



Page 5 of 12 
Carnahan-White, LLC – Contractor Agreement 

 

and to give Contractor the same power regarding termination of any subcontract as the 
City may exercise over Contractor under any provisions of this contract.  Nothing 
contained in this Agreement shall create any contractual relation between the 
subcontractor and the City or between any subcontractors. 

12. Liquidated Damages: Time of completion of work by the Contractor is of the essence.  
Should Contractor, or in the case of default, the surety, fail to complete the work within 
the time specified in this Agreement, or within such extra time as may be allowed in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement, Contractor (or surety) shall be liable to the 
City in the amount of $200.00 per day for each and every calendar day that the 
Agreement remains uncompleted after the time allowed for completion, as liquidated 
damages, and not as a penalty, it being stipulated that actual damages to the City and the 
public arising from Contractor’s failure to timely complete the work would be difficult, if 
not impossible, to ascertain.  The amount assessed as liquidated damages may be 
withheld from any moneys otherwise due to Contractor from the City. 

13. Termination:  City reserves the right to terminate this Agreement by giving at least 5 days 
prior written notice to the Contractor, without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of 
the City should the Contractor be adjudged a bankrupt, or if Contractor should make a 
general assignment for the benefit of its creditors, or if a receiver should be appointed for 
Contractor or for any of its property, or if Contractor should persistently or repeatedly 
refuse or fail to supply enough properly skilled workmen or proper material, or if 
Contractor should refuse or fail to make prompt payment to any person supplying labor 
or materials for the work under the contract, or persistently disregard instructions of the 
City or fail to observe or perform any provisions of this Agreement. 

14. City's Right to Proceed: In the event this Agreement is terminated pursuant to Paragraph 
12, Termination, then the City may take over the work and prosecute the same to 
completion, by contract or otherwise, and Contractor and its sureties shall be liable to the 
City for any costs over the amount of this Agreement thereby occasioned by the City.  In 
any such case, the City may take possession of, and utilize in completing the work, such 
materials, appliances and structures as may be on the work site and are necessary for 
completion of the work.  The foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not in limitation 
of, the rights of the City under any other provisions of this Agreement, city ordinances, 
and state and federal laws. 

15. Termination for Convenience of City: The City shall have the right at any time by written 
notice to Contractor to terminate and cancel this Agreement, without cause, for the 
convenience of the City, and Contractor shall immediately stop work.  In such event City 
shall not be liable to Contractor except for payment for actual work performed prior to 
such notice in an amount proportionate to the completed Agreement price and for the 
actual costs of preparations made by Contractor for the performance of the cancelled 
portions of this Agreement, including a reasonable allowance of profit applicable to the 
actual work performed and such preparations.  Anticipatory profits and consequential 
damages shall not be recoverable by Contractor.  

16. Delay by City: City and Contractor agree that the schedule of services to be provided by 
the Contractor under this Agreement may depend upon timely fulfillment of City 

50

Item 8.



Page 6 of 12 
Carnahan-White, LLC – Contractor Agreement 

 

responsibilities. If the City is unable to provide services and/or facilities as specified in 
this Agreement, and/or causes delays to the project beyond Contractor’s control, the 
Contractor shall be entitled to an extension of the time for completion of this Agreement 
but such time of completion shall be extended no more than 1 day for each day of delay 
caused by the City. Any such agreement to modify or extend the time of completion shall 
be made in writing by formal addendum to this Agreement. The time of application of 
liquidated damages shall not begin until after the amended date for contract/phase 
completion. The time of completion shall not be extended because of delay caused by the 
City unless and until the Contractor has notified the City, in writing, that the City has 
caused a delay; such notice shall be made not later than 7 days after the beginning of the 
delay caused by the City. 

17. Guards, Lights, Fencing: Contractor agrees that during the performance of said work, it 
will maintain proper guards for the prevention of accidents and put up and maintain 
suitable and sufficient lights and fencing.  

18. Liability and Indemnity: 
a.    In no event shall City be liable to Contractor for special, indirect, or 

consequential damage.  The maximum liability of City shall be limited to the 
amount of money to be paid or received by City under this Agreement. 

b.   Contractor shall defend, indemnify and save harmless City, its elected or 
appointed officials, agents and employees from and against any and all liability, 
suits, damages, costs (including attorney fees), losses, outlays and expenses from 
claims in any manner caused by, or allegedly caused by, or arising out of, or 
connected with, this Agreement, or the work or any subcontract thereunder (the 
Contractor hereby assuming full responsibility for relations with subcontractors), 
including, but not limited to, claims for personal injuries, death, property damage, 
or for damages from the award of this Agreement to Contractor , notwithstanding 
any possible negligence, whether sole or concurrent, on the part of the City, its 
officials, agents and employees. 

c.    Contractor shall indemnify and hold City harmless from all wages or overtime 
compensation due any employees in rendering services pursuant to this 
Agreement or any subcontract, including payment of reasonable attorneys’ fees 
and costs in the defense of any claim made under the Fair Labor Standards Act, 
the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law or any other local, federal or state law. 

d.   The indemnification obligations of Contractor hereunder shall not be limited by 
any limitations as to the amount or type of damages, compensation or benefits 
payable by or for the Contractor, under any local, federal or state law, to any 
person asserting the claim against City, its elected or appointed officials, agents 
and employees, for which indemnification is sought. 

e.    The indemnification obligations herein shall not negate, abridge or reduce in any 
way any additional indemnification rights of City, its elected or appointed 
officials, agents and employees, which are otherwise available under statute, or in 
law or equity. 

f.    Contractor affirms that it has had the opportunity to recover the costs of the 
liability insurance required in this Agreement in its contract price.  Contractor’s 

51

Item 8.



Page 7 of 12 
Carnahan-White, LLC – Contractor Agreement 

 

obligation under this Agreement to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless any 
person from that person’s own negligence or wrongdoing is limited to the 
coverage and limits of the applicable insurance required of Contractor under this 
Agreement. 

19. Payment for Labor and Materials:  The Contractor agrees and binds itself to pay for all 
labor done, and for all the materials used in the construction of the work to be completed 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

20. Agreement Documents: The Agreement documents shall consist of the following: 
a. This Agreement;  
b. Exhibit A – Invitation for Bid  
c. Exhibit B – Bid Submittal  
d. Exhibit C – Description of Work  
e. Notice of Award 
f. Notice to Proceed 
g. E-Verify Affidavit  
h. OSHA Safety Training Affidavit 
i. All Duly Executed Change Orders 
j. Payment Bond 
k. Performance and Maintenance Bond 

This Agreement, together with the other documents enumerated in this Paragraph, 
Agreement Documents, forms the Agreement between the parties. These documents are 
as fully a part of this Agreement as if attached hereto or repeated herein. 

21. Subsurface Conditions: Contractor agrees that information contained in the published 
reports and public actions of the Missouri Division of Geology and Land Survey shall be 
conclusive and binding upon the Contractor as to what subsurface conditions at the job 
site are reasonably anticipated or reasonably foreseeable. 

22. Transient Employers:  Every transient employer, as defined in Section 285.230, RSMo., 
must post in a prominent and easily accessible place at the work site a clearly legible 
copy of the following:  (1) The notice of registration for employer withholding issued to 
such transient employer by the Director of Revenue; (2) Proof of coverage of Worker’s 
Compensation Insurance or self-insurance signed by the transient employer and verified 
by the Department of Revenue through records of the Division of Worker’s 
Compensation; and, (3) The notice of registration for Unemployment Insurance issued to 
such transient employer by the Division of Employment Security.  Any transient 
employer failing to comply with these requirements shall, under Section 285.234, RSMo. 
be liable for a penalty of $500 per day until the notices required by this section are posted 
as required by that Statute. 

23. Nonresident/Foreign Contractors:  The Contractor shall procure and maintain during the 
life of this Agreement: 

a. If the Contractor is a foreign corporation, a certificate of authority to transact 
business in the State of Missouri from the Secretary of State, unless exempt 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 351.570 RSMo. 

b. A certificate from the Missouri Director of Revenue evidencing compliance with 

52

Item 8.



Page 8 of 12 
Carnahan-White, LLC – Contractor Agreement 

 

the transient employer financial assurance law, unless exempt pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 285.230 RSMo. 

24. E-Verify and Safety Training Compliance Requirements:  All Proposers/Contractors for 
contracts/agreements exceeding $5,000.00 shall by sworn affidavit and provision of 
documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization 
program with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted 
services. Every such business entity shall also sign an affidavit affirming that it does not 
knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the 
contracted services.  Such Affidavit of Compliance shall be submitted with the Proposal 
on the forms included in this Agreement.  Subsequent to award, each sub-contractor shall 
complete an Affidavit of Compliance to the same.  Sub-contractor affidavits shall be 
submitted to the City.   

25. Safety Training: Contractor shall provide the following safety training: A 10-hour 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration (“OSHA”) construction safety program 
for all employees who will be on-site at this Project.  The construction safety program 
shall include a course in construction safety and health that is approved by OSHA or a 
similar program approved by the Missouri Department of Labor and Industrial Relations 
which is at least as stringent as an approved OSHA program as required by Section 
292.675, RSMo.  

a.    Require its on-site employees to complete a construction safety program within 
60 days after the date work on the Project commences. 

b.  Acknowledges and agrees that any of the Contractor’s employees found on the 
project site with documentation of the successful completion of a construction 
safety program shall be required to produce such documentation within 20 days, 
or will be subject to removal from the Project.  

c.   Require all of its sub-contractors to comply with the requirements of this 
Paragraph, Safety Training, and Section 292.675 RSMo. 

26. Notice of Penalties for Failure to Provide Safety Training: Contractor shall be liable for 
penalties for failure to provide safety training as follows:  

a.    Pursuant to Section 292.675 RSMo. the Contractor shall forfeit to the City as a 
penalty $2,500.00, plus $100.00 for each on-site employee employed by the 
Contractor or its Sub-contractor, for each calendar day, or portion thereof. Such 
on-site employee is employed without the construction safety training required in 
Paragraph 24, Safety Training.  

b.   The penalty described in this Paragraph shall not begin to accrue until the time 
periods described in Paragraph 24, Safety Training, have elapsed.  

c.   Violation of Paragraph 24, Safety Training, and imposition of the penalty 
described in this Section shall be investigated and determined by the Missouri 
Department of Labor and Industrial Relations.  

27. Payment Withheld for Violations of Safety Training Provisions: In the event that the 
Missouri Department of Labor and Industrial Labor Relations has determined that a 
violation of Section 292.675 RSMo has occurred and that a penalty as described in 
Paragraph 25, Notice of Penalties for Failure to Provide Safety Training, shall be 
assessed, City shall withhold and retain all sums and amounts due and owing when 
making payments to Contractor. 

53

Item 8.



Page 9 of 12 
Carnahan-White, LLC – Contractor Agreement 

 

28. Federal Funding: If the subject of this Agreement is financed in whole or in part from 
Federal funds, this Agreement shall be subject to all applicable federal statutes, rules and 
regulations, including provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act, 40 U.S.C. §3141 et seq., and 
the “Federal Labor Standards Provisions,” incorporated into this Agreement.  Where the 
Missouri Prevailing Wage Law and the Davis-Bacon Act require payment of different 
wages for work performed under this Agreement, the Contractor and all Subcontractors 
shall pay the greater of the wages required under either law. 

29. General Independent Contractor Clause: This Agreement does not create an 
employee/employer relationship between the Parties.  It is the Parties' intention that the 
Contractor will be an independent contractor and not the City's employee for all 
purposes, including, but not limited to, the application of the Fair Labor Standards Act 
minimum wage and overtime payments, Federal Insurance Contribution Act, the Social 
Security Act, the Federal Unemployment Tax Act, the provisions of the Internal Revenue 
Code, Missouri Revenue and Taxation laws, Missouri Workers' Compensation and 
Unemployment Insurance laws. The Contractor will retain sole and absolute discretion in 
the judgment of the manner and means of carrying out the Contractor's activities and 
responsibilities hereunder.  Contractor agrees that it is a separate and independent 
enterprise from the City, that it has a full opportunity to find other business, that it has 
made its own investment in its business, and that it will utilize a high level of skill 
necessary to perform the work.  This Agreement shall not be construed as creating any 
joint employment relationship between the Contractor and the City, and the City will not 
be liable for any obligation incurred by the Contractor, including but not limited to 
unpaid minimum wages and/or overtime premiums. 

30. Occupational License: Contractor shall obtain and maintain an occupational license with 
the jurisdiction this Project is located in. The cost for this occupational license shall borne 
by the Contactor. No Agreement shall be executed by the City until this occupational 
license has been obtained. 

31. Nondiscrimination:  Contractor agrees in the performance of this Agreement not to 
discriminate on the grounds or because of race, creed, color, national origin or ancestry, 
sex, religion, handicap, age, or political opinion or affiliation, against any employee of 
Contractor or applicant for employment and shall include a similar provision in all 
subcontracts let or awarded hereunder. 

32. Ownership in Work: Contractor will have and will gain no ownership or other interest in 
Project in this Agreement.  

33. Conflict of Interest: In accepting this Agreement, Contractor certifies that no salaried 
officer or employee of the City, and no member of the City Council or Mayor, has a 
financial interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement.  Any federal regulations and 
applicable provisions in Section 105.450 et seq., RSMo. shall not be violated. 

34. Waiver: No provision of the Agreement documents shall be construed, expressly or by 
implication, as a waiver by the City of any existing or future right or remedy available by 
law in the event of any claim of default or breach of contract. 

35. Entire Agreement: This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the Parties and 
supersedes all prior and contemporaneous written or oral agreements.  This Agreement 
may not be modified or amended other than in writing as agreed and signed by all the 
Parties. 

54

Item 8.



Page 10 of 12 
Carnahan-White, LLC – Contractor Agreement 

 

36. Jurisdiction and Venue: This Agreement shall be taken and deemed to have been fully 
executed and made by the parties herein and governed by the laws of the State of 
Missouri for all purposes and intents.  Venue under this Agreement or any disputes that 
come from it shall be in the Circuit Court of Greene County, Missouri. 

37. Dispute: In the event that the City is the prevailing party in any litigation arising out of or 
relating to this Agreement, the City shall be entitled to all reasonable attorneys’ fees and 
expenses incurred. 

38. Liability: Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create any liability on behalf of 
the City for any direct, special, indirect, liquidated, or consequential damages.   

39. Execution: This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and each 
shall be deemed to be an original if signed by all Parties, but all of which together shall 
constitute one and the same document.  The parties agree that signatures transmitted by 
facsimile or scanned and emailed shall have the legal effect of original signatures. At the 
request of either party, the parties shall promptly exchange executed original counterparts 
of this Agreement or any amendment. 

40. Survival: This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
hereto and their respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns as 
provided in this Agreement.   

41. Headings: The headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and 
shall not limit or otherwise affect the meaning thereof. 

42. Whereas Clauses: The “Whereas” clauses stated above are incorporated herein by 
reference. 

43. Assignment: Contractor shall not assign any interest in this Agreement, and shall not 
transfer any interest in the same (whether by assignment or novation), without prior 
written consent of the City thereto, provided, however, that claims for money due or to 
become due to the Contractor from the City under this Agreement may be assigned to a 
bank, trust company, or other financial institution without such approval.  Notice of such 
assignment or transfer shall be furnished in writing promptly to the City and the bond 
surety.  Any such assignment is expressly subject to all rights and remedies of the City 
under this Agreement, including the right to change or delete activities from the 
Agreement or to terminate the same as provided herein, and no such assignment shall 
require the City to give any notice to any such assignee of any actions which the City 
may take under this Agreement. 

44. Sovereign Immunity: In no event shall any language or requirement in this Agreement be 
construed as or constitute a waiver or limitation of City’s defenses with regard to 
sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, or official immunity under federal or state 
constitutions, statutes, and/or laws. 

45. Severability Clause: A determination of invalidity or unconstitutionality by a court of 
competent jurisdiction of any clause, sentence, paragraph, section or part, of this 
Agreement shall not affect the validity of the remaining parts to this Agreement. 

55

Item 8.



Page 11 of 12 
Carnahan-White, LLC – Contractor Agreement 

 

46. Contingent Upon Funds and Approval: This Agreement is contingent upon the City 
having sufficient funds available for the subject of this Agreement.  Contractor shall have 
no right of action against City in the event City is unable to perform its obligations under 
this Agreement as a result of insufficient funds.  Further, this Agreement is subject to and 
conditioned upon approval by ordinance by the City Council. 

47. Notices: Any notice, request or demand provided for in this Agreement shall be deemed 
to have been given when the same shall have been personally delivered to the following 
offices or deposited in the United States Mail, Registered or Certified, with postage 
thereon prepaid as follows: 

to the City:   City of Republic, Missouri     
    Attn: City Administrator    
    213 North Main Street 

Republic, Missouri 65738 
 

to Contractor:   Carnahan White, LLC 
   1845 S St. Hwy MM 
   Springfield, MO 65802    

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

56

Item 8.



Page 12 of 12 
Carnahan-White, LLC – Contractor Agreement 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of 
the day and year first above written. 

CONTRACTOR 

Carnahan-White, LLC 

__________________________  
(Signature) 
 
__________________________  
(Printed Name) 

__________________________  
(Title) 

 

CITY OF REPUBLIC     

 

_________________________________ 
David Cameron, City Administrator      

 

_________________________________ 
Attest: Laura Burbridge, City Clerk      

 

Approved as to Form:    

  

______________________________ 
Scott Ison, City Attorney 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

 

57

Item 8.



SEALED BIDS MUST BE PHYSICALLY RECEIVED AT REPUBLIC CITY HALL PRIOR TO 3:00 P.M. ON Monday, May 25th, 

2020.  

City of Republic  
C/O City Clerk, Laura Burbridge 
213 N. Main 
Republic MO 65738 

• Bids will be opened by the buyer at REPUBLIC CITY HALL AT 3:00 P.M. ON Monday, May 25th, 2020.

• Bids shall be submitted on the forms provided and must be manually signed by the individual authorized to

legally bind the company.

• Bids shall be submitted with the Invitation for Bid (IFB) project name or item clearly indicated on the

outside of the mailing envelope.

• Bids received after the opening date and time will be rejected.

• The attached Terms and Conditions shall become part of any purchase order resulting from this bid.

• FAXED/EMAILED BIDS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED.

• You are invited to submit your bid to furnish the materials and/or services described herein.  Please submit

your prices/fees net of all discounts.

DESCRIPTION 

Perimeter Fencing and Kennel Barriers for the Animal Control Center  

See attached General Conditions, Specifications, and Bid Form for detailed information. 

DELIVERY:  F.O.B. DESTINATION - The articles to be furnished hereunder shall be delivered all transportation 

charges paid by the bidder to destination.  

Inquiries - All inquiries for information should be directed to: 

Garrett Brickner  Phone: (417) 732-3405 

It is the intent of the City that this Invitation for Bid promotes competitive bidding.  It shall be the Vendor’s 

responsibility to advise the City if any language, requirements, etc. any combination thereof, inadvertently restricts 

or limits the requirements stated in this Invitation for Bid to a single source. Such notification must be submitted in 

writing and must be received by the City contact listed above not later than three (3) days prior to the bid opening 

date. 

City of Republic - Invitation for Bid
Perimeter Fencing and Kennel Barriers for the Animal Control Center

Exhibit A

58

Item 8.



 
 

INSTRUCTION TO BIDDERS 
 

01. Opening Location: The Bid will be opened at the Republic City Hall 213 N. Main at 3:00 P.M. ON   
Monday, May 25th,2020. 

a. All bidders or their representatives are invited to attend the opening of the IFB. 
  

02. IFB Delivery Requirements: Any Bids received after the above stated time and date will not be considered.  
It shall be the sole responsibility of the bidder to have their Bid delivered to Republic City Hall for receipt 
on or before the due date and time indicated.   

a. If a Bid is sent by U.S. Mail, the bidder shall be responsible for its timely delivery to Republic City 
Hall.   

b. Bids delayed by mail shall not be considered, shall not be opened, and shall be rejected.   
c. Arrangements may be made for their return at the bidder’s request and expense.   
d. Bids may be mailed to Republic City Hall and accepted if the signed bid form and required 

information was mailed and received prior to the due date and time.   
e. Bids sent by email will not be accepted.  

Sealed and Marked: If sent by mail, one original signed Bid shall be submitted in one sealed package, clearly 
marked on the outside of the package with the IFB project name.  
clearly indicated on the outside of the mailing envelope and addressed to.  

City of Republic  
C/O City Clerk, Laura Burbridge 
213 N. Main 
Republic MO 65738 

03. Legal Name and Signature: Bids shall clearly indicate the legal name, address, and telephone number of 
the bidder (company, firm, corporation, partnership, or individual).   

a. Bids shall be manually signed above the printed name and title of signer on the Affidavit of 
Compliance page. 

b. The signer shall have the authority to bind the company to the submitted Bid.   
c. Failure to properly sign the Bid form shall invalidate same, and it shall not be considered for 

award.  
04. Corrections: No erasures are permitted.   

a. If a correction is necessary, draw a single line through the entered figure and enter the corrected 
figure above it.   

b. Corrections must be initialed by the person signing the Bid.  
05. Clarification and Addenda: Each bidder shall examine all Invitation for Bid documents and shall judge all 

matters relating to the adequacy and accuracy of such documents.   
a. Any inquiries or suggestions, concerning interpretation, clarification, or additional information 

pertaining to the Invitation for Bid shall be made through the listed City contact in writing or 
through email.   

b. The City of Republic shall not be responsible for oral interpretations given by any City employee, 
representative, or others.   

c. The issuance of written addenda is the official method whereby interpretation, clarification, or 
additional information can be given.    

d. It shall be the responsibility of each bidder, prior to submitting their Bid, to contact listed City 
contact with questions or inquiries.  

06. IFB Expenses: There is no expressed or implied obligation for the City of Republic to reimburse responding 
firms and the City will not reimburse for any expenses incurred in preparing responses to this request. 

07. Irrevocable Offer: Any Bid may be withdrawn up until the due date and time set for opening of the IFB.  
Any Bid not so withdrawn shall, upon opening, constitute an irrevocable offer for a minimum period of 90 

59

Item 8.



 
 

days to sell to the City the goods or services set forth in the IFB, until one or more of the Bids have been 
duly accepted by the City.  

08. Responsive and Responsible Bidder: To be responsive, a bidder shall submit a Bid which conforms in all 
material respects to the requirements set forth in the Invitation for Bid. To be a responsible bidder, the 
bidder shall have the capability in all respects to perform fully the contract requirements, and the tenacity, 
perseverance, experience, integrity, reliability, capacity, facilities, equipment and credit which will ensure 
good faith performance. The lowest responsible bidder shall mean the bidder who makes the lowest Bid to 
sell goods or services of a quality which conforms closest to the quality of goods or services set forth in the 
specifications or otherwise required by the City and who is known to be fit and capable to perform the Bid 
as made.  

09. Reserved Rights: The City reserves the right to make such investigations as it deems necessary to make 
the determination of the bidder’s responsiveness and responsibility.   

a. Such information may include, but shall not be limited to: current financial statement, verification 
of availability of equipment and personnel, and past performance records.  

10. The Right to Audit: The bidder agrees to furnish supporting detail as may be required by the City to 
support charges or invoices, to make available for audit purposes all records covering charges pertinent to 
the purchase, and to make appropriate adjustments in the event discrepancies are found.   

a. The cost of any audit will be paid by the City.   
b. The City shall have the right to audit the bidder’s records pertaining to the work/product for a 

period of three (3) years after final payment.  
11. Applicable Law: All applicable laws and regulations of the State of Missouri and the City including the City 

Procurement Regulations and Procedures will apply to any resulting agreement, contract, or purchase 
order.   

a. Any involvement with the City Procurement shall be in accordance with the Procurement 
Regulations and Procedures.    

12. Right to Protest: Appeals and remedies are provided for in the City Procurement Regulations.   
a. Protestors shall seek resolution of their complaints initially with the City Purchasing Agent.   
b. Any protest shall state the basis upon which the solicitation or award is contested and shall be 

submitted within ten (10) calendar days after such aggrieved person knew or could have 
reasonably been expected to know of the facts giving rise thereto.  

13. Ethical Standards: With respect to this IFB, if any bidder violates or is a party to a violation of the general 
ethical standards of the City Procurement Code or the State of Missouri Statues, such bidder may be 
disqualified from furnishing the goods or services for which the Bid is submitted and shall be further 
disqualified from submitting any future Bids.   

14. Collusion: By offering a submission to this Invitation for Bid, the bidder certifies the bidder has not 
divulged, discussed, or compared the Bid with other bidders and has not colluded with any other bidder or 
parties to this IFB whatsoever.  Also, the bidder certifies, and in the case of a joint Bid, each party thereto 
certifies as to their own organization, that in connection with this IFB:  

a. Any prices and/or cost data submitted have been arrived at independently, without consultation, 
communication, or agreement for the purpose of restricting competition, as to any matter relating 
to such prices and/or cost data, with any other bidder or with any competitor.  

b. Any prices and/or cost data for this Bid have not knowingly been disclosed by the bidder and will 
not knowingly be disclosed by the bidder prior to the scheduled opening directly or indirectly to 
any other bidder or to any competitor.  

c. No attempt has been made or will be made by the bidder to induce any other person or firm to 
submit or not to submit a Bid for the purpose of restricting competition.  

d. The only person or persons interested in this Bid, principal or principals are named therein and 
that no person other than therein mentioned has any interest in this Bid or in the contract to be 
entered into.  

e. No person or agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this contract upon an 
agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee 

60

Item 8.



 
 

exempting bona fide employees or established commercial agencies maintained by the Purchaser 
for the purpose of doing business.  

15. Contract Forms: Any agreement, contract, or purchase order resulting from the acceptance of a Bid shall 
be on forms either supplied by or approved by the City.  

16. Liability and Indemnity:   
a. In no event shall the City be liable to the Contractor for special, indirect, liquidated, incidental, or 

consequential damages, except those caused by the City’s gross negligence or willful or wanton 
misconduct arising out of or in any way connected with a breach of this contract.  The maximum 
liability of the City shall be limited to the amount of money to be paid or received by the City 
under this contract.   

b. The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and save harmless the City, its elected or appointed 
officials, agents and employees from and against any and all liability, suits, damages, costs 
(including attorney fees), losses, outlays and expenses from claims in any manner caused by, or 
allegedly caused by, or arising out of, or connected with, this contract, or the work or any 
subcontract thereunder (the Contractor hereby assuming full responsibility for relations with 
subcontractors), including, but not limited to, claims for personal injuries, death, property 
damage, or for damages from the award of this contract to Contractor.  

c. The Contractor shall indemnify and hold the City harmless from all wages or overtime 
compensation due any employees in rendering services pursuant to this agreement or any 
subcontract, including payment of reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs in the defense of any claim 
made under the Fair Labor Standards Act, the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law or any other federal 
or state law.  

17. IFB Forms, Variances, and Alternates: Bids must be submitted on attached City IFB forms, although 
additional information may be attached.   

a. Bidders must indicate any variances from the City requested specifications and/or terms and 
conditions, on the IFB Affidavit of Compliance.   

b. Otherwise, bidders must fully comply with the City requested specifications and terms and 
conditions.  Alternate Bids may or may not be considered at the sole discretion of the City 
Purchasing Agent.  

18. Bid Form: All blank spaces must be completed with the appropriate response.   
a. The bidder must state the price, written in ink, for what is proposed to complete each item of the 

project.   
b. Bidders shall insert the words “no bid” in the space provided for an item for which no Bid is made.   
c. The bidder shall submit an executed Bid form, affidavit of compliance with other requested 

documents.  
19. Modifications or Withdrawal of Bid: A modification for a Bid already received will be considered only if 

the modification is received prior to the time announced for opening of Bids.   
a. All modifications shall be made in writing, executed, and submitted on the same form and manner 

as the original Bid.   
b. Modifications submitted by telephone, fax, or email will not be considered.  

20. No Bid: If not submitting a Bid, respond by returning the “Statement of No Bid” no later than the stated 
Bid opening time and date, and explain the reason in the space provided.    

21. Errors in Bids: Bidders or their authorized representatives are expected to fully inform themselves as to 
the conditions, requirements, and specifications before submitting Bids; failure to do so will be at the 
bidder’s own risk.  Neither law nor regulations make allowance for errors either of omission or 
commission on the part of bidders.  In case of error of extension of prices in the Bid, the unit price shall 
govern.  

22. Prices: Bid give both unit price and extended total.   
a. Price must be stated in units of quantity specified in the bidding specifications.  In case of 

discrepancy in computing the amount of the Bid, the unit price of the Bid will govern.   

61

Item 8.



 
 

b. All prices shall be F.O.B. destination, freight prepaid (unless otherwise stated in special 
conditions).  FOB, as used in this IFB, shall mean that Seller, at their own expense, shall transport 
the equipment and/or materials and bear the risk of loss from Sellers location to a specified 
location in the City of Republic, MO 65738.  Buyer shall not take title to the materials or 
equipment until it is delivered and accepted by Buyer at the address specified within the City of 
Republic.     

c. Each item must be bid separately and no attempt is to be made to tie any item or items in with 
any other item or items.   

d. If a bidder offers a discount on payment terms, the discount time will be computed from the date 
of satisfactory delivery at place of acceptance and receipt of correct invoice at the office specified.   

e. Payment terms shall be Net 30 if not otherwise specified.   
f. Pre-payment terms are not acceptable.  

23. Discounts: Any and all discounts except cash discounts for prompt payments must be incorporated as a 
reduction in the Bid price and not shown separately.   

a. The price as shown on the Bid shall be the price used in determining award(s).  
24. Descriptive Information: All equipment, materials, and articles incorporated in the product/work covered 

by this IFB are to be new and of suitable grade for the purpose intended.   
a. Brand or trade names referenced in specifications are for comparison purposes only.   
b. Bidders may submit Bids on items manufactured by other than the manufacturer specified when 

an “or equal” is stated.    
25. Deviations to Specifications and Requirements: When bidding on an “or equal,” Bids must be 

accompanied with all descriptive information necessary for an evaluation of the proposed material or 
equipment such as the detailed drawings and specifications, certified operation and test data, and 
experience records.   

a. Failure of any bidder to furnish the data necessary to determine whether the product is 
equivalent, may be cause for rejection of the specific item(s) to which it pertains.  

b. All deviations from the specifications must be noted in detail by the bidder on the Affidavit of 
Compliance form, at the time of submittal of Bid.   

c. The absence of listed deviations at the time of submittal of the Bid will hold the bidder strictly 
accountable to the specifications as written.   

d. Any deviation from the specifications as written and accepted by the City may be grounds for 
rejection of the material and/or equipment when delivered.  

26. Samples (if required): (NOT APPLICABLE) 
27. Quality Guaranty: If any product delivered does not meet applicable specifications or if the product will 

not produce the effect that the bidder represents to the City, the bidder shall pick up the product from the 
City at no expense.  Also, the bidder shall refund to the City any money which has been paid for same.   

a. The bidder will be responsible for attorney fees in the event the bidder defaults and court action is 
required.    

28. Quality Terms: The City reserves the right to reject any or all materials if, in its judgment, the item reflects 
unsatisfactory workmanship, manufacturing, or shipping damages.   

29. Tax-Exempt: The City is exempt from sales taxes and Federal Excise Taxes: Missouri Tax ID Number 
12492990.  

30. Awards:  
a. Unless otherwise stated in the Invitation for Bid, cash discounts for prompt payment of invoices 

will not be considered in the evaluation of prices. However, such discounts are encouraged to 
motivate prompt payment.  

b. As the best interest of the City may require, the right is reserved to make awards by item, group of 
items, all or none or a combination thereof; to reject any and all Bids or waive any minor 
irregularity or technicality in Bids received.  

62

Item 8.



 
 

c. Awards will be made to the Bidder whose Bid (1) meets the specifications and all other 
requirements of the Invitation for Bid and (2) is the lowest and best Bid, considering price, 
delivery, responsibility of the bidder, and all other relevant factors.    

31. Authorized Product Representation: The successful bidder(s) by virtue of submitting the name and 
specifications of a manufacturer’s product will be required to furnish the named manufacturer’s product.   

a. By virtue of submission of the stated documents, it will be presumed by the City that the bidder(s) 
is legally authorized to submit and the successful bidder(s) will be legally bound to perform 
according to the documents.  

32. Regulations: It shall be the responsibility of each bidder to assure compliance with OSHA, EPA, Federal, 
State of Missouri, and City rules, regulations, or other requirements, as each may apply.  
a. E-VERIFY COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS: All Contractors/Contractors for contracts exceeding five 
thousand dollars shall by sworn affidavit and provision of documentation, affirm its enrollment and 
participation in a federal work authorization program with respect to the employees working in 
connection with the contracted services. Every such business entity shall also sign an affidavit affirming 
that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the 
contracted services.  
b. Proposers are informed the Project is subject to the requirements of Section 292.675, RSMo., which 
requires all contractors or subcontractors doing work on the Project to provide and require its on-site 
employees to complete a ten (10)hour course in construction safety and health approved by the 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration (“OSHA”) or a similar program approved by the Missouri 
Department of Labor and Industrial Relations which is at least as stringent as an approved OSHA program. 
The training must be completed within sixty (60) days of the date work on the Project commences. On-site 
employees found on the worksite without documentation of the required training shall have twenty (20) 
days to produce such documentation.  
c. Pursuant to Section 292.675 RSMo. The Contractor shall forfeit to the City as a penalty two thousand 
five hundred dollars ($2,500.00), plus one hundred dollars ($100.00) for each on-site employee employed 
by the Contractor or its Subcontractor, for each calendar day, or portion thereof, Such on-site employee is 
employed without the construction safety training required in the above paragraph. 
d. Section 208.009 RSMo. shall apply to any contracts awarded under this bid. 

33. Termination of Award: Any failure of the bidder to satisfy the requirements of the City shall be reason for 
termination of the award.   

a. Any Bid may be rejected in whole or in part for any reason by the City.  
34. Royalties and Patents: The successful bidder(s) shall pay all royalties and license fees for equipment or 

processes in conjunction with the equipment being furnished.   
a. Bidder shall defend all suits or claims for infringement of any patent right and shall hold the City 

harmless from loss on account or cost and attorney’s fees incurred.  
35. Equal Employment Opportunity Clause: The City of Republic, in accordance with the provision of Title VI 

of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252) and the Regulations of the Department of Commerce (15 CFR, 
Part 8) issued pursuant to such Act, hereby notifies all bidders that affirmatively ensure that in any 
contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement that minority businesses will be afforded full 
opportunity to submit Bids in response to this advertisement and will not be discriminated against on the 
grounds of race, color, or national origin in consideration for award.  

36. Prevailing Wages: If the public works construction project is valued at more than $75,000, the successful 

bidder shall comply with applicable State provisions concerning the payment of prevailing wages on public 

works projects.  Accordingly, all workers performing work under the City Contractor Agreement shall be 

paid not less than the prevailing hourly rate of wages as determined by the Department of Labor and 

Industrial Relations of the State of Missouri (or “MoDOLIR”).   

37. Insurance Requirements: Without limiting any of the other obligations or liabilities of the Contractor, the 
Contractor shall secure and maintain at its own cost and expense, throughout the duration of this Contract 
and until the work is completed and accepted by the City, insurance of such types and in such amounts as 
may be necessary to protect it and the interests of the City against all hazards or risks of loss as hereunder 63

Item 8.



 
 

specified or which may arise out of the performance of the Contract Documents.  The form and limits of 
such insurance, together with the underwriter thereof in each case, are subject to approval by the City.  At 
a minimum, proof of Workers Compensation, Liability, and Automobile Liability insurance shall be 
presented. Regardless of such approval, it shall be the responsibility of the contractor to maintain adequate 
insurance coverage at all times during the term of the Contract.  Failure of the Contractor to maintain 
coverage shall not relieve it of any contractual responsibility or obligation or liability under the Contract 
Documents. The limits of liability insurance shall be as established annually and published by the Secretary 
of State in the Missouri Registry.  For this project, the required insurance amounts shall be: Workers’ 
Compensation - Statutory coverage per RSMo. 287.010 et seq; Employer’s Liability - $1,000,000.00; 
Commercial General Liability Insurance - $2,804,046 for all claims arising out of a single accident or 
occurrence and $420,606 for any one person in a single accident or occurrence; Automobile Liability 
Insurance - covering bodily injury and property damage for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles, with 
limits of $2,804,046 for all claims arising out of a single accident or occurrence and $420,606 for any one 
person in a single accident or occurrence. 

38. Performance Bond and Labor & Materials Payment Bond: Pursuant to RSMo. 107.170, if the project is 
estimated to exceed $50,000.00, the Contractor shall execute a Performance and Maintenance Bond and a 
Labor and Materials Payment Bond with surety approved by the City and on the forms approved by the City, 
each bond shall be in the amount of the total project cost, conditioned upon the full and faithful 
performance of all major terms and conditions of the Agreement and payment of all labor and material 
supplies.   

39. Nonresident/Foreign Contractors: The Contractor shall procure and maintain during the life of this contract: 
a. If the Contractor is a foreign corporation, a certificate of authority to transact business in the State of 
Missouri from the Secretary of State, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 351.570 RSMo. 
b. A certificate from the Missouri Director of Revenue evidencing compliance with the transient employer 
financial assurance law, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 285.230 RSMo. 

40. Bid Tabulation: Bidders may request a copy of the bid tabulation of the Invitation for Bid.  
41. Budgetary Constraints: The City reserves the right to reduce or increase the quantity, retract any item 

from the Bid, or upon notification, terminate entire agreement without any obligations or penalty based 
upon availability of funds.   

42. Additional Purchases by Other Public Agencies: The bidder by submitting a Bid authorizes other public 
agencies to “Piggy-Back” or purchase equipment and services being proposed in this Invitation for Bid 
unless otherwise noted on the Affidavit of Compliance Form.  

43. Order of Precedence: Any and all Special/General Conditions and Specifications attached hereto, which 
varies from the instruction to bidders, shall take precedence.  

44. Affidavit for Service Contracts: The Bidder represents, in accordance with RSMO 285.530.2 that they have 
not employed, or subcontracted with, unauthorized aliens in connection with the scope of work to be 
done under the IFB and agrees to provide an affidavit to the City of Republic affirming that they have not, 
and will not in connection with the IFB, knowingly employ, or subcontract with, any person who is an 
unauthorized alien.  

45. Business License – It will be the requirement of the contractor to acquire a City of Republic business 
license before they may begin work on the project.  

46. Inspection and Acceptance: No item(s) received by the City pursuant to this contract shall be deemed 
accepted until the City has had reasonable opportunity to inspect the item(s).   

a. Any item(s) which are discovered to be defective or which do not conform to any warranty of the 
Seller upon inspection may be returned at the seller’s expense for full credit or replacement.   

b. If at a later time, the defects were not ascertainable upon the initial inspection may also be 
returned at the Seller's expense for full credit or replacement.   

c. The City's return of defective items shall not exclude any other legal, equitable or contractual 
remedies the City may have. 

47. Davis-Bacon Act: If the Instructions to Bidders have indicated that the Project is financed in whole or in 
part from Federal funds, then this contract shall be subject to all applicable federal statutes, rules and 

64

Item 8.



 
 

regulations, including provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act, 40 U.S.C. §3141 et seq., and the “Federal Labor 
Standards Provisions,” incorporated into this Contract.  Where the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law and the 
Davis-Bacon Act require payment of different wages for work performed under this Contract, the 
Contractor and all Subcontractors shall pay the greater of the wages required under either law. 

48. Jurisdiction and Venue: This IFB and any Agreement required under it, shall be taken and deemed to have 
been fully executed and made by the parties herein and governed by the laws of the State of Missouri for 
all purposes and intents.  Venue under this Agreement or any disputes that come from it shall be in the 
Circuit Court of Greene County, Missouri.  THE PARTIES HEREBY WAIVE THEIR RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL 
UNDER ANY APPLICABLE STATUTE, COMMON LAW OR FEDERAL OR STATE CONSTITUTION. 

49. Conflict of Interest: In participating in this IFB and accepting an Agreement, Contractor certifies that no 
salaried officer or employee of the City, and no member of the City Council or Mayor, has a financial 
interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement.  Any federal regulations and applicable provisions in 
Section 105.450 et seq., RSMo. shall not be violated. 

50. Sovereign Immunity: In no event shall any language or requirement in this IFB or any Agreement that 
comes from this IFB be construed as or constitute a waiver or limitation of City’s defenses with regard to 
sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, or official immunity under federal or state constitutions, 
states, and/or laws. 

51. Terms: The City of Republic reserves the right to reject any and all proposals received from this bid.   It 
further has the right to negotiate with any qualified source, or to cancel in part or in its entirety this bid.  
The City also reserves the right to modify, suspend, or terminate at its sole discretion any and all aspects 
of this bud process, to obtain further information from any and all respondents, and to waive any defects 
as to form or content of the bid or any submissions by any firm. This bud does not commit the City to 
award a contract, to defray any costs incurred in the preparation of a response to this request, or to 
procure or contract for services. All submissions become the property of the City as public record. All 
submissions may be subject to public review upon request. 

 

   

  

65

Item 8.



BID SPECIFICATIONS 

The requested proposals are for furnishing and installation of all materials and labor in the attached Kennel 
Enclosures  

 
To supply and install 40 dog pens with 6' tall chain link with 3' wide gates. The 20 inside cages approximately 6' 10" x 10' 
with a 4' tall aluminum divider on each cage. The 20 outside cages approximately 6' x 9' 6" with a top, and outside 
perimeter fence of approximately 120' of 6' tall chain link with 2 - 3' wide gates. All materials Shall be black poly coated 
with top and bottom rails on all fence with a 9 ga fused bonded chain link. Post Shall be installed with a 1/4" x 6" x 6" 
plate and 1/2" x 4" anchor bolts. Please see Area’s 1&2 on the following plan sheet for details 

66

Item 8.



67

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

SUMMARY OF WORK 
01 1100 - 1 

 

SUMMARY OF WORK 01 1100 
 

 

GENERAL 
 

WORK UNDER THIS CONTRACT 
 

Construction and completion of Kennel Enclosures for Republic Animal Control under a 
single lump sum contract. 

 

COORDINATION 
 

Coordinate work with work performed by Owner, including storage of materials and 
equipment and connections and execution of work. 

 

Provide administrative and supervisory requirements necessary for coordination of 
work, including meetings, administrative and supervisory personnel, records, reports, 
limitations for use of site, installation provisions, cutting and patching, cleaning, 
protection, conservation, and salvage. Coordinate work with work performed by 
Owner, including storage of materials and equipment, and connections and execution 
of work. 

 

     CONTRACTOR USE OF PREMISES 
 

During the Contract Period the existing building and parking areas will be in use and 
occupied. While new work is under construction, confine construction operations, 
materials, equipment and appliances, within the immediate vicinity of the areas 
involved (subject to the approval of the Architect at all times), and do not 
unreasonably obstruct, or interfere with any phase of the Owner’s activities. Make 
any changes in or alterations to the existing facilities, including utility service, without 
disrupting continuous use by the Owner. 

 

Confine operations at site to areas permitted under Contract. Portions of site beyond 
areas on which work is indicated are not to be disturbed. Conform to site rules and 
regulations affecting work while engaged in project construction. 

 

    Lock automotive type vehicles, such as passenger cars and trucks and other 
mechanized or motorized construction equipment, when parked and unattended, to 
prevent unauthorized use. Do not leave vehicles or equipment unattended with motor 
running or ignition key in place. 

 

INDUSTRY STANDARDS 
 

Applicability of Standards: Except where more explicit or stringent requirements are 
written into the contract documents, applicable construction industry standards have 
the same force and effect as if bound into or copied directly into the contract 
documents. Such industry standards are made a part of the contract documents by 
reference. Individual specification sections indicate which codes and standards the 
Contractor must keep available at project site for reference. 

 

Publication Dates: Except as otherwise indicated, where compliance with an industry 
standard is required, comply with standard in effect as of date of contract documents. 

68

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

SUMMARY OF WORK 
01 1100 - 2 

 

    Conflicting Requirements: Where compliance with two or more standards is 
specified, and where these standards establish different or conflicting requirements 
for minimum quantities or quality levels, the most stringent requirement will be 
enforced, unless the contract documents specifically indicate otherwise. Refer 
requirements that are different, but apparently equal, and uncertainties as to which 
quality level is more stringent to the Architect for a decision before proceeding. 

 

Copies of Standards: The Contract Documents require that each entity performing 
work be experienced in that part of the work being performed. Each entity is also 
required to be familiar with industry standards applicable to that part of the work. 
Copies of applicable standards are not bound with the contract documents. Where 
copies of standards are needed for proper performance of the work, the Contractor is 
required to obtain such copies directly from the publication source. 

 

Abbreviations And Names: Trade association names and titles of general standards 
are frequently abbreviated. Where acronyms or abbreviations are used in the 
specifications or other contract documents they are defined to mean the recognized 
name of the trade association, standards generating organization, governing 
authority, or other entity applicable to the context of the text provisions. 

 

     ASBESTOS 
 

Do not incorporate into the Work any products or materials containing asbestos. 
 

Notify the Owner of any portion of the Work which Contractor knows or has reason to 
believe contains asbestos and take necessary procedures to prevent damage or 
release of asbestos fibers. Any asbestos abatement procedures required and not 
identified as Work of this Contract shall be performed under a Change Order as a 
changed condition, or by Owner’s separate contractor. A change in contract time, as 
determined by the Architect, shall be the Contractor’s only remedy for delay due to 
unidentified asbestos abatement work. 

 

PRODUCTS -- (Not Applicable) 

EXECUTION -- (Not Applicable) 

 

END OF SECTION 

69

Item 8.



ALTERNATES 
01 2300/1 

RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

 

ALTERNATES 01 2300 
 

 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 

 
AREA 1: ALTERNATE (INDOOR KENNELS — CHAIN LINK) 

 
A. Deduct alternate price to provide heavy-duty chain-link panels and gates in lieu of 

plastic and stainless steel in the Base Bid. 

 

B. State on your Bid Form the amount to deduct from the Base Bid if this alternate is 

accepted. 

 

AREA 2: ALTERNATE (OUTDOOR KENNELS — CHAIN LINK) 

 
A. Deduct alternate to provide heavy-duty chain-link panels and gates in lieu of plastic and 

stainless steel in the Base Bid. 

 

B. State on your Bid Form the amount to deduct from the Base Bid if this alternate is 

accepted. 

 

 

END OF SECTION 

70

Item 8.



ALTERNATES 
01 2300/2 

RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BLANK PAGE 

71

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

SUBSTITUTIONS & PRODUCT OPTIONS 
01 2500 - 1 

 

SUBSTITUTIONS & PRODUCT OPTIONS 01 2500 
 

 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 

 

1.1 SCOPE 
 

A. Provide all requests for substitutions and make product selections from specified 
product options, as required by the Bidding and Contract Documents and in strict 
accordance with the provisions of this section. 

 

1.2 RELATED WORK SPECIFIED IN OTHER SECTIONS 
 

A. Contractual Requirements for Submittals: 00 7200 General Conditions and 00 7300 
Supplementary Conditions. 

 

B. Submission Requirements: 01 3000 Administrative Requirements, except submit 
only one copy. 

 

C. Substitution Request Requirements: 00 2113 Instructions to Bidders. 
 

1.3 PRE-BID SUBSTITUTION REQUESTS 
 

A. The naming of specified items on the drawings or in the specifications means that 
such named items are specifically desired by the Architect and/or Owner. Whether or 
not the words "or equal" or "or acceptable equal" follows such named items, 
substitution requests may be submitted. To receive consideration requests for 
substitution must be received by the Architect no later than 3 calendar days prior to 
bid opening Requests for substitution received by the Architect later than 3 calendar 
days prior to bid opening may be rejected without review as "non-responsive". 

 

B. Substitution Request Form: Requests must be submitted on copies of the form 
included in the Project Manual, and must name the exact item proposed with 
complete information filled out and back-up data attached as specified on the form. 
Use separate Substitution Request Form for each item. Submit electronic copy of 
form and back-up data for architectural, mechanical and electrical items. Requests 
showing only brand name or manufacturer, or otherwise incomplete, will not be 
honored. Submit samples if requested. 

 

C. It is not possible or practical to identify in the Contract Documents every factor and 
criteria that has bearing on the design and quality of materials and construction of 
which the Architect is aware and must consider in evaluating a proposed substitution 
and that may be a valid cause for non-acceptance. The Architect is the sole judge as 
to the equality and acceptability of proposed substitutions. Only written acceptances 
will be held valid by the Architect. Under no circumstances shall the Architect's 
acceptance of any such substitution relieve the Contractor from timely, complete, full 
and proper performance of the work. 

 

D. After the contract is awarded, if revision or arrangement of other equipment is 
required by any substituted item, drawings showing these revisions must be prepared 
and submitted as specified for Shop Drawings submittals. 

72

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

SUBSTITUTIONS & PRODUCT OPTIONS 
01 2500 - 2 

 

1.4 AFTER-AWARD-OF-CONTRACT SUBSTITUTION REQUESTS 
 

A. Substitution requests will be considered only under the following conditions: 

1. Unavailability of specified product due to a strike, lockout, bankruptcy, 
discontinuance of the manufacturer of a product, or natural disasters. Submit 
proof that orders were placed within 10 days after review by the Architect of the 
item listed in the specifications. Failure to order materials in time for proper 
delivery is not an acceptable condition. 

2. When a guarantee of performance is required and, in the judgment of the 
Contractor, the specified product or process will not produce the desired result. 

3. Substantial advantage is offered Owner after deducting offsetting disadvantages 
including delays; additional compensation to Architect for redesign, investigation, 
evaluation, and other necessary services; and similar considerations. 

4. Proposal includes all necessary coordination and modifications to design, 
required appurtenances, et cetera, for complete and proper functioning of 
proposed substitutions, and includes a waiver of all claims for additional costs, 
under Contractor’s responsibility, which may subsequently become apparent. 

 

B. Submit request for such substitutions in writing to the Architect within 10 days of the 
date of ascertaining unavailability of material or equipment specified, or that the 
performance cannot be guaranteed. 

 

C. If any substitution will affect a correlated function, adjacent construction, or the work 
of other trades or contractors, the necessary changes and modifications to the 
affected work shall be considered as part of the substitution, to be accomplished 
without additional cost to the Owner, if and when accepted. 

 

D. It is not possible or practical to identify in the Contract Documents every factor and 
criteria that has bearing on the design and quality of materials and construction of 
which the Architect is aware and must consider in evaluating a proposed substitution 
and that may be a valid cause for non-acceptance. Approved substitutions will be 
effected by a Change Order. Under no circumstances shall the Architect's 
acceptance of any such substitution relieve the Contractor from timely, full and proper 
performance of the work. 

 

E. Contractor’s submittal of, and Architect’s acceptance of, shop drawings, product data, 
or samples which indicate Work not complying with requirements of Contract 
Documents, does not constitute an acceptable and valid request for, nor approval of, 
a substitution. 

 

1.5 PRODUCT OPTIONS 
 

A. General Limitations: Where possible, provide entire required quantity of each generic 
product, material, or equipment from a single source; and, where not possible to do 
so, match separate procurements as closely as possible. To extent selection process 
is under Contractor’s control, provide compatible products, materials and equipment. 
Where available and complying with requirements, provide standard products which 
have been used previously and successfully in similar applications, and which are 
recommended by the manufacturer for the application indicated. 

 

B. Product Selections: Comply with following for selection of products, materials, and 
equipment: 

1. Single Product Named: Where "no substitute" is specified provide only that 

73

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

SUBSTITUTIONS & PRODUCT OPTIONS 
01 2500 - 3 

 

product, unless determined to be unavailable, non-compatible with the work, or 
non-complying with Contract Documents or governing regulations. 

2. One or More Products Named (with or without "or acceptable equal"): Provide 
one of the named products which complies with contract Documents, identified 
as the basis of the design, or comply with requirements for gaining approval on 
"substitution" to select and use an unnamed product (i.e., implied "or equal"). 

3. Compliance With Standards: Selection of product which complies with Contract 
Documents, including applicable standards, is Contractor’s option, subject to 
Architect’s approval. 

4. Performance Requirements: Selection of product which has been tested to show 
compliance with Contract Documents, including indicated performances, is 
Contractor’s option, subject to Architect’s approval. 

5. Prescriptive Requirements: Selection of product which has been certified by 
manufacturer to comply with Contract Documents, including prescriptive 
requirements, is Contractor’s option, subject to Architect’s approval. 

6. Visual Requirements: Where indicated to be selected from manufacturer’s 
standard options, selection is Architect’s, subsequent to determination or 
selection of manufacturer (Contractor’s option). Where indicated to be selected 
from among standard options available within industry, selection is Architect’s 
prior to determination or selection of manufacturer. 

7. Other Materials: All other materials, not specifically described, but required for a 
complete and proper installation the Work, shall be new, first quality of their 
respective kinds, and as selected by the Contractor subject to the approval of the 
Architect. 

C. Refer to Section 01 6000 Product Requirements for general products, materials, 
equipment, and installation requirements which applies to all of the Work. 

 

1.6 SUBMITTALS 
 

A. Requests for Substitutions: Submit requests for substitutions on copies of 
Substitution Request Form, fully identified for product, material or method being 
replaced by substitution, including related specification section(s) and drawing 
number(s), and fully documented to show compliance with requirements for 
substitutions. Include full documentation, including: Product data, samples where 
appropriate, detailed performance comparisons and evaluation, testing laboratory 
reports where applicable, coordination information for effect on other work and time 
schedule, cost information for proposed change order, Contractor’s general 
certification of recommended substitution, and similar information relevant to 
circumstances. 

 

B. Certification: Submit with substitution request certification by Contractor to the effect 
that, in its opinion and after its thorough evaluation, proposed substitution will result in 
total work which is equal to or better than the work originally required by Contract 
Documents, in every respect of significance except as specifically stated in 
certification; and that it will perform adequately in application indicated, regardless of 
equality and exceptions thereto. Include in certification, Contractor’s waiver of rights 
to additional payment and time which may subsequently be necessitated, by failure of 
substitution to perform adequately, and for required work to make corrections thereof 
in accordance with provisions of the Contract Documents. 

 

C. Change Order Procedure: Submit requests for substitutions which propose a change 
in either the Contract Sum or Contract Time, as required by this section and in form 
and by procedures required for change order proposals. 

74

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

SUBSTITUTIONS & PRODUCT OPTIONS 
01 2500 - 4 

 

D. Action by Architect: Architect will request additional information or documentation as 
may be needed for his evaluation of request. Architect will notify the Contractor of 
either acceptance or rejection of proposed substitution. Rejection will include 
statement of reasons for rejection (non-compliances with requirements for requested 
substitutions, or other sufficient reasons). 

 

E. Approval: Approval of substitution is possible only by written approval. Approval of 
substitution that affect a change in cost or time is possible only by Change Order 
procedure. 

 

PART 2 - NOT USED. 
 

PART 3 - NOT USED. 
 

 

END OF SECTION 

75

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

ADMINISTRATIVE  REQUIREMENTS 

01 3000 - 1 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS 01 3000 
 

 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 

 

1.1 SCOPE 
 

A. Provide all submittals, including shop drawings, product data, samples, schedules, 
reports, and requests for substitutions, as required by the Bidding and Contract 
Documents and in strict accordance with the provisions of this section. 

 

1.2 RELATED WORK SPECIFIED IN OTHER SECTIONS 
 

A. Contractual Requirements for Submittals: 00 7200 General Conditions and 00 7300 
Supplementary Conditions. 

 

B. Individual Submittals Required: Pertinent sections of these specifications. 
 

C. Substitution Request Requirements: 00 1000 Bid Solicitation, and 01 2500 Product 
Substitution Procedures. 

 

PART 2 - PRODUCTS 
 

2.1 SHOP DRAWINGS 
 

A. Submit required shop drawings drawn to a scale sufficiently large to show all 
pertinent features of the item and its method of connection to the work. Submit 
related shop drawings together; partial submittals will not be accepted. Provide 
manufacturer’s name and model number of prefabricated items and indicate methods 
of attachment and clearances required relative to other trades affecting all elements 
of the work. Identify deviations from the Contract Documents (if any), check 
dimensions, check that trades have been coordinated and that no conflict will develop 
in this installation. Originator shall indicate its review and check of shop drawings 
with reviewer's initials. After reviewing the shop drawings and prior to submitting to 
Architect, indicate Contractor's approval by signing and dating on Contractor's stamp. 
Upon review by Architect shop drawings that appear not to be thoroughly coordinated 
and checked are subject to rejection without further review. Failure to follow these 
procedures will result in rejection of the submission and no additional contract time 
will be allowed for delay from this cause. 

 

2.2 PRODUCT DATA AND SAMPLES 
 

A. Submit electronic copies of product data for Architect's review for items specified in 
the various specification sections. Submit samples, where specified, along with 
product data. Make all submissions affecting color selection within 30 days after 
signing the contract. Mark data clearly to indicate exact items submitted, and note 
deviations from Contract Documents (if any). After reviewing the submittals, indicate 
approval by signing and dating on Contractor’s stamp, and submit to the Architect for 
review. 

76

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

ADMINISTRATIVE  REQUIREMENTS 

01 3000 - 2 

 

2.3 PROGRESS SCHEDULE 
 

A. Within 7 days after Notice to Proceed, submit to the Architect a bar- chart type 
progress schedule indicating a time bar for each trade or operation of work to be 
performed at the site. Time bar shall demonstrate planned work, properly sequenced 
and intermeshed, for expeditious completion of work. Identify phases if required. 

 

B. Submit progress schedule on reproducible stock as specified for shop drawing. 
 

C. Distribute progress schedule including all updates to Architect, Owner, 
subcontractors, suppliers, fabricators, and others with a need-to-know schedule 
compliance requirement. 

 

2.4 SCHEDULE OF VALUES 
 

A. Submit schedule of values on AIA Document G703 (Continuation Sheet for G702). 
Itemize separate line cost for each major item of work and each subcontracted item of 
work. 

 

2.5 APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT 
 

A. Submit Application and Certificate for Payment in format established by AIA 
Document G702 and G703. 

 

2.6 MANUAL 
 

A. Upon completion of the work and prior to final payment, submit to the Architect a flash 
drive, containing five indexed sections as follows: 

1. Subcontractors: A listing of all subcontractors for the project, including portions 
of work done, address and telephone number of the firm, and contact at the firm 
familiar with the project. 

2. Guaranties and Warranties: One fully executed copy of each guaranty and 
warranty specified. 

3. Certificates: One fully executed copy of each certificate specified. 

4. Instructions: One operating, service, and maintenance manual or instruction 
sheet for each item specified. 

5. List of Record Drawings, Shop Drawings, Product Data, and Samples. 

2.7 DRAWINGS AND SUBMITTALS PACKAGE 
 

A. Upon completion of the work and prior to final payment, submit a flash drive labeled 
with the project name and containing one copy of all final record drawings, 
specifications, shop drawings, product data, and samples. In addition, submit one set 
of record drawings to be retained by the Architect. 

 

PART 3 - EXECUTION 
 

3.1 IDENTIFICATION OF SUBMITTALS 
 

A. Completely identify each submittal and resubmittal by showing at least the following 
information (on the transmittal letter), without exception. Submittals without complete 
identification are subject to return without review. 

1. Name and address of submitter, plus name and telephone number of the 

77

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

ADMINISTRATIVE  REQUIREMENTS 

01 3000 - 3 

 

individual who may be contacted for further information. 
2. Name of project as it appears on each page of these specifications. 
3. Drawing number and specifications section number to which the submittal 

applies. 
4. Whether this is an original submittal or resubmittal. 

5. Contractor’s approval stamp certifying its review and coordination. 
 

3.2 TIMING OF SUBMITTALS 
 

A. General: Make all submittals far enough in advance of scheduled dates of installation 
to provide all required time for reviews, for securing necessary approvals, for possible 
revision and re-submittal, and for placing orders and securing delivery. 

 

B. Delays: Costs of delays due to late submittals may be back-charged as necessary 

and shall not be borne by the Owner or Architect. 
 

 

END OF SECTION 

78

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

ADMINISTRATIVE  REQUIREMENTS 

01 3000 - 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BLANK PAGE 

79

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

PROJECT  MANAGEMENT  & COORDINATION 

01 3100 - 1 

 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT & COORDINATION 01 3100 
 

 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 

 

1.1 RELATED DOCUMENTS 
 

A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and 
Supplementary Conditions and Division 1 General Requirements Sections apply to all 
Work. 

 

1.2 ADMINISTRATION AND SUPERVISION 
 

A. Coordination: Coordinate various elements of the Work and entities engaged to 
perform the Work; and coordinate the Work with existing conditions, and with Work by 
separate contractors (if any) and the Owner. 

 

B. Pre-Construction Meeting: Within 15 days after execution of agreement, the Architect 
will prepare an agenda and schedule a pre-construction meeting. Written notice of 
meeting date, time and place, and agenda items will be sent to the Owner, 
Contractor, and Separate Contractors. The Contractor shall be responsible for 
notifying major Subcontractors of meeting. 

 

C. Project Meetings: Conduct general progress and coordination meetings at least once 
weekly, attended by a representative of each primary entity engaged for performance 
of the Work. Hold additional meetings as progress of work dictates or when 
requested by the Architect. At least 4 days prior to meeting, send written notice of 
meeting date, time and place, and agenda of meeting to the Owner, Architect, 
Separate Contractors, Subcontractors and others as pertinent to agenda. Record 
discussions and decisions, and within 4 days distribute copies to those attending and 
others affected including the Architect. Schedule meetings to coordinate with 
preparation of payment requests. 

 

1.3 INSPECTIONS AND TESTS 
 

A. General: Provide required inspection and testing services specified to be by 
independent agencies, where not indicated specifically as Owner's responsibility (this 
provision supplements General Conditions). Neither inspection and test results nor 
failure thereof to disclose deficiencies relieves Contractor of responsibility to comply 
with requirements of Contract Documents. Provide services to inspection and testing 
agencies (Owner’s and Contractor's), including taking and delivery of samples, 
patching Work and similar assistance. Require engaged agencies to perform 
indicated testing and submit reports promptly; and to report significant observations 
having an important bearing on the Work, to the Architect by the most expeditious 
means possible. 

 

1.4 FIELD ENGINEERING AND LAYOUT 
 

A. General: Working from lines and levels established by the property survey, and as 
shown in relation to the Work, establish and maintain bench marks and other 
dependable markers to set the lines and levels for the Work at each level of 
construction and elsewhere on the Site as needed to properly locate every element of 
the Work of the entire Project. Calculate and measure required dimensions as shown 
(within recognized tolerances if not otherwise indicated); do not scale the drawings to 

80

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

PROJECT  MANAGEMENT  & COORDINATION 

01 3100 - 2 

 

determine dimensions. Maintain a log of layout work. Record deviations (if any) from 
Contract Document information on existing conditions, and review with Architect at 
time of discovery. Continuously advise tradesmen performing the Work, of the 
marked lines and levels provided for use in the layout of the Work. 

 

1.5 CUTTING AND PATCHING 
 

A. Structural Work: Do not cut and patch structural work in a manner resulting in a 
reduction of load carrying capacity or load/deflection ratio. Submit proposal and 
request and obtain Architect’s approval before proceeding with cutting and patching 
of structural work. 

 

B. Operational/Safety Limitations: Do not cut and patch operational elements and safety 
components in a manner resulting in decreased performance, shortened useful life, or 
increased maintenance. Submit proposals and requests and obtain Architect’s 
acceptance before proceeding with cutting and patching of such work. 

 

C. Visual/Quality Limitations: Do not cut and patch Work exposed to view (exterior and 
interior) in a manner resulting in noticeable reduction of visual qualities and similar 
qualities, as judged by the Architect. 

 

D. Limitations on Approvals: Architect’s approval to proceed with cutting and patching 
does not waive right to later require removal/replacement of Work found to be cut and 
patched in an unsatisfactory manner, as judged by the Architect. 

 
 

PART 2 - NOT USED 

PART 3 - NOT USED 

 

END OF SECTION 

81

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

SPECIAL PROCEDURES 

01 3500 - 1 

 

SPECIAL PROCEDURES 01 3500 
 

 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 

 

1.1 SCOPE 
 

A. Administrative and procedural requirements for Special Procedures. 
 

1.2 ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. Acceleration of Work: 

1. Complete the Work in accordance with Construction Schedule. If Contractor falls 
behind schedule, take such actions as are necessary, at no additional expense to 
Owner, to bring progress of the Work back in accordance with schedule. 

2. Owner may request proposal for completion of the Work at date earlier than 
expiration of Contract Time: 
a. Promptly provide requested proposal showing cost of such acceleration of 

the Work. Consult with owner and Architect regarding possible options to 
decrease cost of such acceleration. 

b. If Owner determines to order acceleration of the Work, change in Contract 
Sum and Contract Time resulting from acceleration will be included in a 
Change Order. 

 

B. QUALITY ASSURANCE 

1. Regulatory Agency Sustainability Approvals. 
a. Meet regulation of 29 CFR 1926 OSHA, ‘Construction Industry Regulations’. 
b. Owner’s Safety Requirements: 

(1) Personal  Protection: 

(a) Contractor shall ensure: 
i. Positive means of fall protection, such as guardrails system, 

safety net system, personal fall arrest system, etc., is provide 
to employees whenever exposed to a fall 6 feet or more 
above a lower level. 

ii. Personnel working on Project shall wear hard hats and safety 
glasses as required by regulation and hazard. 

iii. Personnel working on Project shall wear long or shirt sleeve 
shorts, long pants, and hard-toes boots or other sturdy shoes 
appropriate to type and phase of work being performed. 

(b) Contractor Tools and Equipment: 
i. Contractor shall ensure: 

(i) Tools and equipment are in good working condition, well 
maintained, and have necessary guards in place. 

(ii) Ground Fault Circuit Interrupter (GFCI) is utilized on 
power cords and tools. 

(iii) Scaffolding and man lifts are in good working conditions, 
erected and maintained as required by governmental 
regulations. 

(iv) Ladders are in good condition, well maintained, used as 
specified by Manufacturer, and secured as required. 

ii. Miscellaneous — Contractor shall ensure: 
(i) Protection is provided on protruding rebar and other 

82

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

SPECIAL PROCEDURES 

01 3500 - 2 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

(ÎV) 

 
 
 

(v) 

 
(VÎ) 

similar objects. 
General Contractor Superintendent has completed the 
OSHA 10-hour construction outreach training course or 
equivalent. 
Implementation and administration of safety program on 
Project. 
Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) are provided for 
substances or materials for which an MSDS is required 
by governmental regulation before bringing on site. 
Consistent safety training is provide to employees on 
Project. 
Implement and coordinate Lockout/Tagout procedures 
with Owner’s Representative as required. 

Report accidents involving injury to employees on Project that 
require off-site medical treatment to Owner’s designated 
representative. 

(C) HOt Work Permit: 

i. Permit shall document that fire prevention and protection 
requirements in 29 CFR 1926.352, ‘Fire Prevention’ have 
been implemented prior to beginning hot work operations. 
Required for doing hot work involving open flames or 
producing heat or sparks such as: 
(i) Brazing 
(ii) Cutting 
(iii) Grinding 
(iv) Soldering 
(v) Thawing pip 
(vi) Torch applied roofing 

(vii) Welding. 
 

PART 2 - PRODUCTS — Not Applicable 

PART 3 - EXECUTION — Not Applicable 

 

END OF SECTION 

83

Item 8.



RAC - Kennels 
18-524.01 

CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES AND TEMPORARY 

CONTROLS 01 5000 - 1 

 

CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES AND TEMPORARY CONTROLS 01 5000 
 

 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 

 

1.1 GENERAL DEFINITIONS 
 

A. Refer to General Conditions for basic commitments to provide temporary facilities. 
This section specifies certain minimum temporary facilities to be provided, regardless 
of methods and means selected for performance of the Work, but not by way of 
limitation and not assured for compliance with governing regulations. Use of 
alternate temporary facilities is Contractor's option, subject to Architect’s acceptance. 
Temporary facilities are defined to exclude tools and construction machines, testing, 
alterations, mock-ups, and similar items. 

 

B. Costs: Except as otherwise indicated, costs associated with temporary facilities are 
Contractor’s (in Contract Sum), including power/fuel/water usage, maintenance, and 
removal until time of Substantial Completion for each major area of Project. 
Temporary facilities remain property of Contractor. 

 

C. Acquisition of temporary facilities and their use by subcontractors shall be as 
designated by Contractor. 

 

1.2 TEMPORARY UTILITY SERVICES 
 

A. Sources: Connect with local/municipal services and franchised utility companies 
where feasible. 

1. Water: Clean and drinkable. 
2. Changeover: At earliest feasible date, use permanent utility services installed for 

project, and disconnect and remove temporary service lines. Prior to Substantial 
Completion, restore permanent utilities to specified (or existing) conditions. 

 

1.3 TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES 
 

A. Enclosure: Enclose spaces requiring temporary heat, and other spaces where Work 

would otherwise be adversely affected. 
 

B. Temporary Heating and Ventilation: Provide temporary heat where indicated and 
where needed for the proper performance of the work, for curing or drying of work 
recently installed, and protection of work in place from adverse effects of low 
temperatures. Until the time the mechanical-electrical systems of Project can be 
used to provide temporary heat, provide space heaters which are UL labeled and 
approved for construction space heating by appropriate agency. Provide adequate 
ventilation and thermostatic control. 

 

C. Construction Aids: Provide and maintain for the duration of construction temporary 
equipment and apparatus including scaffolds, canopies, tarpaulins, barricades, 
warning signs, steps, ladders, platforms, ramps, and other temporary construction 
aids and miscellaneous facilities as necessary for proper completion of the work. 
Comply with pertinent safety regulations. 

 

D. Miscellaneous Facilities: Provide miscellaneous facilities as needed. 

84

Item 8.



RAC - Kennels 
18-524.01 

CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES AND TEMPORARY 

CONTROLS 01 5000 - 2 

 

1.4 TEMPORARY SUPPORT FACILITIES 
 

A. General: Provide facilities and services as may be needed to properly support 
primary construction process and meet governing regulations. Do not use permanent 
facilities except as otherwise indicated, and except after time of Substantial 
Completion. 

 

B. Temporary Sanitary Facilities: Provide on-site temporary toilet facilities for use of all 
construction personnel; maintain in a sanitary condition at all times. Comply with 
applicable codes and regulations of the authorities having jurisdiction. Do not permit 
use of permanent facilities. 

 

1.5 SECURITY AND PROTECTION 
 

A. General: Provide facilities and services as necessary to effectively protect Project 
from losses and people from injury during course of construction. 

 

B. Lockup and Security: As construction of building structure or shell progresses and it 
becomes feasible to secure Project against intrusion, provide temporary security 
enclosure, doors, and locks as necessary to prevent unauthorized entrance. 

 

1.6 REMOVAL 
 

A. Maintain all construction facilities and temporary controls as long as needed for the 
safe and proper completion of the work. Remove all such temporary facilities and 
controls as rapidly as progress of the work will permit or as directed by the Architect. 

 

PART 2 - NOT USED 

PART 3 - NOT USED 

 

END OF SECTION 

85

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

PRODUCT REQUIREMENTS 
01 6000 - 1 

 

PRODUCT REQUIREMENTS 01 6000 
 

 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 

 

1.1 STANDARDS AND REGULATIONS 
 

A. General Applicability of Standards: As indicated in the Contract Documents, and 
except to the extent more explicit or more stringent requirements are written directly 
into the Contract Documents, applicable standards of the construction industry have 
the same force and effect (and are made a part of the Contract Documents by 
reference) as if copied directly into the Contract Documents, or as if published copies 
were bound herewith. Immediately refer discrepancies to Architect for resolution of 
overlapping and conflicting requirements which result from the application of several 
different industry standards to the same unit of work. 

1. Referenced standards (referenced directly in the Contract Documents or by 
governing regulation) have precedence over non-referenced standards which are 
recognized in the industry for applicability to the work. 

2. Non-referenced standards are hereby defined, except as otherwise limited in the 
Contract Documents, to have direct applicability to the work as recognized in the 
building construction industry, and will be so enforced for the performance of the 
work. 

 

B. Publication Dates: Except as otherwise indicated, where compliance with an industry 
standard is required, comply with the standard in effect as of the date of the Contract 
Documents. 

 

1.2 GOVERNING REGULATION/AUTHORITIES 
 

A. General: Contact governing authorities directly for necessary information and 
decisions having a bearing on the performance of the Work. 

 

B. Applicable Codes: For the purposes of this Project the codes and regulations that 
shall apply to the Work include, but are not necessarily limited to the following: 

1. International Building Code 
2. International Fire Code 
3. International Mechanical Code 
4. International Plumbing Code 

5. National Electric Code 
6. UL Fire Resistance Directory 
7. Any adopting Ordinances by City of Republic, MO. 

 

1.3 WARRANTIES (GUARANTIES) 
 

A. Categories of warranties required for the Work include the following. Refer to sections 
of Divisions 2 through 33 for requirements of specified warranties. 

1. Special project warranty issued by Contractor and, where required, 
countersigned by Installer or other recognized entity involved in performance of 
the work. 

2. Specified product warranty issued by a manufacturer or fabricator, for 
compliance with requirements in Contract Documents. 

86

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

PRODUCT REQUIREMENTS 
01 6000 - 2 

 

3. Coincidental product warranty available on a product incorporated into the Work, 
by virtue of manufacturer's publication of warranty without regard for application 
requirements (non-specified warranty). 

 

B. Warranty Obligations: Requirements for correction of the Work shall be as required in 
the General Conditions, AIA A201-2017 paragraph 12.2, as modified. The obligations 
of the Contractor for correction of defective Work and fulfilling terms of warranties 
survives Final Completion of the project. The obligations of the Contractor shall be as 
required by the Contract Documents and shall not be limited by the availability or 
terms of manufacturer's warranty. Restore or remove and replace warranted Work to 
its originally specified condition, at such time during warranty as it does not comply 
with or fulfill terms of warranty. Restore or remove and replace other Work which has 
been damaged by failure of warranted Work, or which must be removed and replaced 
to gain access to warranted Work. Except as otherwise indicated or required by 
governing regulations, warranties do not cover consequential damages to other than 
Work of the Contract, (e.g. building contents). Cost of restoration or removal and 
replacement is Contractor's obligation, without regard to whether Owner has already 
benefited from use of failing Work. 

 

C. Reinstatement of Warranty: Upon restoration or removal and replacement of 
warranted Work which has failed, reinstate the warranty by issuing newly executed 
form, for at least the remaining period of time of the original warranty, but for not less 
than half of the original warranty period. 

 

D. Owner’s Recourse: Warranties and warranty periods do not diminish implied 
warranties, and do not deprive Owner of actions, rights and remedies otherwise 
available under law for Contractor’s failure to fulfill requirements of the Contract 
Documents. Owner reserves the right to reject coincidental product warranties 
considered to be conflicting with or detracting from requirements of the Contract 
Documents. 

 

1.4 DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

A. Omissions from the drawings or specifications or the misdescription of details of Work 
which are manifestly necessary to carry out the intent of the Contract Documents, or 
which are customarily performed, shall not relieve the Contractor from performing 
such omitted or misdescribed details of the Work, and the Work shall be performed as 
if fully and correctly set forth and described in the Contract Documents. Obligations 
of the Contractor to review the Contract Documents, to report discrepancies, and to 
request clarification are described in the General Conditions and Supplementary 
Conditions. 

 

1.5 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING 
 

A. General: Receive, store and handle products, materials and equipment in a manner 
which will prevent loss, deterioration and damage. Schedule deliveries to minimize 
long term storage at project site. Deliver manufactured  materials in original 
unopened packages bearing the name of the manufacturer, and as applicable, testing 
agency label and with complete manufacturer’s instructions for installation of material 
according to approved test report. 

 

PART 2 - PRODUCTS -- Not Applicable 

87

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

PRODUCT REQUIREMENTS 
01 6000 - 3 

 

PART 3 - EXECUTION 
 

3.1 PREPARATION FOR INSTALLATION 
 

A. Prior to starting installation of each major component of the Work, hold a pre- 
installation conference, attended by each entity involved or affected by planned 
installation. Include technical representatives of product manufacturer(s) and others 
recognized as expert or otherwise capable of influencing the success of the 
installation. Review significant aspects of requirements for the Work. 

 

B. Coordinate the Work of other trades as required to make provisions for proper 
installation of specified Work. Verify that the specified Work may be installed in 
accordance with all pertinent codes and regulation, the original design, and the 
accepted submittals. 

 

C. Examine Work in place on which specified Work is in any way dependent. Inspect 
substrate and conditions for installation, make field measurement to verify or 
supplement dimensions indicated. Report (in writing) unsatisfactory conditions. 
Correct unsatisfactory conditions before proceeding. Inspect each product 
immediately before installation, and do not install damaged or defective products, 
materials or equipment. 

 

D. Whenever possible fabricator shall make field measurements prior to preparation of 
shop drawings and fabrication to ensure proper fitting of specified Work. Otherwise, 
make allowances for field fitting and indicate actual field measurements on shop 
drawings. 

 

3.2 INSTALLATION, GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. Comply with applicable fire rated assemblies, governing regulations, and latest 
manufacturer’s instructions and recommendations to extent printed information is 
more detailed or stringent than requirements contained directly in Contract 
Documents. Report discrepancies to Architect requesting clarification before 
proceeding with Work. 

 

B. For installation of specified Work use only personnel who are skilled in the Work 
required, completely familiar with the manufacturer’s recommended methods of 
installation, and thoroughly familiar with the requirements for the specified Work. 

 

C. Install Work during time and under conditions which will ensure best possible results, 
coordinated with required inspections and testing. 

 

D. Anchor Work securely in place, properly located by measured line and level, 
organized for best possible uniformity, visual effect, operational efficiency, durability, 
and similar benefit to Owner's use. Isolate non-compatible materials from contact, 
sufficiently to prevent deterioration. 

 

E. Install individual units of Work at industry recognized mounting heights, if not 
otherwise indicated; refer uncertainties to Architect before proceeding. 

 

F. Where indicated or needed for operation and maintenance, provide permanent 
nameplates on equipment, located in inconspicuous places, and containing suitable 
information and operation data. Do not remove fire classification labels or paint or 
otherwise cause to be unreadable. 

88

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

PRODUCT REQUIREMENTS 
01 6000 - 4 

 

3.3 CORRECTION OF DEFECTIVE WORK 
 

A. Restore all defective or damaged Work to initial or specified condition. Defective or 
damaged items or components which cannot be repaired or restored to initial or 
specified condition shall be removed and replaced at no additional cost to Owner. 
Refer to related requirements in General Conditions, AIA A201-2017 Article 12, 
Correction of Work, as modified. 

 

3.4 TESTING AND INSPECTION 
 

A. Make all necessary arrangements for and coordinate specified Work with required 
inspections and tests by governing authority or independent testing agency. 

 

B. Make all necessary arrangements for and secure all required inspections and all 

required approvals from all regulatory agencies having jurisdiction. 
 

3.5 CLEANING AND PROTECTION 
 

A. General: Clean each element of Work at time of installation. Provide sufficient 
maintenance and protection during construction to ensure freedom from damage and 
deterioration at time of Substantial Completion. 

 

 

END OF SECTION 

89

Item 8.



RAC - Kennels 
18-524.01 

EXECUTION  AND  CLOSEOUT PROCEDURES 

01 7000 - 1 

 

EXECUTION AND CLOSEOUT PROCEDURES 01 7000 
 

 

PART 1 - GENERAL 
 

1.1 GENERAL 
 

A. The provisions of this section apply primarily to closeout of actual physical work, not 
to administrative matters such as final payment and changeover of insurance. 
Closeout requirements relate to both Final Completion and Substantial Completion of 
Work, and apply to individual portions of completed Work as well as the total Work. 
Specific requirements in other sections have precedence over general requirements 
of this section. 

 

B. After Substantial Completion, continue to diligently prosecute all remaining Work in 
an organized, efficient manner until completion. 

 

1.2 PROCEDURES AT SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 
 

A. Prerequisites: Comply with General and Supplementary Conditions and Division 1 
General Requirements and complete the following before requesting Architect's 
inspection of the Work, or designated portion, for Substantial Completion. 

1. Submit executed warranties, workmanship bonds, maintenance agreements, 
inspection certificates and similar required documentation for specific units of 
Work, enabling Owner’s unrestricted occupancy and use. 

2. Submit record documentation, maintenance manuals, tools, spare parts, extra 
materials, keys, and similar operational items. 

3. Test all equipment and systems demonstrating to Architect they are correctly 
installed and operating properly. Submit written record of the tests and results. 

4. Complete instruction of Owner’s operating personnel, and startup of systems. 
5. Complete final cleaning, and remove temporary facilities and tools. 

 

B. Inspection Procedures: Upon receipt of Contractor’s request, including Contractor's 
initial punch list, Architect will either proceed with inspection or advise Contractor of 
prerequisites not fulfilled. Following initial inspection, Architect will either prepare 
Certificate of Substantial Completion, or advise Contractor of Work which must be 
performed prior to issuance of certificate; and repeat inspection when requested and 
assured that Work has been substantially completed. Results of completed 
inspection will form the "punch list" for final inspection. 

 

1.3 PROCEDURES AT FINAL ACCEPTANCE 
 

A. Re-inspection Procedure: Upon receipt of Contractor's notice that Work has been 
completed, including punch list items resulting from earlier inspections, and accepting 
incomplete items delayed because of acceptable circumstances, Architect will re- 
inspect Work. Upon completion of re-inspection, Architect will either recommend final 
acceptance and final payment, or advise Contractor of Work not completed or 
obligations not fulfilled as required for final acceptance. If necessary, procedure will 
be repeated. 

90

Item 8.



RAC - Kennels 
18-524.01 

EXECUTION  AND  CLOSEOUT PROCEDURES 

01 7000 - 2 

 

1.4 RECORD DOCUMENTATION 
 

A. Maintenance Manuals: Provide flash drive containing required maintenance 
manuals, properly identified and indexed per the specification section. Include 
operating and maintenance instructions extended to cover emergencies, spare parts, 
warranties, inspection procedures, diagrams, safety, security, and similar appropriate 
data for each system or equipment item. 

 

1.5 GENERAL CLOSEOUT REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. Operator Instructions: Require each Installer of systems requiring continued 
operation/maintenance by Owner’s operating personnel, to provide on location 
instruction to Owner’s personnel, sufficient to ensure safe, secure, efficient, 
non-failing utilization and operation of systems. As a minimum, provide instructions 
for the following categories of Work. 

1. Kennel Enclosure Information and colors 
 

B. Final Cleaning: At closeout time, clean or re-clean entire Work to normal level for 
"first class" maintenance/cleaning of building projects of similar nature. Remove 
non-permanent protection and labels, clean exposed finishes, touch-up minor finish 
damage, remove debris and broom clean non-occupied spaces, sweep and wash 
paved areas, police yards and grounds, and perform similar cleanup operations 
needed to produce a "clean" condition as judged by the Architect. 

 

 
PART 2 - NOT APPLICABLE 

PART 3 - NOT APPLICABLE 

 
 

END OF SECTION 

91

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

KENNEL ENCLOSURES & GATES 
13 1913 - 1 

 

(BASE BID) KENNEL ENCLOSURES & CAGES 13 1913 
 

 

PART 1 - GENERAL 

 
RELATED DOCUMENTS 

 
A.  Drawings and general provisions of Contract, including General and Supplementary 

Conditions and Division-1 Specification sections, apply to work of this section. 

 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK 

 
A. Extent of kennel enclosures and cages is indicated on drawings. 

 
     QUALITY ASSURANCE 

 
A. Provide aluminum plastic panel kennel dividers with stainless steel gates and latches in 

Indoor & Outdoor Pens Areas. 

 
SUBMITTALS 

 
A.  Product Data: Submit manufacturer’s technical data, and installation instructions for 

metal panels, FRP panels, fibergalss enclosures, gates and accessories. 

 

PART 2 - PRODUCTS 

GENERAL 

A. Available Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements, manufacturers 

offering products which may be incorporated in the work include, but are not limited to, 

the following: 

1. Stainless Steel/FRP Dividers with Stainless steel stall fronts and gates: 

a. Mason Company 

b. Shor-Line 

c. Snyder Manufacturing 

2. Fiberglass Cages 

a. Mason Company 

b. Shor-Line 

c. Snyder Manufacturing 

 
KENNELS - ALUMINUM/FRP/STAINLESS STEEL DIVIDERS W/ STAINLESS STEEL 

STALL FRONTS & GATES 

 

A. Basis of Design is by Mason Co. Dividers are aluminum framed isolation panels with 

FRP on bottom portion and stainless-steel welded wire on upper portion; gates and 

latches are stainless steel. 

92

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

KENNEL ENCLOSURES & GATES 
13 1913 - 2 

 

1. Divider Panels: 

a. Panels shall be constructed of an outer framework of 6063-T52 aluminum U- 

channel "7‹" x "/" x 1/8" thick. Internal braces shall be 6061-T6 aluminum H- 

channels 117a" x "7‹" x 1/8" thick. 

b. Bottom Portion of isolation panels shall be .030" FRP bonded on each side of 

a .400" HDPE substrate (48" high). Solid faced panels to be perimeter sealed 

to the aluminum framework (48" high). 

c. Upper portion of isolation panels shall be constructed from stainless steel 

welded wire. 

(1) Wire panels shall be welded at each juncture and shall consist of 3/16” 

diameter vertical wires with 117a" spacing between wires and 3/16" 

diameter horizontal wires with 4°/4” spacing between wires. 

(2) Wire panels shall be contained by means of a semi-rigid PVC extrusion 

inset into the aluminum frame. 

2. Stainless Steel Gates & Stall Fronts 

a. Gate and stall front frames shall consist of 1" x 16 gauge square 304 A-554 

welded stainless steel tubing with 180 grit polish. Each corner of the frame 

shall be TIG welded. 

b. Gate grids shall be constructed of 304 stainless steel wire 3/16" in diameter in 

the vertical direction with 15/16” spacing between wires, and 304 stainless 

steel wire 3/16" in diameter in the horizontal direction with 3-5/8" or less 

spacing between wires. 

c. Horizontal and vertical wires shall be resistance welded at each juncture and 

each wire shall insert into the framework. 

d. Gate Hinges shall consist of two 3/8" diameter stainless steel hex head screws 

which shall be threaded into stainless steel tapped plugs inserted into the top 

and bottom of the door frame. Each plug shall contain a nylon pivot bushing 

for smooth precision rotation. 

e. Patented stainless steel two-way latch shall open both outward and inward. 

The latch shall secure automatically when gate is closed from the outward 

position and from the inward position it shall be able to latch and open from 

the inside of kennel. It shall be designed to accept a padlock. The two-way 

latch bar, the latch catch, and the swing pendant shall be made from 304 

stainless steel. 

 

  

93

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

KENNEL ENCLOSURES & GATES 
13 1913 - 3 

 

 
PART 3 - EXECUTION 

     INSTALLATION 

A. Do not begin installation and erection before construction is completed, unless 

otherwise permitted. 

 
B. Gates: Install gates plumb, level, and secure for full opening without interference. 

Adjust hardware for smooth operation and lubricate where necessary. 

 

C. Clean and disinfect kennel enclosures and observation cages at Substantial 

Completion. 

 

D. Lubricate door hinges, adjust gate locks and any other moving parts at Substantial 

Completion to ensure proper operation. 

 
 

 

END OF SECTION 

94

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

KENNEL ENCLOSURES & GATES 
13 1913 - 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BLANK PAGE 

95

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

CHAIN LINK FENCING & GATES 
32 1113 - 1 

 

(DEDUCT ALTERNATE) CHAIN LINK FENCING & GATES 32 1113 
 

 

PART 1 - GENERAL 

 
RELATED DOCUMENTS 

 
A.  Drawings and general provisions of Contract, including General and Supplementary 

Conditions and Division-1 Specification sections, apply to work of this section. 

 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK 

 
A. Extent of chain link fences and gates is indicated on drawings. 

 
     QUALITY ASSURANCE 

 
A.  Provide chain link fences and gates as complete units controlled by a single source 

including necessary erection accessories, fittings, and fastenings. 

 

SUBMITTALS 

 
A.  Product Data: Submit manufacturer’s technical data, and installation instructions for 

metal fencing, fabric, gates and accessories. 

 

PART 2 - PRODUCTS 

GENERAL 

A. Dimensions indicated for pipe, roll-formed, and H-sections are outside dimensions, 

exclusive of coatings. 

 

B. Available Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements, manufacturers 

offering products which may be incorporated in the work include, but are not limited to, 

the following: 

1. Heavy Duty Galvanized Steel Fencing and Fabric: 

a. Carnahan-White Fence Company 

b. Robinson Fence Company 

c. Hoover Fence Company 

d. Anchor Fence Co., Inc. 

 
STEEL FABRIC 

 
A. Fabric: No. 9 ga. size steel wires, 2" mesh, with top selvages knuckled for fabric 60" 

high and under, and both top and bottom selvages twisted and barbed for fabric over 

60" high. Furnish one-piece fabric widths for fencing up to 12 ft. high. 

1. Fabric Finish: Galvanized, ASTM A 392, Class II, with not less than 2.0 oz. zinc 

per sq. ft. of surface. 

 

FRAMING & ACCESSORIES 

96

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

CHAIN LINK FENCING & GATES 
32 1113 - 2 

 

A. Steel Framework, General: Galvanized steel, ASTM A 120 or A 123, with not less than 

1.8 oz. zinc per sq. ft. of surface. 

1. Fittings & Accessories: Galvanized, ASTM A 153, with zinc weights per Table l. 

 
B. End, Corner and Pull Posts: Minimum sizes and weights as follows: 

1. Steel Fencing: 

a. Up to 6 ft. fabric height, 2.375" OD steel pipe, 3.65 lbs. per lin. ft., or 3.5" x 3.5" 

roll-formed sections, 4.85 lbs. per lin. ft. 

b. Over 6 ft. fabric height, 2.875" OD steel pipe, 5.79 lbs. per lin. ft., or 3.5" x 3.5" 

roll-formed sections, 4.85 lbs. per lin. ft. 

c. Line Posts: Space 8 ft. O.C. maximum, unless otherwise indicated, of following 
minimum sizes and weights. 
1. Steel Fencing: 

a. Up to 6 ft. fabric height, 1.90" OD steel pipe, 2.70 lbs. per lin. ft. or 1.875" x 

1.625" C-sections, 2.28 lbs. per lin. ft. 

b. 6 ft. to 8 ft. fabric height, 2.375" OD steel pipe, 3.65 lbs. per lin. ft. or 2.25" x 

1.875" H-sections, 2.64 lbs. per lin. ft. 

c. Over 8 ft. fabric height, 2.875 OD steel pipe, 5.79 lbs. per lin. ft. or 2.25" x 

1.875" H-sections, 3.25 lbs. per lin. ft. 

 

D. Gate Posts: Furnish posts for supporting single gate leaf, or one leaf of a double gate 

installation, for nominal gate widths as follows: 

1. Steel Fencing: 

a. Leaf 

b. Up to 6’ 

Width Gate Post lbs./lin. ft. 

2.875" OD pipe or 5.79 

3.5" x 3.5" roll-formed 4.85 

 
E. Top Rail: Manufacturer’s longest lengths, with expansion type couplings, 

approximately 6" long, for each joint. Provide means for attaching top rail securely to 

each gate corner, pull and end post. 

1. Steel Fencing: 1.66 OD pipe, 2.27 lbs. per lin. ft. or 1.625" x 1.25" roll-formed 

sections 1.35 lbs. per lin. ft. 

 

F. Wire Ties: 11 ga. galvanized steel wire. 

 
G. Post Brace Assembly: Manufacturer’s standard adjustable brace at end and gate posts 

and at both sides of corner and pull posts, with horizontal brace located at mid-height of 

fabric. Use same material as top rail for brace, and truss to line posts with 3/8" 

diameter rod and adjustable tightener. 

 

H. Stretcher Bars: One-piece lengths equal to full height of fabric, with minimum cross- 

section of 1/16" x 3/4". Provide one stretcher bar for each gate and end post, and two 

for each corner and pull post, except where fabric is integrally woven into post. 

97

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

CHAIN LINK FENCING & GATES 
32 1113 - 3 

 

I. Stretcher Bar Bands: Space not over 15" O.C., to secure stretcher bars to end, corner, 

pull, and gate posts. 

 

GATES 

 
A. Fabrication: Fabricate perimeter frames of gates from metal and finish to match fence 

framework. Assemble gate frames by welding or with special fittings and rivets for rigid 

connections, providing security against removal or breakage connections. Provide 

horizontal and vertical members to ensure proper gate operation and attachment of 

fabric, hardware and accessories. Space frame members maximum of 8’ apart unless 

otherwise indicated. 

1. Provide same fabric as for fence, unless other indicated. Install fabric with 

stretcher bars at vertical edges and at top and bottom edges. Attach stretcher bars 

to gate frame at not more than 15" O.C. 

2. Install diagonal cross-bracing consisting of 3/8" diameter adjustable length truss 

rods on gates to ensure frame rigidity without sag or twist. 

 

B. Swing Gates: Fabricate perimeter frames of minimum 1.90" OD pipe. 

 
C. Gate Hardware: Provide hardware and accessories for each gate, galvanized per 

ASTM A 153, and in accordance with the following: 

1. Hinges: Size and material to suit gate size, non-lift-off type, offset to permit 180° 

gate opening. Provide 1-1/2 pair of hinges for each leaf over 6 ft. nominal height. 

2. Latch: Forked type or plunger-bar type to permit operation from either side of gate, 

with padlock eye as integral part of latch. 

 

D. Concrete: Provide concrete consisting of portland cement, ASTM C 150, aggregates 

ASTM C 33, and clean water. Mix materials to obtain concrete with a minimum 28-day 

compressive strength of 2,500 psi using at least four sacks of cement per cu. yd., 1" 

maximum size aggregate, maximum 3" slump, and 2% to 4% entrained air ASTM C 

260. 

 

PART 3 - EXECUTION 

     INSTALLATION 

A. Do not begin installation and erection before construction is completed, unless 

otherwise permitted. 

 
B. Top Rails: Run rail continuously through post caps, bending to radius for curved runs. 

Provide expansion couplings as recommended by fencing manufacturer. 

 

C. Brace Assemblies: Install braces so posts are plumb when diagonal rod is under 

proper tension. 

 
D. Tension Wire: Install tension wires through post cap loops before stretching fabric and 

tie to each post cap with not less than 6 ga. galvanized wire. Fasten fabric to tension 

wire using 11 ga. galvanized steel hog rings spaced 24" O.C. 

98

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

CHAIN LINK FENCING & GATES 
32 1113 - 4 

 

E. Fabric: Leave approximately 2" between finish grade and bottom sewage, unless 

otherwise indicated. Pull fabric taut and tie to posts, rails, and tension wires. Install 

fabric on security side of fence, and anchor to framework so that fabric remains in 

tension after pulling force is released. 

 

F. Stretcher Bars: Thread through or clamp to fabric 4" O.C., and secure to posts with 

metal bands spaced 15" O.C. 

 

G. Gates: Install gates plumb, level, and secure for full opening without interference. 

Install ground-set items in concrete for anchorage. Adjust hardware for smooth 

operation and lubricate where necessary. 

 

H. Tie Wires: Use U-shaped wire, conforming to diameter of pipe to which attached, 

clasping pipe and fabric firmly with ends twisted at least two full turns. Bend ends of 

wire to minimize hazard to persons or clothing. Tie fabric to line posts, with wire ties 

spaced 12" O.C. Tie fabric to rails and braces, with wire ties spaced 24" O.C. Tie 

fabric to tension wires, with hog rings spaced 24" O.C. 

 

Fasteners: Install nuts for tension bands and hardware bolts on side of fence opposite 

fabric side. Peen ends of bolts or score threads to prevent removal of nuts. 

 

PIPE SIZE REFERENCE TABLE 

OD in. ID in. lb./lin.ft. 
1.66 1-1/4 2.27 
1.90 1-1/2 2.70 
2.375 2 3.65 
2.875 2-1/2 5.79 
4.000 3-1/2 9.11 

 
 

END OF SECTION 

99

Item 8.



 
 

ATTACHMENT A - BID SUBMISSION FORM 
 

BIDDERS MUST PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION: 

Item Description of Work Price 

Base Bid 

• Furnishing and installation of all materials and labor in 

the attached Kennel Enclosures  

• Install new Dog Runs inside and out 

• All bids to include: 

o Travel Expenses 

o Freight/Shipping Costs 

o Any other administrative costs 

• All work must be completed by June 30th, 2020 

Please note any of the following: 

• Any labor personnel requests of the City of 

Republic for this project. 

• Any other requests or responsibilities of the City 

of Republic for this project. 

 

 

$_______________ 

 

 In compliance with this Invitation for Bid and to all terms, conditions, and specifications imposed therein and hereby incorporated by 
reference, the undersigned offers and agrees to furnish the goods and/or services described herein. 

 

 
 

 
Company Name: 

City of Republic – Perimeter Fencing and Kennel Barriers for 

the Animal Control Center  

 

 

312 N Main St., Republic, MO 65738  

 
Address: 

Telephone: 
 

Facsimile: 
Signed                                                       
Dated 

E-mail: 
 

Cellular: 
Printed                                                    
Title 

 
Bidders Federal ID Number: 

 
 

 

 

To be submitted with Vendor’s Bid  100

Item 8.



 
 

To be submitted with Vendor’s Bid  

_____We DO NOT take exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements.  

_____We TAKE exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements as follows:  

CITY OF REPUBLIC STATEMENT OF “NO BID” * ADDENDA  

 

Bidder acknowledges receipt of the following addendum:  

 

RETURN THIS PAGE ONLY IF YOUR COMPANY PROVIDES THE PRODUCTS/SERVICES BEING BID AND DECLINES TO DO 

SO.  

Addendum No. ___  

Addendum No. ___  

 

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, HAVE DECLINED TO BID ON YOUR IFB * FOR DESCRIPTION FOR THE FOLLOWING 

REASON(S):  

Addendum No. ___  

 

_______SPECIFICATIONS ARE TOO “TIGHT,” I.E. GEARED TOWARD ONE BRAND OR MANUFACTURER ONLY                    

(PLEASE EXPLAIN BELOW).  

Addendum No. ___  

Addendum No. ___  

_______INSUFFICIENT TIME TO RESPOND TO INVITATION FOR BID.  

_______OUR PRODUCT SCHEDULE WOULD NOT PERMIT US TO PREFORM.  

 

  

 Print Email___________________________________________  

 

 Print Federal Tax ID No._________________________________  

   

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

101

Item 8.



 
 

 

CITY OF REPUBLIC STATEMENT OF “NO BID”  

RETURN THIS PAGE ONLY IF YOUR COMPANY PROVIDES THE PRODUCTS/SERVICES BEING BID AND DECLINES TO DO 

SO.  

 

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, HAVE DECLINED TO BID ON YOUR IFB FOR THE FOLLOWING REASON(S):  

 

_______ SPECIFICATIONS ARE TOO “TIGHT,” I.E. GEARED TOWARD ONE BRAND OR MANUFACTURER ONLY                    

(PLEASE EXPLAIN BELOW).  

_______ INSUFFICIENT TIME TO RESPOND TO INVITATION FOR BID.  

_______ OUR PRODUCT SCHEDULE WOULD NOT PERMIT US TO PERFORM.  

_______ UNABLE TO MEET SPECIFICATIONS.  

_______ UNABLE TO MEET INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS.  

_______ SPECIFICATIONS UNCLEAR (PLEASE EXPLAIN BELOW).  

_______ OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY BELOW).  

 

REMARKS: 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________________

___________  

 

COMPANY NAME: ___________________________________________________  

ADDRESS: __________________________________________________________  

SIGNATURE AND TITLE: _______________________________________________  

TELEPHONE NUMBER: ________________________________________________  

DATE: _________________________  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
102

Item 8.



 
 

 

103

Item 8.



 
 

 
MISSOURI PROJECT EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE 

 

 Authorization for Purchasing Construction Materials for Tax Exempt Project 

(The Form and Content of this Exemption Certificate have been approved by the Missouri Department of Revenue) 

 

EXEMPT ENTITY ISSUING CERTIFICATE 

Name:  City of Republic, Missouri 

Address: 213 N. Main Avenue 

City/State/Zip:  Republic, Missouri 65738 

 

MO Tax Exempt I.D. #:  12492990   Letter Effective Date:   

Contract Date:        Certificate Expiration Date:   

Contract #: ______________    Revised Expiration Date:      

Project Description: Republic Aquatic Center – Flowrider Refurbishment 

Project Location:  711 E. Miller Rd. Republic, Missouri 

Estimated Project Completion Date: April 30, 2019 

Auth. Signature:       ,Mayor Jeff  Ussery   Date:  ________                          

  

The Missouri exempt entity named above hereby authorizes the purchase, without sales tax, of tangible personal property 

to be incorporated or consumed in the construction of the project identified herein and no other, pursuant to Section 

144.062 RSMo. 

 

PURCHASING CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR 

Name:   
Address:  
City/State/Zip:   

 INSTRUCTIONS 

EXEMPT ENTITY - A signed copy of this certificate, along with your MO Tax Exemption Letter, must be furnished to 

each contractor and/or subcontractor who will be purchasing tangible personal property for use in the project.  It is the 

exempt entity’s responsibility to ensure the validity of the certificate.  You must issue a certificate with a Revised 

Expiration Date if purchases will be required to complete the project beyond the original Project Exemption Date. 

 

CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR - The contractor shall furnish a completed copy of this exemption 

certificate, along with a copy of the exempt entity’s MO Tax Exemption Letter, to all subcontractors, and any contractor 

or subcontractor purchasing materials shall present copies of such documents to all material suppliers as authorization to 

purchase, on behalf of the exempt entity, all tangible personal property and materials to be incorporated or consumed in 

the construction of that project and no other on a tax-exempt basis.  A copy of each certificate must be retained by the 

purchaser for a period of five years. 

 

MATERIAL SUPPLIER - A completed copy of this exemption certificate, along with the MO Tax Exemption Letter of 

the exempt entity contracting for the project, must be obtained from the contractor or subcontractor making purchases of 

tangible personal  property for use in the project, and retained for audit purposes.   Invoices issued for such purchases 

must reflect the name of the exempt entity and the project number assigned by the exempt entity shown above. 

104

Item 8.



 
 

NOTICE AND INSTRUCTIONS TO CONTRACTORS/SUBCONTRACTORS 
REGARDING SECTIONS 285.525 THROUGH 285.550 RSMO, EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2009 

 
Effective January 1, 2009, and pursuant to the State of Missouri’s RSMO 285.530(1), No business entity or employer shall 
knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien to perform work within the State of 
Missouri. 
 
As a condition for the award of any contract or grant in excess of five thousand dollars by the state or by any political 
subdivision of the state (e.g., City of Republic, MO) to a business entity, the business entity (Company) shall, by sworn 
affidavit and provision of documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program 
with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services.  Every such business entity shall sign 
an affidavit affirming that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the 
contracted services.  [RSMO 285-530(2)] 
 
The City of Republic, Missouri, in order to comply with sections 285.525 through 285.550 RSMO, requires the following 
Bid and contract documents: 
 

 
The City of Republic encourages companies that are not enrolled and participating in a federal work authorization program 
to do so.  E-Verify is an example of this type of program.  Information regarding E-Verify is available at 
http://www.dhs.gov/xprevprot/programs/gc 1185221678150.shtm or by calling 888-464-4218. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Required Affidavit for Contracts Over $5,000.00 (US) – Effective 1-1-2009, Company shall comply 

with the provisions of Section 285.525 through 285.550 R.S.Mo.  Contract award is contingent on 

Company providing an acceptable notarized affidavit stating: 

 

1. that Company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with respect to 
the 
employees working in connection with the contracted services; and 

 

2. that Company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection 
with  
the contracted services. 

 

Copies of affidavit can be found and downloaded on the City of Republic Missouri Public Works 

website; 

http://www.republicmo.com/publicworksdepartment  See attached sample 

 

Additionally, Company must provide documentation evidencing current enrollment in a federal work 

authorization program (e.g., electronic signature page from E-Verify program’s Memo of Understanding 

(MOU).  See attached sample 

105

Item 8.

http://www.dhs.gov/xprevprot/programs/gc%201185221678150.shtm
http://www.republicmo.com/publicworksdepartment


 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 285.500 R.S.MO., ET SEQ. 
FOR ALL AGREEMENTS IN EXCESS OF $5,000.00 

 
 

EFFECTIVE 1/1/2009 
 
STATE OF       ) 
       ) ss. 
COUNTY OF      ) 
 
Before me, the undersigned Notary Public, in and for the County of      , 
State of     , personally appeared       (Name) 
who is       (Title) of         
(Name of company), (corporation), (partnership), (sole proprietorship), (limited liability company), and after being duly 
sworn did depose and say: 
 

(1) that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program  
     with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and 
 
(2) that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien 

in connection with the contracted services. 
 
The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 R.S. Mo., et seq. 
 
Documentation of participation in a federal work authorization program is attached to this affidavit. 
 
               
       Signature 
               
       Printed Name 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this    day of    ,   . 
 
               
       Notary Public 
 
My commission expires:     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

106

Item 8.



 
 
Company ID Number: XXXXXX 
 
 
 
The foregoing constitutes the full agreement on this subject between the SSA, DHS (Department of Homeland Security), 
and the Employer. 
 
The individuals whose signatures appear below represent that they are authorized to enter into this MOU on behalf of the 
Employer and DHS respectively. 
 
To be accepted as a participant in E-Verify, you should only sign the Employer’s Section of the signature page.  If you 
have any questions, contact E-Verify Operations at 888-464-4218. 
 
 
 
Employer, Your Company Name 
 
 
John Doe            
Name (Please type or print)      Title 
 
Electronically Signed           
Signature        Date 
 
 
Verification 
 
Department of Homeland Security Division 
 
USCIS Verification Division          
Name (Please type or print)      Title 
 
Electronically Signed           
Signature        Date 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

107

Item 8.



Exhibit B

108

Item 8.



109

Item 8.



BID SPECIFICATIONS 

The requested proposals are for furnishing and installation of all materials and labor in the attached Kennel 
Enclosures  

To supply and install 40 dog pens with 6' tall chain link with 3' wide gates. The 20 inside cages approximately 6' 10" x 10' 
with a 4' tall aluminum divider on each cage. The 20 outside cages approximately 6' x 9' 6" with a top, and outside 
perimeter fence of approximately 120' of 6' tall chain link with 2 - 3' wide gates. All materials Shall be black poly coated 
with top and bottom rails on all fence with a 9 ga fused bonded chain link. Post Shall be installed with a 1/4" x 6" x 6" 
plate and 1/2" x 4" anchor bolts. Please see Area’s 1&2 on the following plan sheet for details 

Exhibit C

110

Item 8.



111

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

SUMMARY OF WORK 
01 1100 - 1 

 

SUMMARY OF WORK 01 1100 
 

 

GENERAL 
 

WORK UNDER THIS CONTRACT 
 

Construction and completion of Kennel Enclosures for Republic Animal Control under a 
single lump sum contract. 

 

COORDINATION 
 

Coordinate work with work performed by Owner, including storage of materials and 
equipment and connections and execution of work. 

 

Provide administrative and supervisory requirements necessary for coordination of 
work, including meetings, administrative and supervisory personnel, records, reports, 
limitations for use of site, installation provisions, cutting and patching, cleaning, 
protection, conservation, and salvage. Coordinate work with work performed by 
Owner, including storage of materials and equipment, and connections and execution 
of work. 

 

     CONTRACTOR USE OF PREMISES 
 

During the Contract Period the existing building and parking areas will be in use and 
occupied. While new work is under construction, confine construction operations, 
materials, equipment and appliances, within the immediate vicinity of the areas 
involved (subject to the approval of the Architect at all times), and do not 
unreasonably obstruct, or interfere with any phase of the Owner’s activities. Make 
any changes in or alterations to the existing facilities, including utility service, without 
disrupting continuous use by the Owner. 

 

Confine operations at site to areas permitted under Contract. Portions of site beyond 
areas on which work is indicated are not to be disturbed. Conform to site rules and 
regulations affecting work while engaged in project construction. 

 

    Lock automotive type vehicles, such as passenger cars and trucks and other 
mechanized or motorized construction equipment, when parked and unattended, to 
prevent unauthorized use. Do not leave vehicles or equipment unattended with motor 
running or ignition key in place. 

 

INDUSTRY STANDARDS 
 

Applicability of Standards: Except where more explicit or stringent requirements are 
written into the contract documents, applicable construction industry standards have 
the same force and effect as if bound into or copied directly into the contract 
documents. Such industry standards are made a part of the contract documents by 
reference. Individual specification sections indicate which codes and standards the 
Contractor must keep available at project site for reference. 

 

Publication Dates: Except as otherwise indicated, where compliance with an industry 
standard is required, comply with standard in effect as of date of contract documents. 

112

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

SUMMARY OF WORK 
01 1100 - 2 

 

    Conflicting Requirements: Where compliance with two or more standards is 
specified, and where these standards establish different or conflicting requirements 
for minimum quantities or quality levels, the most stringent requirement will be 
enforced, unless the contract documents specifically indicate otherwise. Refer 
requirements that are different, but apparently equal, and uncertainties as to which 
quality level is more stringent to the Architect for a decision before proceeding. 

 

Copies of Standards: The Contract Documents require that each entity performing 
work be experienced in that part of the work being performed. Each entity is also 
required to be familiar with industry standards applicable to that part of the work. 
Copies of applicable standards are not bound with the contract documents. Where 
copies of standards are needed for proper performance of the work, the Contractor is 
required to obtain such copies directly from the publication source. 

 

Abbreviations And Names: Trade association names and titles of general standards 
are frequently abbreviated. Where acronyms or abbreviations are used in the 
specifications or other contract documents they are defined to mean the recognized 
name of the trade association, standards generating organization, governing 
authority, or other entity applicable to the context of the text provisions. 

 

     ASBESTOS 
 

Do not incorporate into the Work any products or materials containing asbestos. 
 

Notify the Owner of any portion of the Work which Contractor knows or has reason to 
believe contains asbestos and take necessary procedures to prevent damage or 
release of asbestos fibers. Any asbestos abatement procedures required and not 
identified as Work of this Contract shall be performed under a Change Order as a 
changed condition, or by Owner’s separate contractor. A change in contract time, as 
determined by the Architect, shall be the Contractor’s only remedy for delay due to 
unidentified asbestos abatement work. 

 

PRODUCTS -- (Not Applicable) 

EXECUTION -- (Not Applicable) 

 

END OF SECTION 

113

Item 8.



ALTERNATES 
01 2300/1 

RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

 

ALTERNATES 01 2300 
 

 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 

 
AREA 1: ALTERNATE (INDOOR KENNELS — CHAIN LINK) 

 
A. Deduct alternate price to provide heavy-duty chain-link panels and gates in lieu of 

plastic and stainless steel in the Base Bid. 

 

B. State on your Bid Form the amount to deduct from the Base Bid if this alternate is 

accepted. 

 

AREA 2: ALTERNATE (OUTDOOR KENNELS — CHAIN LINK) 

 
A. Deduct alternate to provide heavy-duty chain-link panels and gates in lieu of plastic and 

stainless steel in the Base Bid. 

 

B. State on your Bid Form the amount to deduct from the Base Bid if this alternate is 

accepted. 

 

 

END OF SECTION 

114

Item 8.



ALTERNATES 
01 2300/2 

RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BLANK PAGE 

115

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

SUBSTITUTIONS & PRODUCT OPTIONS 
01 2500 - 1 

 

SUBSTITUTIONS & PRODUCT OPTIONS 01 2500 
 

 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 

 

1.1 SCOPE 
 

A. Provide all requests for substitutions and make product selections from specified 
product options, as required by the Bidding and Contract Documents and in strict 
accordance with the provisions of this section. 

 

1.2 RELATED WORK SPECIFIED IN OTHER SECTIONS 
 

A. Contractual Requirements for Submittals: 00 7200 General Conditions and 00 7300 
Supplementary Conditions. 

 

B. Submission Requirements: 01 3000 Administrative Requirements, except submit 
only one copy. 

 

C. Substitution Request Requirements: 00 2113 Instructions to Bidders. 
 

1.3 PRE-BID SUBSTITUTION REQUESTS 
 

A. The naming of specified items on the drawings or in the specifications means that 
such named items are specifically desired by the Architect and/or Owner. Whether or 
not the words "or equal" or "or acceptable equal" follows such named items, 
substitution requests may be submitted. To receive consideration requests for 
substitution must be received by the Architect no later than 3 calendar days prior to 
bid opening Requests for substitution received by the Architect later than 3 calendar 
days prior to bid opening may be rejected without review as "non-responsive". 

 

B. Substitution Request Form: Requests must be submitted on copies of the form 
included in the Project Manual, and must name the exact item proposed with 
complete information filled out and back-up data attached as specified on the form. 
Use separate Substitution Request Form for each item. Submit electronic copy of 
form and back-up data for architectural, mechanical and electrical items. Requests 
showing only brand name or manufacturer, or otherwise incomplete, will not be 
honored. Submit samples if requested. 

 

C. It is not possible or practical to identify in the Contract Documents every factor and 
criteria that has bearing on the design and quality of materials and construction of 
which the Architect is aware and must consider in evaluating a proposed substitution 
and that may be a valid cause for non-acceptance. The Architect is the sole judge as 
to the equality and acceptability of proposed substitutions. Only written acceptances 
will be held valid by the Architect. Under no circumstances shall the Architect's 
acceptance of any such substitution relieve the Contractor from timely, complete, full 
and proper performance of the work. 

 

D. After the contract is awarded, if revision or arrangement of other equipment is 
required by any substituted item, drawings showing these revisions must be prepared 
and submitted as specified for Shop Drawings submittals. 

116

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

SUBSTITUTIONS & PRODUCT OPTIONS 
01 2500 - 2 

 

1.4 AFTER-AWARD-OF-CONTRACT SUBSTITUTION REQUESTS 
 

A. Substitution requests will be considered only under the following conditions: 

1. Unavailability of specified product due to a strike, lockout, bankruptcy, 
discontinuance of the manufacturer of a product, or natural disasters. Submit 
proof that orders were placed within 10 days after review by the Architect of the 
item listed in the specifications. Failure to order materials in time for proper 
delivery is not an acceptable condition. 

2. When a guarantee of performance is required and, in the judgment of the 
Contractor, the specified product or process will not produce the desired result. 

3. Substantial advantage is offered Owner after deducting offsetting disadvantages 
including delays; additional compensation to Architect for redesign, investigation, 
evaluation, and other necessary services; and similar considerations. 

4. Proposal includes all necessary coordination and modifications to design, 
required appurtenances, et cetera, for complete and proper functioning of 
proposed substitutions, and includes a waiver of all claims for additional costs, 
under Contractor’s responsibility, which may subsequently become apparent. 

 

B. Submit request for such substitutions in writing to the Architect within 10 days of the 
date of ascertaining unavailability of material or equipment specified, or that the 
performance cannot be guaranteed. 

 

C. If any substitution will affect a correlated function, adjacent construction, or the work 
of other trades or contractors, the necessary changes and modifications to the 
affected work shall be considered as part of the substitution, to be accomplished 
without additional cost to the Owner, if and when accepted. 

 

D. It is not possible or practical to identify in the Contract Documents every factor and 
criteria that has bearing on the design and quality of materials and construction of 
which the Architect is aware and must consider in evaluating a proposed substitution 
and that may be a valid cause for non-acceptance. Approved substitutions will be 
effected by a Change Order. Under no circumstances shall the Architect's 
acceptance of any such substitution relieve the Contractor from timely, full and proper 
performance of the work. 

 

E. Contractor’s submittal of, and Architect’s acceptance of, shop drawings, product data, 
or samples which indicate Work not complying with requirements of Contract 
Documents, does not constitute an acceptable and valid request for, nor approval of, 
a substitution. 

 

1.5 PRODUCT OPTIONS 
 

A. General Limitations: Where possible, provide entire required quantity of each generic 
product, material, or equipment from a single source; and, where not possible to do 
so, match separate procurements as closely as possible. To extent selection process 
is under Contractor’s control, provide compatible products, materials and equipment. 
Where available and complying with requirements, provide standard products which 
have been used previously and successfully in similar applications, and which are 
recommended by the manufacturer for the application indicated. 

 

B. Product Selections: Comply with following for selection of products, materials, and 
equipment: 

1. Single Product Named: Where "no substitute" is specified provide only that 

117

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

SUBSTITUTIONS & PRODUCT OPTIONS 
01 2500 - 3 

 

product, unless determined to be unavailable, non-compatible with the work, or 
non-complying with Contract Documents or governing regulations. 

2. One or More Products Named (with or without "or acceptable equal"): Provide 
one of the named products which complies with contract Documents, identified 
as the basis of the design, or comply with requirements for gaining approval on 
"substitution" to select and use an unnamed product (i.e., implied "or equal"). 

3. Compliance With Standards: Selection of product which complies with Contract 
Documents, including applicable standards, is Contractor’s option, subject to 
Architect’s approval. 

4. Performance Requirements: Selection of product which has been tested to show 
compliance with Contract Documents, including indicated performances, is 
Contractor’s option, subject to Architect’s approval. 

5. Prescriptive Requirements: Selection of product which has been certified by 
manufacturer to comply with Contract Documents, including prescriptive 
requirements, is Contractor’s option, subject to Architect’s approval. 

6. Visual Requirements: Where indicated to be selected from manufacturer’s 
standard options, selection is Architect’s, subsequent to determination or 
selection of manufacturer (Contractor’s option). Where indicated to be selected 
from among standard options available within industry, selection is Architect’s 
prior to determination or selection of manufacturer. 

7. Other Materials: All other materials, not specifically described, but required for a 
complete and proper installation the Work, shall be new, first quality of their 
respective kinds, and as selected by the Contractor subject to the approval of the 
Architect. 

C. Refer to Section 01 6000 Product Requirements for general products, materials, 
equipment, and installation requirements which applies to all of the Work. 

 

1.6 SUBMITTALS 
 

A. Requests for Substitutions: Submit requests for substitutions on copies of 
Substitution Request Form, fully identified for product, material or method being 
replaced by substitution, including related specification section(s) and drawing 
number(s), and fully documented to show compliance with requirements for 
substitutions. Include full documentation, including: Product data, samples where 
appropriate, detailed performance comparisons and evaluation, testing laboratory 
reports where applicable, coordination information for effect on other work and time 
schedule, cost information for proposed change order, Contractor’s general 
certification of recommended substitution, and similar information relevant to 
circumstances. 

 

B. Certification: Submit with substitution request certification by Contractor to the effect 
that, in its opinion and after its thorough evaluation, proposed substitution will result in 
total work which is equal to or better than the work originally required by Contract 
Documents, in every respect of significance except as specifically stated in 
certification; and that it will perform adequately in application indicated, regardless of 
equality and exceptions thereto. Include in certification, Contractor’s waiver of rights 
to additional payment and time which may subsequently be necessitated, by failure of 
substitution to perform adequately, and for required work to make corrections thereof 
in accordance with provisions of the Contract Documents. 

 

C. Change Order Procedure: Submit requests for substitutions which propose a change 
in either the Contract Sum or Contract Time, as required by this section and in form 
and by procedures required for change order proposals. 

118

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

SUBSTITUTIONS & PRODUCT OPTIONS 
01 2500 - 4 

 

D. Action by Architect: Architect will request additional information or documentation as 
may be needed for his evaluation of request. Architect will notify the Contractor of 
either acceptance or rejection of proposed substitution. Rejection will include 
statement of reasons for rejection (non-compliances with requirements for requested 
substitutions, or other sufficient reasons). 

 

E. Approval: Approval of substitution is possible only by written approval. Approval of 
substitution that affect a change in cost or time is possible only by Change Order 
procedure. 

 

PART 2 - NOT USED. 
 

PART 3 - NOT USED. 
 

 

END OF SECTION 

119

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

ADMINISTRATIVE  REQUIREMENTS 

01 3000 - 1 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS 01 3000 
 

 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 

 

1.1 SCOPE 
 

A. Provide all submittals, including shop drawings, product data, samples, schedules, 
reports, and requests for substitutions, as required by the Bidding and Contract 
Documents and in strict accordance with the provisions of this section. 

 

1.2 RELATED WORK SPECIFIED IN OTHER SECTIONS 
 

A. Contractual Requirements for Submittals: 00 7200 General Conditions and 00 7300 
Supplementary Conditions. 

 

B. Individual Submittals Required: Pertinent sections of these specifications. 
 

C. Substitution Request Requirements: 00 1000 Bid Solicitation, and 01 2500 Product 
Substitution Procedures. 

 

PART 2 - PRODUCTS 
 

2.1 SHOP DRAWINGS 
 

A. Submit required shop drawings drawn to a scale sufficiently large to show all 
pertinent features of the item and its method of connection to the work. Submit 
related shop drawings together; partial submittals will not be accepted. Provide 
manufacturer’s name and model number of prefabricated items and indicate methods 
of attachment and clearances required relative to other trades affecting all elements 
of the work. Identify deviations from the Contract Documents (if any), check 
dimensions, check that trades have been coordinated and that no conflict will develop 
in this installation. Originator shall indicate its review and check of shop drawings 
with reviewer's initials. After reviewing the shop drawings and prior to submitting to 
Architect, indicate Contractor's approval by signing and dating on Contractor's stamp. 
Upon review by Architect shop drawings that appear not to be thoroughly coordinated 
and checked are subject to rejection without further review. Failure to follow these 
procedures will result in rejection of the submission and no additional contract time 
will be allowed for delay from this cause. 

 

2.2 PRODUCT DATA AND SAMPLES 
 

A. Submit electronic copies of product data for Architect's review for items specified in 
the various specification sections. Submit samples, where specified, along with 
product data. Make all submissions affecting color selection within 30 days after 
signing the contract. Mark data clearly to indicate exact items submitted, and note 
deviations from Contract Documents (if any). After reviewing the submittals, indicate 
approval by signing and dating on Contractor’s stamp, and submit to the Architect for 
review. 

120

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

ADMINISTRATIVE  REQUIREMENTS 

01 3000 - 2 

 

2.3 PROGRESS SCHEDULE 
 

A. Within 7 days after Notice to Proceed, submit to the Architect a bar- chart type 
progress schedule indicating a time bar for each trade or operation of work to be 
performed at the site. Time bar shall demonstrate planned work, properly sequenced 
and intermeshed, for expeditious completion of work. Identify phases if required. 

 

B. Submit progress schedule on reproducible stock as specified for shop drawing. 
 

C. Distribute progress schedule including all updates to Architect, Owner, 
subcontractors, suppliers, fabricators, and others with a need-to-know schedule 
compliance requirement. 

 

2.4 SCHEDULE OF VALUES 
 

A. Submit schedule of values on AIA Document G703 (Continuation Sheet for G702). 
Itemize separate line cost for each major item of work and each subcontracted item of 
work. 

 

2.5 APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT 
 

A. Submit Application and Certificate for Payment in format established by AIA 
Document G702 and G703. 

 

2.6 MANUAL 
 

A. Upon completion of the work and prior to final payment, submit to the Architect a flash 
drive, containing five indexed sections as follows: 

1. Subcontractors: A listing of all subcontractors for the project, including portions 
of work done, address and telephone number of the firm, and contact at the firm 
familiar with the project. 

2. Guaranties and Warranties: One fully executed copy of each guaranty and 
warranty specified. 

3. Certificates: One fully executed copy of each certificate specified. 

4. Instructions: One operating, service, and maintenance manual or instruction 
sheet for each item specified. 

5. List of Record Drawings, Shop Drawings, Product Data, and Samples. 

2.7 DRAWINGS AND SUBMITTALS PACKAGE 
 

A. Upon completion of the work and prior to final payment, submit a flash drive labeled 
with the project name and containing one copy of all final record drawings, 
specifications, shop drawings, product data, and samples. In addition, submit one set 
of record drawings to be retained by the Architect. 

 

PART 3 - EXECUTION 
 

3.1 IDENTIFICATION OF SUBMITTALS 
 

A. Completely identify each submittal and resubmittal by showing at least the following 
information (on the transmittal letter), without exception. Submittals without complete 
identification are subject to return without review. 

1. Name and address of submitter, plus name and telephone number of the 

121

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

ADMINISTRATIVE  REQUIREMENTS 

01 3000 - 3 

 

individual who may be contacted for further information. 
2. Name of project as it appears on each page of these specifications. 
3. Drawing number and specifications section number to which the submittal 

applies. 
4. Whether this is an original submittal or resubmittal. 

5. Contractor’s approval stamp certifying its review and coordination. 
 

3.2 TIMING OF SUBMITTALS 
 

A. General: Make all submittals far enough in advance of scheduled dates of installation 
to provide all required time for reviews, for securing necessary approvals, for possible 
revision and re-submittal, and for placing orders and securing delivery. 

 

B. Delays: Costs of delays due to late submittals may be back-charged as necessary 

and shall not be borne by the Owner or Architect. 
 

 

END OF SECTION 

122

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

ADMINISTRATIVE  REQUIREMENTS 

01 3000 - 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BLANK PAGE 

123

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

PROJECT  MANAGEMENT  & COORDINATION 

01 3100 - 1 

 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT & COORDINATION 01 3100 
 

 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 

 

1.1 RELATED DOCUMENTS 
 

A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and 
Supplementary Conditions and Division 1 General Requirements Sections apply to all 
Work. 

 

1.2 ADMINISTRATION AND SUPERVISION 
 

A. Coordination: Coordinate various elements of the Work and entities engaged to 
perform the Work; and coordinate the Work with existing conditions, and with Work by 
separate contractors (if any) and the Owner. 

 

B. Pre-Construction Meeting: Within 15 days after execution of agreement, the Architect 
will prepare an agenda and schedule a pre-construction meeting. Written notice of 
meeting date, time and place, and agenda items will be sent to the Owner, 
Contractor, and Separate Contractors. The Contractor shall be responsible for 
notifying major Subcontractors of meeting. 

 

C. Project Meetings: Conduct general progress and coordination meetings at least once 
weekly, attended by a representative of each primary entity engaged for performance 
of the Work. Hold additional meetings as progress of work dictates or when 
requested by the Architect. At least 4 days prior to meeting, send written notice of 
meeting date, time and place, and agenda of meeting to the Owner, Architect, 
Separate Contractors, Subcontractors and others as pertinent to agenda. Record 
discussions and decisions, and within 4 days distribute copies to those attending and 
others affected including the Architect. Schedule meetings to coordinate with 
preparation of payment requests. 

 

1.3 INSPECTIONS AND TESTS 
 

A. General: Provide required inspection and testing services specified to be by 
independent agencies, where not indicated specifically as Owner's responsibility (this 
provision supplements General Conditions). Neither inspection and test results nor 
failure thereof to disclose deficiencies relieves Contractor of responsibility to comply 
with requirements of Contract Documents. Provide services to inspection and testing 
agencies (Owner’s and Contractor's), including taking and delivery of samples, 
patching Work and similar assistance. Require engaged agencies to perform 
indicated testing and submit reports promptly; and to report significant observations 
having an important bearing on the Work, to the Architect by the most expeditious 
means possible. 

 

1.4 FIELD ENGINEERING AND LAYOUT 
 

A. General: Working from lines and levels established by the property survey, and as 
shown in relation to the Work, establish and maintain bench marks and other 
dependable markers to set the lines and levels for the Work at each level of 
construction and elsewhere on the Site as needed to properly locate every element of 
the Work of the entire Project. Calculate and measure required dimensions as shown 
(within recognized tolerances if not otherwise indicated); do not scale the drawings to 

124

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

PROJECT  MANAGEMENT  & COORDINATION 

01 3100 - 2 

 

determine dimensions. Maintain a log of layout work. Record deviations (if any) from 
Contract Document information on existing conditions, and review with Architect at 
time of discovery. Continuously advise tradesmen performing the Work, of the 
marked lines and levels provided for use in the layout of the Work. 

 

1.5 CUTTING AND PATCHING 
 

A. Structural Work: Do not cut and patch structural work in a manner resulting in a 
reduction of load carrying capacity or load/deflection ratio. Submit proposal and 
request and obtain Architect’s approval before proceeding with cutting and patching 
of structural work. 

 

B. Operational/Safety Limitations: Do not cut and patch operational elements and safety 
components in a manner resulting in decreased performance, shortened useful life, or 
increased maintenance. Submit proposals and requests and obtain Architect’s 
acceptance before proceeding with cutting and patching of such work. 

 

C. Visual/Quality Limitations: Do not cut and patch Work exposed to view (exterior and 
interior) in a manner resulting in noticeable reduction of visual qualities and similar 
qualities, as judged by the Architect. 

 

D. Limitations on Approvals: Architect’s approval to proceed with cutting and patching 
does not waive right to later require removal/replacement of Work found to be cut and 
patched in an unsatisfactory manner, as judged by the Architect. 

 
 

PART 2 - NOT USED 

PART 3 - NOT USED 

 

END OF SECTION 

125

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

SPECIAL PROCEDURES 

01 3500 - 1 

 

SPECIAL PROCEDURES 01 3500 
 

 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 

 

1.1 SCOPE 
 

A. Administrative and procedural requirements for Special Procedures. 
 

1.2 ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. Acceleration of Work: 

1. Complete the Work in accordance with Construction Schedule. If Contractor falls 
behind schedule, take such actions as are necessary, at no additional expense to 
Owner, to bring progress of the Work back in accordance with schedule. 

2. Owner may request proposal for completion of the Work at date earlier than 
expiration of Contract Time: 
a. Promptly provide requested proposal showing cost of such acceleration of 

the Work. Consult with owner and Architect regarding possible options to 
decrease cost of such acceleration. 

b. If Owner determines to order acceleration of the Work, change in Contract 
Sum and Contract Time resulting from acceleration will be included in a 
Change Order. 

 

B. QUALITY ASSURANCE 

1. Regulatory Agency Sustainability Approvals. 
a. Meet regulation of 29 CFR 1926 OSHA, ‘Construction Industry Regulations’. 
b. Owner’s Safety Requirements: 

(1) Personal  Protection: 

(a) Contractor shall ensure: 
i. Positive means of fall protection, such as guardrails system, 

safety net system, personal fall arrest system, etc., is provide 
to employees whenever exposed to a fall 6 feet or more 
above a lower level. 

ii. Personnel working on Project shall wear hard hats and safety 
glasses as required by regulation and hazard. 

iii. Personnel working on Project shall wear long or shirt sleeve 
shorts, long pants, and hard-toes boots or other sturdy shoes 
appropriate to type and phase of work being performed. 

(b) Contractor Tools and Equipment: 
i. Contractor shall ensure: 

(i) Tools and equipment are in good working condition, well 
maintained, and have necessary guards in place. 

(ii) Ground Fault Circuit Interrupter (GFCI) is utilized on 
power cords and tools. 

(iii) Scaffolding and man lifts are in good working conditions, 
erected and maintained as required by governmental 
regulations. 

(iv) Ladders are in good condition, well maintained, used as 
specified by Manufacturer, and secured as required. 

ii. Miscellaneous — Contractor shall ensure: 
(i) Protection is provided on protruding rebar and other 

126

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

SPECIAL PROCEDURES 

01 3500 - 2 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

(ÎV) 

 
 
 

(v) 

 
(VÎ) 

similar objects. 
General Contractor Superintendent has completed the 
OSHA 10-hour construction outreach training course or 
equivalent. 
Implementation and administration of safety program on 
Project. 
Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) are provided for 
substances or materials for which an MSDS is required 
by governmental regulation before bringing on site. 
Consistent safety training is provide to employees on 
Project. 
Implement and coordinate Lockout/Tagout procedures 
with Owner’s Representative as required. 

Report accidents involving injury to employees on Project that 
require off-site medical treatment to Owner’s designated 
representative. 

(C) HOt Work Permit: 

i. Permit shall document that fire prevention and protection 
requirements in 29 CFR 1926.352, ‘Fire Prevention’ have 
been implemented prior to beginning hot work operations. 
Required for doing hot work involving open flames or 
producing heat or sparks such as: 
(i) Brazing 
(ii) Cutting 
(iii) Grinding 
(iv) Soldering 
(v) Thawing pip 
(vi) Torch applied roofing 

(vii) Welding. 
 

PART 2 - PRODUCTS — Not Applicable 

PART 3 - EXECUTION — Not Applicable 

 

END OF SECTION 

127

Item 8.



RAC - Kennels 
18-524.01 

CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES AND TEMPORARY 

CONTROLS 01 5000 - 1 

 

CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES AND TEMPORARY CONTROLS 01 5000 
 

 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 

 

1.1 GENERAL DEFINITIONS 
 

A. Refer to General Conditions for basic commitments to provide temporary facilities. 
This section specifies certain minimum temporary facilities to be provided, regardless 
of methods and means selected for performance of the Work, but not by way of 
limitation and not assured for compliance with governing regulations. Use of 
alternate temporary facilities is Contractor's option, subject to Architect’s acceptance. 
Temporary facilities are defined to exclude tools and construction machines, testing, 
alterations, mock-ups, and similar items. 

 

B. Costs: Except as otherwise indicated, costs associated with temporary facilities are 
Contractor’s (in Contract Sum), including power/fuel/water usage, maintenance, and 
removal until time of Substantial Completion for each major area of Project. 
Temporary facilities remain property of Contractor. 

 

C. Acquisition of temporary facilities and their use by subcontractors shall be as 
designated by Contractor. 

 

1.2 TEMPORARY UTILITY SERVICES 
 

A. Sources: Connect with local/municipal services and franchised utility companies 
where feasible. 

1. Water: Clean and drinkable. 
2. Changeover: At earliest feasible date, use permanent utility services installed for 

project, and disconnect and remove temporary service lines. Prior to Substantial 
Completion, restore permanent utilities to specified (or existing) conditions. 

 

1.3 TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES 
 

A. Enclosure: Enclose spaces requiring temporary heat, and other spaces where Work 

would otherwise be adversely affected. 
 

B. Temporary Heating and Ventilation: Provide temporary heat where indicated and 
where needed for the proper performance of the work, for curing or drying of work 
recently installed, and protection of work in place from adverse effects of low 
temperatures. Until the time the mechanical-electrical systems of Project can be 
used to provide temporary heat, provide space heaters which are UL labeled and 
approved for construction space heating by appropriate agency. Provide adequate 
ventilation and thermostatic control. 

 

C. Construction Aids: Provide and maintain for the duration of construction temporary 
equipment and apparatus including scaffolds, canopies, tarpaulins, barricades, 
warning signs, steps, ladders, platforms, ramps, and other temporary construction 
aids and miscellaneous facilities as necessary for proper completion of the work. 
Comply with pertinent safety regulations. 

 

D. Miscellaneous Facilities: Provide miscellaneous facilities as needed. 

128

Item 8.



RAC - Kennels 
18-524.01 

CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES AND TEMPORARY 

CONTROLS 01 5000 - 2 

 

1.4 TEMPORARY SUPPORT FACILITIES 
 

A. General: Provide facilities and services as may be needed to properly support 
primary construction process and meet governing regulations. Do not use permanent 
facilities except as otherwise indicated, and except after time of Substantial 
Completion. 

 

B. Temporary Sanitary Facilities: Provide on-site temporary toilet facilities for use of all 
construction personnel; maintain in a sanitary condition at all times. Comply with 
applicable codes and regulations of the authorities having jurisdiction. Do not permit 
use of permanent facilities. 

 

1.5 SECURITY AND PROTECTION 
 

A. General: Provide facilities and services as necessary to effectively protect Project 
from losses and people from injury during course of construction. 

 

B. Lockup and Security: As construction of building structure or shell progresses and it 
becomes feasible to secure Project against intrusion, provide temporary security 
enclosure, doors, and locks as necessary to prevent unauthorized entrance. 

 

1.6 REMOVAL 
 

A. Maintain all construction facilities and temporary controls as long as needed for the 
safe and proper completion of the work. Remove all such temporary facilities and 
controls as rapidly as progress of the work will permit or as directed by the Architect. 

 

PART 2 - NOT USED 

PART 3 - NOT USED 

 

END OF SECTION 

129

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

PRODUCT REQUIREMENTS 
01 6000 - 1 

 

PRODUCT REQUIREMENTS 01 6000 
 

 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 

 

1.1 STANDARDS AND REGULATIONS 
 

A. General Applicability of Standards: As indicated in the Contract Documents, and 
except to the extent more explicit or more stringent requirements are written directly 
into the Contract Documents, applicable standards of the construction industry have 
the same force and effect (and are made a part of the Contract Documents by 
reference) as if copied directly into the Contract Documents, or as if published copies 
were bound herewith. Immediately refer discrepancies to Architect for resolution of 
overlapping and conflicting requirements which result from the application of several 
different industry standards to the same unit of work. 

1. Referenced standards (referenced directly in the Contract Documents or by 
governing regulation) have precedence over non-referenced standards which are 
recognized in the industry for applicability to the work. 

2. Non-referenced standards are hereby defined, except as otherwise limited in the 
Contract Documents, to have direct applicability to the work as recognized in the 
building construction industry, and will be so enforced for the performance of the 
work. 

 

B. Publication Dates: Except as otherwise indicated, where compliance with an industry 
standard is required, comply with the standard in effect as of the date of the Contract 
Documents. 

 

1.2 GOVERNING REGULATION/AUTHORITIES 
 

A. General: Contact governing authorities directly for necessary information and 
decisions having a bearing on the performance of the Work. 

 

B. Applicable Codes: For the purposes of this Project the codes and regulations that 
shall apply to the Work include, but are not necessarily limited to the following: 

1. International Building Code 
2. International Fire Code 
3. International Mechanical Code 
4. International Plumbing Code 

5. National Electric Code 
6. UL Fire Resistance Directory 
7. Any adopting Ordinances by City of Republic, MO. 

 

1.3 WARRANTIES (GUARANTIES) 
 

A. Categories of warranties required for the Work include the following. Refer to sections 
of Divisions 2 through 33 for requirements of specified warranties. 

1. Special project warranty issued by Contractor and, where required, 
countersigned by Installer or other recognized entity involved in performance of 
the work. 

2. Specified product warranty issued by a manufacturer or fabricator, for 
compliance with requirements in Contract Documents. 

130

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

PRODUCT REQUIREMENTS 
01 6000 - 2 

 

3. Coincidental product warranty available on a product incorporated into the Work, 
by virtue of manufacturer's publication of warranty without regard for application 
requirements (non-specified warranty). 

 

B. Warranty Obligations: Requirements for correction of the Work shall be as required in 
the General Conditions, AIA A201-2017 paragraph 12.2, as modified. The obligations 
of the Contractor for correction of defective Work and fulfilling terms of warranties 
survives Final Completion of the project. The obligations of the Contractor shall be as 
required by the Contract Documents and shall not be limited by the availability or 
terms of manufacturer's warranty. Restore or remove and replace warranted Work to 
its originally specified condition, at such time during warranty as it does not comply 
with or fulfill terms of warranty. Restore or remove and replace other Work which has 
been damaged by failure of warranted Work, or which must be removed and replaced 
to gain access to warranted Work. Except as otherwise indicated or required by 
governing regulations, warranties do not cover consequential damages to other than 
Work of the Contract, (e.g. building contents). Cost of restoration or removal and 
replacement is Contractor's obligation, without regard to whether Owner has already 
benefited from use of failing Work. 

 

C. Reinstatement of Warranty: Upon restoration or removal and replacement of 
warranted Work which has failed, reinstate the warranty by issuing newly executed 
form, for at least the remaining period of time of the original warranty, but for not less 
than half of the original warranty period. 

 

D. Owner’s Recourse: Warranties and warranty periods do not diminish implied 
warranties, and do not deprive Owner of actions, rights and remedies otherwise 
available under law for Contractor’s failure to fulfill requirements of the Contract 
Documents. Owner reserves the right to reject coincidental product warranties 
considered to be conflicting with or detracting from requirements of the Contract 
Documents. 

 

1.4 DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

A. Omissions from the drawings or specifications or the misdescription of details of Work 
which are manifestly necessary to carry out the intent of the Contract Documents, or 
which are customarily performed, shall not relieve the Contractor from performing 
such omitted or misdescribed details of the Work, and the Work shall be performed as 
if fully and correctly set forth and described in the Contract Documents. Obligations 
of the Contractor to review the Contract Documents, to report discrepancies, and to 
request clarification are described in the General Conditions and Supplementary 
Conditions. 

 

1.5 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING 
 

A. General: Receive, store and handle products, materials and equipment in a manner 
which will prevent loss, deterioration and damage. Schedule deliveries to minimize 
long term storage at project site. Deliver manufactured  materials in original 
unopened packages bearing the name of the manufacturer, and as applicable, testing 
agency label and with complete manufacturer’s instructions for installation of material 
according to approved test report. 

 

PART 2 - PRODUCTS -- Not Applicable 

131

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

PRODUCT REQUIREMENTS 
01 6000 - 3 

 

PART 3 - EXECUTION 
 

3.1 PREPARATION FOR INSTALLATION 
 

A. Prior to starting installation of each major component of the Work, hold a pre- 
installation conference, attended by each entity involved or affected by planned 
installation. Include technical representatives of product manufacturer(s) and others 
recognized as expert or otherwise capable of influencing the success of the 
installation. Review significant aspects of requirements for the Work. 

 

B. Coordinate the Work of other trades as required to make provisions for proper 
installation of specified Work. Verify that the specified Work may be installed in 
accordance with all pertinent codes and regulation, the original design, and the 
accepted submittals. 

 

C. Examine Work in place on which specified Work is in any way dependent. Inspect 
substrate and conditions for installation, make field measurement to verify or 
supplement dimensions indicated. Report (in writing) unsatisfactory conditions. 
Correct unsatisfactory conditions before proceeding. Inspect each product 
immediately before installation, and do not install damaged or defective products, 
materials or equipment. 

 

D. Whenever possible fabricator shall make field measurements prior to preparation of 
shop drawings and fabrication to ensure proper fitting of specified Work. Otherwise, 
make allowances for field fitting and indicate actual field measurements on shop 
drawings. 

 

3.2 INSTALLATION, GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. Comply with applicable fire rated assemblies, governing regulations, and latest 
manufacturer’s instructions and recommendations to extent printed information is 
more detailed or stringent than requirements contained directly in Contract 
Documents. Report discrepancies to Architect requesting clarification before 
proceeding with Work. 

 

B. For installation of specified Work use only personnel who are skilled in the Work 
required, completely familiar with the manufacturer’s recommended methods of 
installation, and thoroughly familiar with the requirements for the specified Work. 

 

C. Install Work during time and under conditions which will ensure best possible results, 
coordinated with required inspections and testing. 

 

D. Anchor Work securely in place, properly located by measured line and level, 
organized for best possible uniformity, visual effect, operational efficiency, durability, 
and similar benefit to Owner's use. Isolate non-compatible materials from contact, 
sufficiently to prevent deterioration. 

 

E. Install individual units of Work at industry recognized mounting heights, if not 
otherwise indicated; refer uncertainties to Architect before proceeding. 

 

F. Where indicated or needed for operation and maintenance, provide permanent 
nameplates on equipment, located in inconspicuous places, and containing suitable 
information and operation data. Do not remove fire classification labels or paint or 
otherwise cause to be unreadable. 

132

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

PRODUCT REQUIREMENTS 
01 6000 - 4 

 

3.3 CORRECTION OF DEFECTIVE WORK 
 

A. Restore all defective or damaged Work to initial or specified condition. Defective or 
damaged items or components which cannot be repaired or restored to initial or 
specified condition shall be removed and replaced at no additional cost to Owner. 
Refer to related requirements in General Conditions, AIA A201-2017 Article 12, 
Correction of Work, as modified. 

 

3.4 TESTING AND INSPECTION 
 

A. Make all necessary arrangements for and coordinate specified Work with required 
inspections and tests by governing authority or independent testing agency. 

 

B. Make all necessary arrangements for and secure all required inspections and all 

required approvals from all regulatory agencies having jurisdiction. 
 

3.5 CLEANING AND PROTECTION 
 

A. General: Clean each element of Work at time of installation. Provide sufficient 
maintenance and protection during construction to ensure freedom from damage and 
deterioration at time of Substantial Completion. 

 

 

END OF SECTION 

133

Item 8.



RAC - Kennels 
18-524.01 

EXECUTION  AND  CLOSEOUT PROCEDURES 

01 7000 - 1 

 

EXECUTION AND CLOSEOUT PROCEDURES 01 7000 
 

 

PART 1 - GENERAL 
 

1.1 GENERAL 
 

A. The provisions of this section apply primarily to closeout of actual physical work, not 
to administrative matters such as final payment and changeover of insurance. 
Closeout requirements relate to both Final Completion and Substantial Completion of 
Work, and apply to individual portions of completed Work as well as the total Work. 
Specific requirements in other sections have precedence over general requirements 
of this section. 

 

B. After Substantial Completion, continue to diligently prosecute all remaining Work in 
an organized, efficient manner until completion. 

 

1.2 PROCEDURES AT SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 
 

A. Prerequisites: Comply with General and Supplementary Conditions and Division 1 
General Requirements and complete the following before requesting Architect's 
inspection of the Work, or designated portion, for Substantial Completion. 

1. Submit executed warranties, workmanship bonds, maintenance agreements, 
inspection certificates and similar required documentation for specific units of 
Work, enabling Owner’s unrestricted occupancy and use. 

2. Submit record documentation, maintenance manuals, tools, spare parts, extra 
materials, keys, and similar operational items. 

3. Test all equipment and systems demonstrating to Architect they are correctly 
installed and operating properly. Submit written record of the tests and results. 

4. Complete instruction of Owner’s operating personnel, and startup of systems. 
5. Complete final cleaning, and remove temporary facilities and tools. 

 

B. Inspection Procedures: Upon receipt of Contractor’s request, including Contractor's 
initial punch list, Architect will either proceed with inspection or advise Contractor of 
prerequisites not fulfilled. Following initial inspection, Architect will either prepare 
Certificate of Substantial Completion, or advise Contractor of Work which must be 
performed prior to issuance of certificate; and repeat inspection when requested and 
assured that Work has been substantially completed. Results of completed 
inspection will form the "punch list" for final inspection. 

 

1.3 PROCEDURES AT FINAL ACCEPTANCE 
 

A. Re-inspection Procedure: Upon receipt of Contractor's notice that Work has been 
completed, including punch list items resulting from earlier inspections, and accepting 
incomplete items delayed because of acceptable circumstances, Architect will re- 
inspect Work. Upon completion of re-inspection, Architect will either recommend final 
acceptance and final payment, or advise Contractor of Work not completed or 
obligations not fulfilled as required for final acceptance. If necessary, procedure will 
be repeated. 

134

Item 8.



RAC - Kennels 
18-524.01 

EXECUTION  AND  CLOSEOUT PROCEDURES 

01 7000 - 2 

 

1.4 RECORD DOCUMENTATION 
 

A. Maintenance Manuals: Provide flash drive containing required maintenance 
manuals, properly identified and indexed per the specification section. Include 
operating and maintenance instructions extended to cover emergencies, spare parts, 
warranties, inspection procedures, diagrams, safety, security, and similar appropriate 
data for each system or equipment item. 

 

1.5 GENERAL CLOSEOUT REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. Operator Instructions: Require each Installer of systems requiring continued 
operation/maintenance by Owner’s operating personnel, to provide on location 
instruction to Owner’s personnel, sufficient to ensure safe, secure, efficient, 
non-failing utilization and operation of systems. As a minimum, provide instructions 
for the following categories of Work. 

1. Kennel Enclosure Information and colors 
 

B. Final Cleaning: At closeout time, clean or re-clean entire Work to normal level for 
"first class" maintenance/cleaning of building projects of similar nature. Remove 
non-permanent protection and labels, clean exposed finishes, touch-up minor finish 
damage, remove debris and broom clean non-occupied spaces, sweep and wash 
paved areas, police yards and grounds, and perform similar cleanup operations 
needed to produce a "clean" condition as judged by the Architect. 

 

 
PART 2 - NOT APPLICABLE 

PART 3 - NOT APPLICABLE 

 
 

END OF SECTION 

135

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

KENNEL ENCLOSURES & GATES 
13 1913 - 1 

 

(BASE BID) KENNEL ENCLOSURES & CAGES 13 1913 
 

 

PART 1 - GENERAL 

 
RELATED DOCUMENTS 

 
A.  Drawings and general provisions of Contract, including General and Supplementary 

Conditions and Division-1 Specification sections, apply to work of this section. 

 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK 

 
A. Extent of kennel enclosures and cages is indicated on drawings. 

 
     QUALITY ASSURANCE 

 
A. Provide aluminum plastic panel kennel dividers with stainless steel gates and latches in 

Indoor & Outdoor Pens Areas. 

 
SUBMITTALS 

 
A.  Product Data: Submit manufacturer’s technical data, and installation instructions for 

metal panels, FRP panels, fibergalss enclosures, gates and accessories. 

 

PART 2 - PRODUCTS 

GENERAL 

A. Available Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements, manufacturers 

offering products which may be incorporated in the work include, but are not limited to, 

the following: 

1. Stainless Steel/FRP Dividers with Stainless steel stall fronts and gates: 

a. Mason Company 

b. Shor-Line 

c. Snyder Manufacturing 

2. Fiberglass Cages 

a. Mason Company 

b. Shor-Line 

c. Snyder Manufacturing 

 
KENNELS - ALUMINUM/FRP/STAINLESS STEEL DIVIDERS W/ STAINLESS STEEL 

STALL FRONTS & GATES 

 

A. Basis of Design is by Mason Co. Dividers are aluminum framed isolation panels with 

FRP on bottom portion and stainless-steel welded wire on upper portion; gates and 

latches are stainless steel. 

136

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

KENNEL ENCLOSURES & GATES 
13 1913 - 2 

 

1. Divider Panels: 

a. Panels shall be constructed of an outer framework of 6063-T52 aluminum U- 

channel "7‹" x "/" x 1/8" thick. Internal braces shall be 6061-T6 aluminum H- 

channels 117a" x "7‹" x 1/8" thick. 

b. Bottom Portion of isolation panels shall be .030" FRP bonded on each side of 

a .400" HDPE substrate (48" high). Solid faced panels to be perimeter sealed 

to the aluminum framework (48" high). 

c. Upper portion of isolation panels shall be constructed from stainless steel 

welded wire. 

(1) Wire panels shall be welded at each juncture and shall consist of 3/16” 

diameter vertical wires with 117a" spacing between wires and 3/16" 

diameter horizontal wires with 4°/4” spacing between wires. 

(2) Wire panels shall be contained by means of a semi-rigid PVC extrusion 

inset into the aluminum frame. 

2. Stainless Steel Gates & Stall Fronts 

a. Gate and stall front frames shall consist of 1" x 16 gauge square 304 A-554 

welded stainless steel tubing with 180 grit polish. Each corner of the frame 

shall be TIG welded. 

b. Gate grids shall be constructed of 304 stainless steel wire 3/16" in diameter in 

the vertical direction with 15/16” spacing between wires, and 304 stainless 

steel wire 3/16" in diameter in the horizontal direction with 3-5/8" or less 

spacing between wires. 

c. Horizontal and vertical wires shall be resistance welded at each juncture and 

each wire shall insert into the framework. 

d. Gate Hinges shall consist of two 3/8" diameter stainless steel hex head screws 

which shall be threaded into stainless steel tapped plugs inserted into the top 

and bottom of the door frame. Each plug shall contain a nylon pivot bushing 

for smooth precision rotation. 

e. Patented stainless steel two-way latch shall open both outward and inward. 

The latch shall secure automatically when gate is closed from the outward 

position and from the inward position it shall be able to latch and open from 

the inside of kennel. It shall be designed to accept a padlock. The two-way 

latch bar, the latch catch, and the swing pendant shall be made from 304 

stainless steel. 

 

  

137

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

KENNEL ENCLOSURES & GATES 
13 1913 - 3 

 

 
PART 3 - EXECUTION 

     INSTALLATION 

A. Do not begin installation and erection before construction is completed, unless 

otherwise permitted. 

 
B. Gates: Install gates plumb, level, and secure for full opening without interference. 

Adjust hardware for smooth operation and lubricate where necessary. 

 

C. Clean and disinfect kennel enclosures and observation cages at Substantial 

Completion. 

 

D. Lubricate door hinges, adjust gate locks and any other moving parts at Substantial 

Completion to ensure proper operation. 

 
 

 

END OF SECTION 

138

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

KENNEL ENCLOSURES & GATES 
13 1913 - 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BLANK PAGE 

139

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

CHAIN LINK FENCING & GATES 
32 1113 - 1 

 

(DEDUCT ALTERNATE) CHAIN LINK FENCING & GATES 32 1113 
 

 

PART 1 - GENERAL 

 
RELATED DOCUMENTS 

 
A.  Drawings and general provisions of Contract, including General and Supplementary 

Conditions and Division-1 Specification sections, apply to work of this section. 

 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK 

 
A. Extent of chain link fences and gates is indicated on drawings. 

 
     QUALITY ASSURANCE 

 
A.  Provide chain link fences and gates as complete units controlled by a single source 

including necessary erection accessories, fittings, and fastenings. 

 

SUBMITTALS 

 
A.  Product Data: Submit manufacturer’s technical data, and installation instructions for 

metal fencing, fabric, gates and accessories. 

 

PART 2 - PRODUCTS 

GENERAL 

A. Dimensions indicated for pipe, roll-formed, and H-sections are outside dimensions, 

exclusive of coatings. 

 

B. Available Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements, manufacturers 

offering products which may be incorporated in the work include, but are not limited to, 

the following: 

1. Heavy Duty Galvanized Steel Fencing and Fabric: 

a. Carnahan-White Fence Company 

b. Robinson Fence Company 

c. Hoover Fence Company 

d. Anchor Fence Co., Inc. 

 
STEEL FABRIC 

 
A. Fabric: No. 9 ga. size steel wires, 2" mesh, with top selvages knuckled for fabric 60" 

high and under, and both top and bottom selvages twisted and barbed for fabric over 

60" high. Furnish one-piece fabric widths for fencing up to 12 ft. high. 

1. Fabric Finish: Galvanized, ASTM A 392, Class II, with not less than 2.0 oz. zinc 

per sq. ft. of surface. 

 

FRAMING & ACCESSORIES 

140

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

CHAIN LINK FENCING & GATES 
32 1113 - 2 

 

A. Steel Framework, General: Galvanized steel, ASTM A 120 or A 123, with not less than 

1.8 oz. zinc per sq. ft. of surface. 

1. Fittings & Accessories: Galvanized, ASTM A 153, with zinc weights per Table l. 

 
B. End, Corner and Pull Posts: Minimum sizes and weights as follows: 

1. Steel Fencing: 

a. Up to 6 ft. fabric height, 2.375" OD steel pipe, 3.65 lbs. per lin. ft., or 3.5" x 3.5" 

roll-formed sections, 4.85 lbs. per lin. ft. 

b. Over 6 ft. fabric height, 2.875" OD steel pipe, 5.79 lbs. per lin. ft., or 3.5" x 3.5" 

roll-formed sections, 4.85 lbs. per lin. ft. 

c. Line Posts: Space 8 ft. O.C. maximum, unless otherwise indicated, of following 
minimum sizes and weights. 
1. Steel Fencing: 

a. Up to 6 ft. fabric height, 1.90" OD steel pipe, 2.70 lbs. per lin. ft. or 1.875" x 

1.625" C-sections, 2.28 lbs. per lin. ft. 

b. 6 ft. to 8 ft. fabric height, 2.375" OD steel pipe, 3.65 lbs. per lin. ft. or 2.25" x 

1.875" H-sections, 2.64 lbs. per lin. ft. 

c. Over 8 ft. fabric height, 2.875 OD steel pipe, 5.79 lbs. per lin. ft. or 2.25" x 

1.875" H-sections, 3.25 lbs. per lin. ft. 

 

D. Gate Posts: Furnish posts for supporting single gate leaf, or one leaf of a double gate 

installation, for nominal gate widths as follows: 

1. Steel Fencing: 

a. Leaf 

b. Up to 6’ 

Width Gate Post lbs./lin. ft. 

2.875" OD pipe or 5.79 

3.5" x 3.5" roll-formed 4.85 

 
E. Top Rail: Manufacturer’s longest lengths, with expansion type couplings, 

approximately 6" long, for each joint. Provide means for attaching top rail securely to 

each gate corner, pull and end post. 

1. Steel Fencing: 1.66 OD pipe, 2.27 lbs. per lin. ft. or 1.625" x 1.25" roll-formed 

sections 1.35 lbs. per lin. ft. 

 

F. Wire Ties: 11 ga. galvanized steel wire. 

 
G. Post Brace Assembly: Manufacturer’s standard adjustable brace at end and gate posts 

and at both sides of corner and pull posts, with horizontal brace located at mid-height of 

fabric. Use same material as top rail for brace, and truss to line posts with 3/8" 

diameter rod and adjustable tightener. 

 

H. Stretcher Bars: One-piece lengths equal to full height of fabric, with minimum cross- 

section of 1/16" x 3/4". Provide one stretcher bar for each gate and end post, and two 

for each corner and pull post, except where fabric is integrally woven into post. 

141

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

CHAIN LINK FENCING & GATES 
32 1113 - 3 

 

I. Stretcher Bar Bands: Space not over 15" O.C., to secure stretcher bars to end, corner, 

pull, and gate posts. 

 

GATES 

 
A. Fabrication: Fabricate perimeter frames of gates from metal and finish to match fence 

framework. Assemble gate frames by welding or with special fittings and rivets for rigid 

connections, providing security against removal or breakage connections. Provide 

horizontal and vertical members to ensure proper gate operation and attachment of 

fabric, hardware and accessories. Space frame members maximum of 8’ apart unless 

otherwise indicated. 

1. Provide same fabric as for fence, unless other indicated. Install fabric with 

stretcher bars at vertical edges and at top and bottom edges. Attach stretcher bars 

to gate frame at not more than 15" O.C. 

2. Install diagonal cross-bracing consisting of 3/8" diameter adjustable length truss 

rods on gates to ensure frame rigidity without sag or twist. 

 

B. Swing Gates: Fabricate perimeter frames of minimum 1.90" OD pipe. 

 
C. Gate Hardware: Provide hardware and accessories for each gate, galvanized per 

ASTM A 153, and in accordance with the following: 

1. Hinges: Size and material to suit gate size, non-lift-off type, offset to permit 180° 

gate opening. Provide 1-1/2 pair of hinges for each leaf over 6 ft. nominal height. 

2. Latch: Forked type or plunger-bar type to permit operation from either side of gate, 

with padlock eye as integral part of latch. 

 

D. Concrete: Provide concrete consisting of portland cement, ASTM C 150, aggregates 

ASTM C 33, and clean water. Mix materials to obtain concrete with a minimum 28-day 

compressive strength of 2,500 psi using at least four sacks of cement per cu. yd., 1" 

maximum size aggregate, maximum 3" slump, and 2% to 4% entrained air ASTM C 

260. 

 

PART 3 - EXECUTION 

     INSTALLATION 

A. Do not begin installation and erection before construction is completed, unless 

otherwise permitted. 

 
B. Top Rails: Run rail continuously through post caps, bending to radius for curved runs. 

Provide expansion couplings as recommended by fencing manufacturer. 

 

C. Brace Assemblies: Install braces so posts are plumb when diagonal rod is under 

proper tension. 

 
D. Tension Wire: Install tension wires through post cap loops before stretching fabric and 

tie to each post cap with not less than 6 ga. galvanized wire. Fasten fabric to tension 

wire using 11 ga. galvanized steel hog rings spaced 24" O.C. 

142

Item 8.



RAC — Kennels 
18-524.01 

CHAIN LINK FENCING & GATES 
32 1113 - 4 

 

E. Fabric: Leave approximately 2" between finish grade and bottom sewage, unless 

otherwise indicated. Pull fabric taut and tie to posts, rails, and tension wires. Install 

fabric on security side of fence, and anchor to framework so that fabric remains in 

tension after pulling force is released. 

 

F. Stretcher Bars: Thread through or clamp to fabric 4" O.C., and secure to posts with 

metal bands spaced 15" O.C. 

 

G. Gates: Install gates plumb, level, and secure for full opening without interference. 

Install ground-set items in concrete for anchorage. Adjust hardware for smooth 

operation and lubricate where necessary. 

 

H. Tie Wires: Use U-shaped wire, conforming to diameter of pipe to which attached, 

clasping pipe and fabric firmly with ends twisted at least two full turns. Bend ends of 

wire to minimize hazard to persons or clothing. Tie fabric to line posts, with wire ties 

spaced 12" O.C. Tie fabric to rails and braces, with wire ties spaced 24" O.C. Tie 

fabric to tension wires, with hog rings spaced 24" O.C. 

 

Fasteners: Install nuts for tension bands and hardware bolts on side of fence opposite 

fabric side. Peen ends of bolts or score threads to prevent removal of nuts. 

 

PIPE SIZE REFERENCE TABLE 

OD in. ID in. lb./lin.ft. 
1.66 1-1/4 2.27 
1.90 1-1/2 2.70 
2.375 2 3.65 
2.875 2-1/2 5.79 
4.000 3-1/2 9.11 

 
 

END OF SECTION 

143

Item 8.



 
 

ATTACHMENT A - BID SUBMISSION FORM 
 

BIDDERS MUST PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION: 

Item Description of Work Price 

Base Bid 

• Furnishing and installation of all materials and labor in 

the attached Kennel Enclosures  

• Install new Dog Runs inside and out 

• All bids to include: 

o Travel Expenses 

o Freight/Shipping Costs 

o Any other administrative costs 

• All work must be completed by June 30th, 2020 

Please note any of the following: 

• Any labor personnel requests of the City of 

Republic for this project. 

• Any other requests or responsibilities of the City 

of Republic for this project. 

 

 

$_______________ 

 

 In compliance with this Invitation for Bid and to all terms, conditions, and specifications imposed therein and hereby incorporated by 
reference, the undersigned offers and agrees to furnish the goods and/or services described herein. 

 

 
 

 
Company Name: 

City of Republic – Perimeter Fencing and Kennel Barriers for 

the Animal Control Center  

 

 

312 N Main St., Republic, MO 65738  

 
Address: 

Telephone: 
 

Facsimile: 
Signed                                                       
Dated 

E-mail: 
 

Cellular: 
Printed                                                    
Title 

 
Bidders Federal ID Number: 

 
 

 

 

To be submitted with Vendor’s Bid  144

Item 8.



 
 

To be submitted with Vendor’s Bid  

_____We DO NOT take exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements.  

_____We TAKE exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements as follows:  

CITY OF REPUBLIC STATEMENT OF “NO BID” * ADDENDA  

 

Bidder acknowledges receipt of the following addendum:  

 

RETURN THIS PAGE ONLY IF YOUR COMPANY PROVIDES THE PRODUCTS/SERVICES BEING BID AND DECLINES TO DO 

SO.  

Addendum No. ___  

Addendum No. ___  

 

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, HAVE DECLINED TO BID ON YOUR IFB * FOR DESCRIPTION FOR THE FOLLOWING 

REASON(S):  

Addendum No. ___  

 

_______SPECIFICATIONS ARE TOO “TIGHT,” I.E. GEARED TOWARD ONE BRAND OR MANUFACTURER ONLY                    

(PLEASE EXPLAIN BELOW).  

Addendum No. ___  

Addendum No. ___  

_______INSUFFICIENT TIME TO RESPOND TO INVITATION FOR BID.  

_______OUR PRODUCT SCHEDULE WOULD NOT PERMIT US TO PREFORM.  

 

  

 Print Email___________________________________________  

 

 Print Federal Tax ID No._________________________________  

   

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

145

Item 8.



 
 

 

CITY OF REPUBLIC STATEMENT OF “NO BID”  

RETURN THIS PAGE ONLY IF YOUR COMPANY PROVIDES THE PRODUCTS/SERVICES BEING BID AND DECLINES TO DO 

SO.  

 

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, HAVE DECLINED TO BID ON YOUR IFB FOR THE FOLLOWING REASON(S):  

 

_______ SPECIFICATIONS ARE TOO “TIGHT,” I.E. GEARED TOWARD ONE BRAND OR MANUFACTURER ONLY                    

(PLEASE EXPLAIN BELOW).  

_______ INSUFFICIENT TIME TO RESPOND TO INVITATION FOR BID.  

_______ OUR PRODUCT SCHEDULE WOULD NOT PERMIT US TO PERFORM.  

_______ UNABLE TO MEET SPECIFICATIONS.  

_______ UNABLE TO MEET INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS.  

_______ SPECIFICATIONS UNCLEAR (PLEASE EXPLAIN BELOW).  

_______ OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY BELOW).  

 

REMARKS: 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________________

___________  

 

COMPANY NAME: ___________________________________________________  

ADDRESS: __________________________________________________________  

SIGNATURE AND TITLE: _______________________________________________  

TELEPHONE NUMBER: ________________________________________________  

DATE: _________________________  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
146

Item 8.



NOTICE OF AWARD 
 

DATED: _______________         
 
TO:   Carnahan White, LLC 
 1845 S St. Hwy MM 
 Springfield, MO 65802 
 
PROJECT: Republic Animal Shelter – Fencing and Kennel Construction and Installation 
                           
DESCRIPTION OF WORK:  As described in the Agreement. 
 
You are notified that your Bid dated March 26, 2020, for the above Agreement has been considered.  You are the 
successful bidder and have been awarded an Agreement for the work in the Agreement. 
  
The Agreement price, based on the submitted unit pricing of your  bid is $53,800.00, with any contingency allowance set 
aside as specified in the Agreement. 
 
Two copies of each of the proposed Agreement Documents accompany this Notice of Award.  You must comply with the 
following conditions within ten business days of the date of this Notice of Award, that is by _____________________. 
 

1. You must deliver to the City two fully executed counterparts of the Agreement including all the Agreement 
Documents.  Each of the Agreement Documents must bear your signature on the cover sheet.  The date on the 
Agreement must be left blank and will be filled in by the City.  

 
2. You must deliver with the executed certificates of Insurance as specified the Agreement.   

 
Within 10 days after you comply with these conditions, the City will return to you two fully signed counterparts of the 
Agreement with the Agreement Documents attached. 
 
You are required to return an acknowledged copy of this Notice of Award to the City. 
 
 
  
____________________, __________________ Director 
 
 
 
ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE 
 
Receipt of the foregoing Notice of Award is hereby acknowledged and the following Performance Schedule is submitted 
pursuant to the terms of the Bid and Contractor Agreement, this ________day of ____________, 20___. 
 
 
 By  
 
 
 Title  

147

Item 8.



NOTICE TO PROCEED  

DATED:  

TO:   Carnahan White, LLC 
 1845 S St. Hwy MM 
 Springfield, MO 65802 
 

PROJECT/DESCRIPTION OF WORK: Republic Animal Shelter – Fencing and Kennel Construction 
and Installation / As described in the Agreement 
 
CONTRACT PRICE: $53,800.00 

You are hereby notified to commence work on the referenced contract on or before                 , 

and shall fully complete all of the work of said contract within ____________ consecutive 

calendar days thereafter.  Your final completion date is therefore                                . 

 

CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI 

By:        

 _______________, __________ Director 

 

ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE 

Receipt of the foregoing Notice to Proceed is hereby acknowleged by by the undersigned this 

____________ day of ___________________ , 20____ . 

By:        

 ______________________________  
 Title 
 

148

Item 8.



149

Item 8.



150

Item 8.



151

Item 8.



152

Item 8.



153

Item 8.



154

Item 8.



155

Item 8.



156

Item 8.



157

Item 8.



158

Item 8.



159

Item 8.



160

Item 8.



161

Item 8.



162

Item 8.



163

Item 8.



164

Item 8.



165

Item 8.



166

Item 8.



  
 

 
 

CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 292.675 RSMO. 
FOR ALL PUBLIC WORKS PROJECT CONTRACTS 

 
STATE OF       ) 
       ) ss. 
COUNTY OF      ) 
 
Before me, the undersigned Notary Public, in and for the County of      , 
State of    , personally appeared      (Name) 
who is       (Title) of        
(Name of company), (corporation), (partnership), (sole proprietorship), (limited liability 
company), and is authorized to make this affidavit, and after being duly sworn did 
depose and say: 
 

(1) that said company, pursuant to 292.675 RSMo., has provided at minimum a 
ten-hour Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) construction 
safety program for their on-site employees which includes a course in 
construction safety and health approved by OSHA or a similar program 
approved by the department which is at least as stringent as an approved 
OSHA program, unless such employees have previously completed the 
required program. 

 
The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 292.675 
RSMo. 
 
              
      Signature 
              
      Printed Name 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this    day of   ,   . 
 
              
      Notary Public 
 
My commission expires:     
 

167

Item 8.



PAYMENT BOND 
 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
 
 That___________________________________________________________________, as 
Principal, and Carnahan White, LLC, a corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws 
of the State of Missouri, and regularly authorized to do business in the State of Missouri, as Surety, are 
held and firmly bound unto the CITY OF REPUBLIC, Missouri, hereinafter called the “City,” in the 
penal sum of 53,800.00 lawful money of the United States, well and truly to be paid unto the said City for 
the payment of which Principal and Surety bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 
  
 WHEREAS, the Principal has by written agreement dated _________________, entered into a 
Contract with the City for the construction of the work designated as Republic Animal Shelter – Fencing 
and Kennel Construction and Installation located at approximately 732 W St. Hwy 174 in the City of 
Republic, in the State of Missouri, in accordance with the Contract, which Contract is by this reference 
made a part hereof, and is hereinafter referred to as the “Contract.” 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITIONS OF THIS OBLIGATION ARE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SURETY shall become liable on this obligation if PRINCIPAL fails to fulfill the follow 

conditions:  In connection with the Contract, including all duly authorized modifications thereto, prompt 
payment shall be made to all laborers, subcontractors, teamsters, truck drivers, owners or other suppliers 
or for equipment employed on the job, and other claimants, for all labor performed in such work whether 
done for PRINCIPAL, a subcontractor, SURETY, a completion contractor or otherwise (at the full wage 
rates required by any law of the United States or of the State of Missouri, where applicable), for services 
furnished and consumed, for repairs on machinery, for equipment, tools, materials, lubricants, oil, 
gasoline, water, gas, power, light, heat, oil, telephone service, grain, hay, feed, coal, coke, groceries and 
foodstuffs, either consumed, rented, used or reasonably required for use in connection with the 
construction of the work or in the performance of the Contract and all insurance premiums, both for 
compensation and for all other kinds of insurance on the work, for sales taxes and for royalties in 
connection with, or incidental to, the completion of the Contract, in all instances whether the claim be 
directly against PRINCIPAL, against SURETY or its completion contractor, through a subcontractor or 
otherwise, and, further, PRINCIPAL shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the CITY from all such 
claims, demands or suits by any such person or entity.  If PRINCIPAL fulfills these conditions, then this 
obligation shall be void; otherwise, it shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

Any conditions legally required to be included in a Payment Bond on this Contract, including but 
not limited to those set out in §107.170 RSMo. are included herein by reference. 

 
SURETY agrees that, in the event that PRINCIPAL fails to make payment of the obligations 

covered by this Bond, it will do so and, further, that within forty-five (45) days of receiving, at the 
address given below, a claim hereunder stating the amount claimed and the basis for the claim in 
reasonable detail, it (a) will send an answer to the claimant, with a copy to the CITY stating the amounts 
that are undisputed and the basis for challenging any amounts that are disputed, and (b) will pay any 
amounts that are undisputed. The amount of this Bond shall be reduced by and to the extent of any 
payment or payments made in good faith hereunder. 

 

168

Item 8.



Page 2 of 2 
Payment Bond 

 

While this Bond is in force, it may be sued on at the instance of any party to whom any such 
payment is due, in the name of the CITY to the use for such party. The CITY shall not be liable for the 
payment of any costs or expenses of any such suit. 

 
The CITY may sue on this Bond, and any person furnishing material or performing labor, either 

as an individual or as a Subcontractor shall have the right to sue on this Bond in the name of the CITY for 
his use and benefit, all in accordance with the provisions of Section 522.300, RSMo., and any 
amendments thereto. 

 
No suit shall be commenced or pursued hereunder other than in a state court of competent 

jurisdiction in Greene County, Missouri, or in the United States District Court for the Western District of 
Missouri. 

 
  SURETY, for value received, hereby expressly agrees that no change, extension of time, 
alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract or to the Work to be performed thereunder, shall in any 
way affect the obligations of this Bond; and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of 
time, or alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract or the Work to be performed thereunder. 
 
IMPORTANT:  Surety companies executing BONDS must appear on the Treasury Department’s most 
current list (Circular 570 as amended) and be authorized to transact business in the state where the 
PROJECT is located. 

 
            
 
 
 Signed and sealed this _________day of____________________, 20__, 
 
 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Principal          Surety        
 
(SEAL)  (SEAL) 
 
 
By:___________________________________  By:____________________________________ 
 
Title:__________________________________  Title:__________________________________ 
        (ATTACH SURETY’S POWER OF ATTORNEY) 
 
 
 
NOTE: Date of bond must not be prior to date of Contract.  If Contractor is a partnership, all partners 
should execute bond. 

169

Item 8.



PERFORMANCE AND MAINTENANCE BOND 
 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
 
 That___________________________________________________________________, as 
Principal, and Carnahan White, LLC, a corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws 
of the State of Missouri, and regularly authorized to do business in the State of Missouri, as Surety, are 
held and firmly bound unto the CITY OF REPUBLIC, Missouri, hereinafter called the “City”, for the use 
and benefit of the City and any and all persons who may suffer damages by breach of the conditions 
hereof or of the Contract (as defined below) in the penal sum of 53,800.00 Dollars lawful money of the 
United States, well and truly to be paid unto the said City for the payment of which Principal and Surety 
bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, 
firmly by these presents. 
  
 WHEREAS, the Principal has by written agreement dated _________________, entered into a 
Contract with the City for the construction of the work designated as Republic Animal Shelter – Fencing 
and Kennel Construction and Installation located at approximately 732 W St. Hwy 174 in the City of 
Republic, in the State of Missouri, in accordance with the Contract, which Contract is by this reference 
made a part hereof, and is hereinafter referred to as the “Contract.” 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITIONS OF THIS OBLIGATION ARE AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. The Surety shall become liable on this obligation if the Principal fails to fulfill the follow 

conditions: The Principal shall faithfully perform the Contract on its part, and satisfy all claims 
and demands incurred by the Principal in the performance of the Contract, and shall fully 
indemnify and save harmless the City from all cost and damages which the City may suffer by 
reason of the failure of the Principal to do so, and shall fully reimburse and repay to the City all 
costs, damages, and expenses, which shall include reasonable attorney’s fees, which the City may 
incur in making good any default by the Principal, including but not limited to, any default based 
upon the failure of the Principal to fulfill its obligation to furnish maintenance, repairs or 
replacements for any period of time after the work is completed as provided for in the Contract, 
and shall provide for prosecution of the work required by the Contract whether by Subcontract or 
otherwise, and shall pay all valid claims and demands whatsoever, and shall defend, indemnify 
and hold harmless the City and its agents against loss or expense from bodily injury, including 
death, or damage or destruction of property, including loss of use resulting therefrom, arising out 
of or resulting from the performance of the work.  If the Principal fulfills these conditions, then 
this obligation shall be null and void; otherwise, it shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

2. As part of the obligation secured hereby and in addition to the face amount specified therefor, 
there shall be included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable attorneys’ 
fees, incurred by City in successfully enforcing such obligation, all to be taxed as costs and 
included in any judgment rendered; 
   

3. In the event that the City determines that there is a failure of performance of the Contract by the 
Principal, which shall include, but not be limited to, any breach or default of the Contract;  
 
a. The Surety shall promptly remedy the default, or shall promptly (1) complete the 

Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions, or (2) obtain bids for completing 
the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions, and upon determination by the 
City of the lowest responsible bidder, arrange for a Contract between the City and such 

170

Item 8.



Page 2 of 2 
Performance and Maintenance Bond 

 

bidder, and made available as the work progresses sufficient funds to pay the costs of 
completion, not exceeding the amount of this Bond. 

 
b. The Surety shall commence performance of its obligations and undertakings under this 

Bond no later than thirty (30) days after written notice from the City to the Surety; 
 
c. The means, method or procedure by which the Surety undertakes to perform its 

obligations under this Bond shall be subject to the advance written approval of the City. 
 
           The City may sue on this Bond in accordance with the provisions of Section 522.300, RSMo., and 
any amendments thereto. 
 
           It is hereby stipulated and agreed that any suit based upon any default of the Principal in fulfilling 
his obligation to furnish maintenance, repairs or replacements for any period of time after the work is 
completed as provided for in the Contract, may be brought at any time up to one year after the expiration 
of the time specified in the Contract during which the Contractor has agreed to furnish such maintenance 
or make such repairs or replacements. 
 
           The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, 
alteration of addition to the terms of the Contract or to the work to be performed thereunder or the 
specifications accompanying the same shall in any way affect its obligations on this Bond, and it does 
hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the 
Contract or to the work or to the specifications. 
 
 
 Signed and sealed this _________day of____________________, 20__, 
 
 
 
_________________________________(SEAL)  ________________________________(SEAL) 
Principal          Surety        
 
   
 
By:___________________________________  By:____________________________________ 
 
Title:__________________________________  Title:__________________________________ 
       (ATTACH SURETY’S POWER OF ATTORNEY) 
 
 
NOTE: Date of bond must not be prior to date of Contract.  If Contractor is a partnership, all partners 
should execute bond. 
 

171

Item 8.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 20-R-20 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, Awarding the Bid for the Observation Cages Construction at 
the Republic Animal Control Facility. 

Submitted By: Garrett Brickner, Assistant Community Development Director 

Date: June 16, 2020 
 

 

Issue Statement 

To award observation cage construction and installation for the Animal Control Facility to Shor-Line.  

 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The City of Republic requested bids To supply and install 6  47 7/8”x 33 1/8”x 68” either stainless steel or 

fiberglass type material cages that would consist of two cages that are stacked on top of each other with 

each cage being  47 7/8”x 28 1/8”x 27 ½”.  With 5 of the cages being placed in the dog observation room 

and 1 in the cat observation room.  

  

As well as, to supply and install 4  72”x33 1/8”x 68” stackable cages with 4 in total cages for each unit 

with each cage being 35 7/8”x 28 1/8”x 27 ½” and the interior of each of these cages needs to equal to 

at least 4 square feet and can be either stainless steel or fiberglass type material. All 4 of these cages 

would go in the cat observation room 

 

The City received three bids for this project: Midmark Corporation at $35,06.88, Shor-Line at 

$30,287.44, and Direct Animal Products at $26,834.00. although Direct Animal Products was the lowest 

bid, the products they proposed did not meet the specifications in the Instruction to Bidders.   

 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution 20-R-20. 

172

Item 9.



RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-20
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AWARDING THE BID FOR THE OBSERVATION CAGES CONSTRUCTION AT THE 

REPUBLIC ANIMAL CONTROL FACILITY

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, ("City" or “Republic”) is a municipal 
corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, 
and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

WHEREAS, the City solicited sealed bids for the observation cages at the Republic Animal 
Control Facility (herein called the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, three vendors provided duly submitted bids for the Project and the lowest 
most responsive bidder was Schroer Manufacturing Company d/b/a Shor-Line, all bids being 
on file with the City Clerk; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to accept the lowest, responsible bid to govern the 
Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The submitted bid from Schroer Manufacturing Company d/b/a Shor-Line, 
attached hereto as “Attachment 1” and incorporated herein, is accepted for the 
Project at the unit prices shown thereon and not to exceed $35,287.44. 

Section 2. The City Administrator, or designee, on behalf of the City of Republic, is 
authorized to enter into an agreement with Schroer Manufacturing Company 
d/b/a Shor-Line, for the Project, said agreement to be in substantially the same 
form as “Attachment 2”. 

Section 3. The City Administrator, or designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to take 
the necessary steps to execute this Resolution. 

Section 4. The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 

Section 5. This Resolution shall take effect after passage as provided by law. 

 PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Republic, Missouri, this 16th day of June 2020. 

Jeff Ussery, Mayor 
Attest: 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: ___________________________________, Scott Ison, City Attorney 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-20 
173

Item 9.



RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-20 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-20
 
Final Passage and Vote:  ________________________________________________________ 

174

Item 9.



Attachment 1

175

Item 9.



176

Item 9.



Page 1 of 12 
Schroer Manufacturing Company d/b/a Shor-Line – Contractor Agreement 

CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

THIS CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into this _____ day of 
________________, 2020, by and between the City of Republic Missouri (“City”) and Schroer 
Manufacturing Company d/b/a Shor-Line, (“Contractor”), collectively referred to as “Parties”. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, City is a municipal corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, 
Missouri; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor is a Missouri Corporation located at 511 Osage Ave, Kansas City, 
KS, 66105, with at SSN/Federal Tax ID Number of 44-0510045; and 

WHEREAS, City solicited sealed bids through an Invitation for Bid, hereinafter described 
on Exhibit A – Invitation for Bid, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor submitted a bid that was received by the City, which bid is attached 
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B – Bid Submittal; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor has become the lowest responsible bidder for furnishing the 
supervision, labor, tools, equipment, materials and supplies and for the services described in 
Exhibit C – Description of Work, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein; and   

WHEREAS, City desires to engage Contractor for the reroof of the Republic Police 
Department facility (“Project”), hereinafter described on Exhibit C – Description of Work. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and agreements hereinafter set 
forth, the City and Contractor agree as follows: 

1. Ability to Contract: Contractor warranties that it has the legal ability to enter into this
Agreement and fulfill the terms contained herein.

2. Manner and Time for Completion: The Contractor will furnish all supervision, labor, tools,
equipment, materials and supplies necessary to perform, and to perform said work at
Contractor's own expense in accordance with the Agreement and any applicable city 
ordinances and state and federal laws within the time specified in this Agreement. 

3. Terms and Conditions: In addition to the requirements to comply with applicable city,
state and federal law, the Contractor shall become familiar with the technical
specifications and requirements for construction projects of the City and shall comply 
with those provisions applicable to this project. 

4. Sales Tax Exemption:  The Agreement price does not include and the City shall not pay
any sales or use taxes on the materials used in the project. Pursuant to the provisions of
RSMo. Section 144.062, the City will provide the Contractor with a Project Exemption 
Certificate and a Missouri Tax Exemption letter from the City to use in purchasing 

Attachment 2

177

Item 9.



Page 2 of 12 
Schroer Manufacturing Company d/b/a Shor-Line – Contractor Agreement 

 

materials on a tax-free basis. It will be the Contractor’s responsibility to provide the 
documentation to any subcontractor.  These documents will be used solely for purchase 
of materials being directly incorporated into or consumed in the construction of the work 
under this Agreement. 

5. Payment Shall Not Exceed: The City hereby agrees to pay the Contractor for the work 
done pursuant to this Agreement according to the payment schedule set forth in this 
Agreement upon acceptance of the work by the City and in accordance with the rates 
and/or amounts stated in the Exhibit B – Bid Submittal, which by reference is made a 
part hereof. It is expressly understood that in no event will the total compensation and 
reimbursement to be paid to the Contractor under the terms of this Agreement exceed the 
sum of $30,287.44, unless specifically and mutually agreed to in writing by both the City 
and the Contractor. No partial payment to the Contractor shall operate as approval of 
acceptance of work done or materials furnished hereunder. 

6. Payment:  One lump sum payment will be made by City to Contractor once all work is 
fully completed and performed as determined by the City and upon receipt of all 
applicable lien waivers, final release, prevailing wage documents, and other documents 
that may be required by City. 

7. Contingency Set Aside: The Agreement amount set forth in paragraph 5 above may 
include amount specified in the Notice of Award which shall be set aside as a 
contingency allowance. Although the contingency allowance may be included in the total 
amount of the Agreement, the Contractor shall not be entitled to be paid any portion of 
the contingency allowance unless and until specifically authorized by written change 
order to the City’s initial Notice to Proceed. The contingency allowance shall be 
authorized solely in the event additional work not included or specified in the base bid is 
required. 

8. Prevailing Wage:  If this project is valued at more than $75,000.00, not less than the 
prevailing hourly rate of wages, as set out in the wage order attached to and made part of 
the specification for work under the contract, must be paid to all workers performing 
work under this Agreement (see Section 290.250, RSMo).  The Contractor will forfeit a 
penalty to the contracting public body of $100 per day (or portion of a day) for each 
worker that is paid less than the prevailing rate for any work done under this Agreement 
by the Contractor or by any sub-contractor (see Section 290.250, RSMo).  For detailed 
information on rules and occupational titles, see 8 CSR 30-3.010 through 3.060).    
During periods of excessive unemployment (any month immediately following two 
consecutive calendar months during which the level of unemployment in the state has 
exceeded five percent (as measured by the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics), only 
Missouri laborers (persons who have resided in Missouri for at least thirty days and 
intend to become or remain Missouri residents) and laborers from non-restrictive states 
(persons who are residents of a state which has not enacted state laws restricting Missouri 
laborers from working on public works projects in that state, as determined by the Labor 

178

Item 9.



Page 3 of 12 
Schroer Manufacturing Company d/b/a Shor-Line – Contractor Agreement 

 

and Industrial Relations Commission), (see Excessive Unemployment section), may be 
employed under this Agreement, except that other laborers may be used when Missouri 
laborers or laborers from non-restrictive states are not available, or are incapable of 
performing the particular type of work involved, if so certified by the Contractor and 
approved by the contracting officer.  (See Sections 290.550 through 290.580, RSMO). 

9. Performance Bond and Labor & Materials Payment Bond: The Contractor shall execute a 
Performance and Maintenance Bond and a Labor and Materials Payment Bond with 
surety approved by the City and on the forms approved by the City, each bond shall be in 
the amount of $XX,XXX.00, conditioned upon the full and faithful performance of all 
major terms and conditions of this Agreement and payment of all labor and material 
supplies. It is further mutually agreed between the parties hereto that if at any time after 
the execution of this agreement and the surety bond(s) hereto attached for its faithful 
performance and payment of labor and material suppliers, the City shall deem the surety 
or sureties upon such bond(s) to be unsatisfactory, or if, for any reason, such bond(s) 
ceases to be adequate to cover the performance of the work, the Contractor shall, at its 
expense, within five days after the receipt of notice from the City to do so, furnish an 
additional bond or bonds, in such form and amount, and with such surety or sureties as 
shall be satisfactory to the City. In such event no further payment to the Contractor shall 
be deemed to be due under this Agreement until such new or additional security for the 
faithful performance of the work and the payment of labor and material suppliers shall be 
furnished in a manner and form satisfactory to the City. The corporate surety on any 
performance or payment bond must be licensed by the State of Missouri and if the 
required bond exceeds $25,000 must be listed in the United States Treasury Circular 570. 

10. Insurance Requirements: Without limiting any of the other obligations or liabilities of the 
Contractor, the Contractor shall secure and maintain at its own cost and expense, 
throughout the duration of this Agreement and until the work is completed and accepted 
by the City, insurance of such types and in such amounts as may be necessary to protect it 
and the interests of the City against all hazards or risks of loss as hereunder specified or 
which may arise out of the performance of this Agreement.  The form and limits of such 
insurance, together with the underwriter thereof in each case, are subject to approval by 
the City.  Regardless of such approval, it shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to 
maintain adequate insurance coverage at all times during the term of the Contract.  
Failure of the Contractor to maintain coverage shall not relieve it of any contractual 
responsibility or obligation or liability under this Agreement. 

The certificates of insurance, including evidence of the required endorsements hereunder 
or the policies, shall be filed with the City within 10 days after the date of the receipt of 
Notice of Award to the Contractor and prior to the start of work.  All insurance policies 
shall provide 30 days written notice to be given by the insurance company in question 
prior to modification or cancellation of such insurance.  Such notices shall be mailed, 
certified mail, return receipt requested, to:   

179

Item 9.



Page 4 of 12 
Schroer Manufacturing Company d/b/a Shor-Line – Contractor Agreement 

 

 City of Republic, Legal Department, 221 North Main, Republic, MO  65738 
 

The minimum coverage for the insurance referred to herein shall be in accordance with 
the requirements established below: 

a.  Workers’ Compensation………Statutory coverage per RSMo. 287.010 et seq 
       Employer’s Liability…………………………………………….$1,000,000.00 

b.   Commercial General Liability Insurance, including coverage for Premises, 
Operations, Products and Completed Operations, Contractual Liability, Broad 
Form Property Damage, Independent Contractors, Explosion, Collapse, and 
Underground Property Damage and endorsed for blasting if blasting required.  
Such coverage shall apply to bodily injury and property damage on an 
“Occurrence Form Basis” with limits of $2,905,664 for all claims arising out of a 
single accident or occurrence and $435,849 for any one person in a single 
accident or occurrence. 

c.   Automobile Liability Insurance covering bodily injury and property damage for 
owned, non-owned and hired vehicles, with limits of $2,905,664 for all claims 
arising out of a single accident or occurrence and $435,849 for any one person in 
a single accident or occurrence. 

d.   Subcontracts.  In case any or all of this work is sublet, the Contractor shall require 
the subcontractor to procure and maintain all insurance required in this Paragraph, 
Insurance Requirements, hereof and in like amounts.  Contractor shall require any 
and all subcontractors with whom it enters into a contract to perform work on this 
project to protect the City through insurance against applicable hazards or risks 
and shall, upon request of the City, provide evidence of such insurance. 

e.    Notice:  The Contractor and/or subcontractor shall furnish the City prior to 
beginning the work, the policy as specified in this Paragraph, Insurance 
Requirements, and satisfactory proof of carriage of all the insurance required by 
this contract, with the provision that policies shall not be canceled, modified or 
non-renewed without 30 days written notice to the City. 

f.    Pending Legislation: In the event the scope or extent of the City’s tort liability as 
a governmental entity as described in Section 537.600 through 537.650 RSMo. is 
broadened or increased during the term of this Agreement by legislative or 
judicial action, the City may require Contractor, upon 10 days written notice, to 
execute an Agreement addendum whereby the Contractor agrees to provide, at a 
price not exceeding Contractor’s actual increased premium cost, additional 
liability insurance coverage as the City may require to protect the City from 
increased tort liability exposure as the result of such legislative or judicial action.  
Any such additional insurance coverage shall be evidenced by an appropriate 
certificate of insurance and shall take effect within the time set forth in the 
addendum. 

11. Contractor's responsibility for subcontractors: The Contractor shall be as fully 
responsible to the City for the acts and omissions of its subcontractors, and of persons 
either directly or indirectly employed by them, as Contractor is for the acts and omissions 
of persons it directly employs.  Contractor shall cause appropriate provisions to be 
inserted in all subcontracts relating to this work, to bind all subcontractors to Contractor 
by all the terms herein set forth, and insofar as applicable to the work of subcontractors 

180

Item 9.



Page 5 of 12 
Schroer Manufacturing Company d/b/a Shor-Line – Contractor Agreement 

 

and to give Contractor the same power regarding termination of any subcontract as the 
City may exercise over Contractor under any provisions of this contract.  Nothing 
contained in this Agreement shall create any contractual relation between the 
subcontractor and the City or between any subcontractors. 

12. Liquidated Damages: Time of completion of work by the Contractor is of the essence.  
Should Contractor, or in the case of default, the surety, fail to complete the work within 
the time specified in this Agreement, or within such extra time as may be allowed in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement, Contractor (or surety) shall be liable to the 
City in the amount of $200.00 per day for each and every calendar day that the 
Agreement remains uncompleted after the time allowed for completion, as liquidated 
damages, and not as a penalty, it being stipulated that actual damages to the City and the 
public arising from Contractor’s failure to timely complete the work would be difficult, if 
not impossible, to ascertain.  The amount assessed as liquidated damages may be 
withheld from any moneys otherwise due to Contractor from the City. 

13. Termination:  City reserves the right to terminate this Agreement by giving at least 5 days 
prior written notice to the Contractor, without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of 
the City should the Contractor be adjudged a bankrupt, or if Contractor should make a 
general assignment for the benefit of its creditors, or if a receiver should be appointed for 
Contractor or for any of its property, or if Contractor should persistently or repeatedly 
refuse or fail to supply enough properly skilled workmen or proper material, or if 
Contractor should refuse or fail to make prompt payment to any person supplying labor 
or materials for the work under the contract, or persistently disregard instructions of the 
City or fail to observe or perform any provisions of this Agreement. 

14. City's Right to Proceed: In the event this Agreement is terminated pursuant to this 
Agreement, Termination, then the City may take over the work and prosecute the same to 
completion, by contract or otherwise, and Contractor and its sureties shall be liable to the 
City for any costs over the amount of this Agreement thereby occasioned by the City.  In 
any such case, the City may take possession of, and utilize in completing the work, such 
materials, appliances and structures as may be on the work site and are necessary for 
completion of the work.  The foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not in limitation 
of, the rights of the City under any other provisions of this Agreement, city ordinances, 
and state and federal laws. 

15. Termination for Convenience of City: The City shall have the right at any time by written 
notice to Contractor to terminate and cancel this Agreement, without cause, for the 
convenience of the City, and Contractor shall immediately stop work.  In such event City 
shall not be liable to Contractor except for payment for actual work performed prior to 
such notice in an amount proportionate to the completed Agreement price and for the 
actual costs of preparations made by Contractor for the performance of the cancelled 
portions of this Agreement, including a reasonable allowance of profit applicable to the 
actual work performed and such preparations.  Anticipatory profits and consequential 
damages shall not be recoverable by Contractor.  

16. Delay by City: City and Contractor agree that the schedule of services to be provided by 
the Contractor under this Agreement may depend upon timely fulfillment of City 

181

Item 9.



Page 6 of 12 
Schroer Manufacturing Company d/b/a Shor-Line – Contractor Agreement 

 

responsibilities. If the City is unable to provide services and/or facilities as specified in 
this Agreement, and/or causes delays to the project beyond Contractor’s control, the 
Contractor shall be entitled to an extension of the time for completion of this Agreement 
but such time of completion shall be extended no more than 1 day for each day of delay 
caused by the City. Any such agreement to modify or extend the time of completion shall 
be made in writing by formal addendum to this Agreement. The time of application of 
liquidated damages shall not begin until after the amended date for contract/phase 
completion. The time of completion shall not be extended because of delay caused by the 
City unless and until the Contractor has notified the City, in writing, that the City has 
caused a delay; such notice shall be made not later than 7 days after the beginning of the 
delay caused by the City. 

17. Guards, Lights, Fencing: Contractor agrees that during the performance of said work, it 
will maintain proper guards for the prevention of accidents and put up and maintain 
suitable and sufficient lights and fencing.  

18. Liability and Indemnity: 
a.    In no event shall City be liable to Contractor for direct, special, indirect, 

liquidated, or consequential damages.  The maximum liability of City shall be 
limited to the amount of money to be paid or received by City under this 
Agreement. 

b.   Contractor shall defend, indemnify and save harmless City, its elected or 
appointed officials, agents and employees from and against any and all liability, 
suits, damages, costs (including attorney fees), losses, outlays and expenses from 
claims in any manner caused by, or allegedly caused by, or arising out of, or 
connected with, this Agreement, or the work or any subcontract thereunder (the 
Contractor hereby assuming full responsibility for relations with subcontractors), 
including, but not limited to, claims for personal injuries, death, property damage, 
or for damages from the award of this Agreement to Contractor , notwithstanding 
any possible negligence, whether sole or concurrent, on the part of the City, its 
officials, agents and employees. 

c.    Contractor shall indemnify and hold City harmless from all wages or overtime 
compensation due any employees in rendering services pursuant to this 
Agreement or any subcontract, including payment of reasonable attorneys’ fees 
and costs in the defense of any claim made under the Fair Labor Standards Act, 
the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law or any other local, federal or state law. 

d.   The indemnification obligations of Contractor hereunder shall not be limited by 
any limitations as to the amount or type of damages, compensation or benefits 
payable by or for the Contractor, under any local, federal or state law, to any 
person asserting the claim against City, its elected or appointed officials, agents 
and employees, for which indemnification is sought. 

e.    The indemnification obligations herein shall not negate, abridge or reduce in any 
way any additional indemnification rights of City, its elected or appointed 
officials, agents and employees, which are otherwise available under statute, or in 
law or equity. 

182

Item 9.



Page 7 of 12 
Schroer Manufacturing Company d/b/a Shor-Line – Contractor Agreement 

 

f.    Contractor affirms that it has had the opportunity to recover the costs of the 
liability insurance required in this Agreement in its contract price.  Contractor’s 
obligation under this Agreement to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless any 
person from that person’s own negligence or wrongdoing is limited to the 
coverage and limits of the applicable insurance required of Contractor under this 
Agreement. 

19. Payment for Labor and Materials:  The Contractor agrees and binds itself to pay for all 
labor done, and for all the materials used in the construction of the work to be completed 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

20. Agreement Documents: The Agreement documents shall consist of the following: 
a. This Agreement;  
b. Exhibit A – Invitation for Bid  
c. Exhibit B – Bid Submittal  
d. Exhibit C – Description of Work  
e. Notice of Award 
f. Notice to Proceed 
g. E-Verify Affidavit  
h. OSHA Safety Training Affidavit 
i. All Duly Executed Change Orders 
j. Payment Bond 
k. Performance and Maintenance Bond 

This Agreement, together with the other documents enumerated in this Paragraph, 
Agreement Documents, forms the Agreement between the parties. These documents are 
as fully a part of this Agreement as if attached hereto or repeated herein. 

21. Subsurface Conditions: Contractor agrees that information contained in the published 
reports and public actions of the Missouri Division of Geology and Land Survey shall be 
conclusive and binding upon the Contractor as to what subsurface conditions at the job 
site are reasonably anticipated or reasonably foreseeable. 

22. Transient Employers:  Every transient employer, as defined in Section 285.230, RSMo., 
must post in a prominent and easily accessible place at the work site a clearly legible 
copy of the following:  (1) The notice of registration for employer withholding issued to 
such transient employer by the Director of Revenue; (2) Proof of coverage of Worker’s 
Compensation Insurance or self-insurance signed by the transient employer and verified 
by the Department of Revenue through records of the Division of Worker’s 
Compensation; and, (3) The notice of registration for Unemployment Insurance issued to 
such transient employer by the Division of Employment Security.  Any transient 
employer failing to comply with these requirements shall, under Section 285.234, RSMo. 
be liable for a penalty of $500 per day until the notices required by this section are posted 
as required by that Statute. 

23. Nonresident/Foreign Contractors:  The Contractor shall procure and maintain during the 
life of this Agreement: 

a. If the Contractor is a foreign corporation, a certificate of authority to transact 
business in the State of Missouri from the Secretary of State, unless exempt 

183

Item 9.



Page 8 of 12 
Schroer Manufacturing Company d/b/a Shor-Line – Contractor Agreement 

 

pursuant to the provisions of Section 351.570 RSMo. 
b. A certificate from the Missouri Director of Revenue evidencing compliance with 

the transient employer financial assurance law, unless exempt pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 285.230 RSMo. 

24. E-Verify and Safety Training Compliance Requirements:  All Proposers/Contractors for 
contracts/agreements exceeding $5,000.00 shall by sworn affidavit and provision of 
documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization 
program with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted 
services. Every such business entity shall also sign an affidavit affirming that it does not 
knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the 
contracted services.  Such Affidavit of Compliance shall be submitted with the Proposal 
on the forms included in this Agreement.  Subsequent to award, each sub-contractor shall 
complete an Affidavit of Compliance to the same.  Sub-contractor affidavits shall be 
submitted to the City.   

25. Safety Training: Contractor shall provide the following safety training: A 10-hour 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration (“OSHA”) construction safety program 
for all employees who will be on-site at this Project.  The construction safety program 
shall include a course in construction safety and health that is approved by OSHA or a 
similar program approved by the Missouri Department of Labor and Industrial Relations 
which is at least as stringent as an approved OSHA program as required by Section 
292.675, RSMo.  

a.    Require its on-site employees to complete a construction safety program within 
60 days after the date work on the Project commences. 

b.  Acknowledges and agrees that any of the Contractor’s employees found on the 
project site with documentation of the successful completion of a construction 
safety program shall be required to produce such documentation within 20 days, 
or will be subject to removal from the Project.  

c.   Require all of its sub-contractors to comply with the requirements of this 
Paragraph, Safety Training, and Section 292.675 RSMo. 

26. Notice of Penalties for Failure to Provide Safety Training: Contractor shall be liable for 
penalties for failure to provide safety training as follows:  

a.    Pursuant to Section 292.675 RSMo. the Contractor shall forfeit to the City as a 
penalty $2,500.00, plus $100.00 for each on-site employee employed by the 
Contractor or its Sub-contractor, for each calendar day, or portion thereof. Such 
on-site employee is employed without the construction safety training required in 
Paragraph 24, Safety Training.  

b.   The penalty described in this Paragraph shall not begin to accrue until the time 
periods described in Paragraph 24, Safety Training, have elapsed.  

c.   Violation of Paragraph 24, Safety Training, and imposition of the penalty 
described in this Section shall be investigated and determined by the Missouri 
Department of Labor and Industrial Relations.  

27. Payment Withheld for Violations of Safety Training Provisions: In the event that the 
Missouri Department of Labor and Industrial Labor Relations has determined that a 
violation of Section 292.675 RSMo has occurred and that a penalty as described in 
Paragraph 25, Notice of Penalties for Failure to Provide Safety Training, shall be 

184

Item 9.



Page 9 of 12 
Schroer Manufacturing Company d/b/a Shor-Line – Contractor Agreement 

 

assessed, City shall withhold and retain all sums and amounts due and owing when 
making payments to Contractor. 

28. Federal Funding: If the subject of this Agreement is financed in whole or in part from 
Federal funds, this Agreement shall be subject to all applicable federal statutes, rules and 
regulations, including provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act, 40 U.S.C. §3141 et seq., and 
the “Federal Labor Standards Provisions,” incorporated into this Agreement.  Where the 
Missouri Prevailing Wage Law and the Davis-Bacon Act require payment of different 
wages for work performed under this Agreement, the Contractor and all Subcontractors 
shall pay the greater of the wages required under either law. 

29. General Independent Contractor Clause: This Agreement does not create an 
employee/employer relationship between the Parties.  It is the Parties' intention that the 
Contractor will be an independent contractor and not the City's employee for all 
purposes, including, but not limited to, the application of the Fair Labor Standards Act 
minimum wage and overtime payments, Federal Insurance Contribution Act, the Social 
Security Act, the Federal Unemployment Tax Act, the provisions of the Internal Revenue 
Code, Missouri Revenue and Taxation laws, Missouri Workers' Compensation and 
Unemployment Insurance laws. The Contractor will retain sole and absolute discretion in 
the judgment of the manner and means of carrying out the Contractor's activities and 
responsibilities hereunder.  Contractor agrees that it is a separate and independent 
enterprise from the City, that it has a full opportunity to find other business, that it has 
made its own investment in its business, and that it will utilize a high level of skill 
necessary to perform the work.  This Agreement shall not be construed as creating any 
joint employment relationship between the Contractor and the City, and the City will not 
be liable for any obligation incurred by the Contractor, including but not limited to 
unpaid minimum wages and/or overtime premiums. 

30. Occupational License: Contractor shall obtain and maintain an occupational license with 
the jurisdiction this Project is located in. The cost for this occupational license shall borne 
by the Contactor. No Agreement shall be executed by the City until this occupational 
license has been obtained. 

31. Nondiscrimination:  Contractor agrees in the performance of this Agreement not to 
discriminate on the grounds or because of race, creed, color, national origin or ancestry, 
sex, religion, handicap, age, or political opinion or affiliation, against any employee of 
Contractor or applicant for employment and shall include a similar provision in all 
subcontracts let or awarded hereunder. 

32. Ownership in Work: Contractor will have and will gain no ownership or other interest in 
Project in this Agreement.  

33. Conflict of Interest: In accepting this Agreement, Contractor certifies that no salaried 
officer or employee of the City, and no member of the City Council or Mayor, has a 
financial interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement.  Any federal regulations and 
applicable provisions in Section 105.450 et seq., RSMo. shall not be violated. 

34. Waiver: No provision of the Agreement documents shall be construed, expressly or by 
implication, as a waiver by the City of any existing or future right or remedy available by 
law in the event of any claim of default or breach of contract. 

35. Entire Agreement: This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the Parties and 
supersedes all prior and contemporaneous written or oral agreements.  This Agreement 

185

Item 9.



Page 10 of 12 
Schroer Manufacturing Company d/b/a Shor-Line – Contractor Agreement 

 

may not be modified or amended other than in writing as agreed and signed by all the 
Parties. 

36. Jurisdiction and Venue: This Agreement shall be taken and deemed to have been fully 
executed and made by the parties herein and governed by the laws of the State of 
Missouri for all purposes and intents.  Venue under this Agreement or any disputes that 
come from it shall be in the Circuit Court of Greene County, Missouri. 

37. Dispute: In the event that the City is the prevailing party in any litigation arising out of or 
relating to this Agreement, the City shall be entitled to all reasonable attorneys’ fees and 
expenses incurred. 

38. Liability: Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create any liability on behalf of 
the City for any direct, special, indirect, liquidated, or consequential damages.   

39. Execution: This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and each 
shall be deemed to be an original if signed by all Parties, but all of which together shall 
constitute one and the same document.  The parties agree that signatures transmitted by 
facsimile or scanned and emailed shall have the legal effect of original signatures. At the 
request of either party, the parties shall promptly exchange executed original counterparts 
of this Agreement or any amendment. 

40. Survival: This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
hereto and their respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns as 
provided in this Agreement.   

41. Headings: The headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and 
shall not limit or otherwise affect the meaning thereof. 

42. Whereas Clauses: The “Whereas” clauses stated above are incorporated herein by 
reference. 

43. Assignment: Contractor shall not assign any interest in this Agreement, and shall not 
transfer any interest in the same (whether by assignment or novation), without prior 
written consent of the City thereto, provided, however, that claims for money due or to 
become due to the Contractor from the City under this Agreement may be assigned to a 
bank, trust company, or other financial institution without such approval.  Notice of such 
assignment or transfer shall be furnished in writing promptly to the City and the bond 
surety.  Any such assignment is expressly subject to all rights and remedies of the City 
under this Agreement, including the right to change or delete activities from the 
Agreement or to terminate the same as provided herein, and no such assignment shall 
require the City to give any notice to any such assignee of any actions which the City 
may take under this Agreement. 

44. Sovereign Immunity: In no event shall any language or requirement in this Agreement be 
construed as or constitute a waiver or limitation of City’s defenses with regard to 
sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, or official immunity under federal or state 
constitutions, statutes, and/or laws. 

186

Item 9.



Page 11 of 12 
Schroer Manufacturing Company d/b/a Shor-Line – Contractor Agreement 

 

45. Severability Clause: A determination of invalidity or unconstitutionality by a court of 
competent jurisdiction of any clause, sentence, paragraph, section or part, of this 
Agreement shall not affect the validity of the remaining parts to this Agreement. 

46. Contingent Upon Funds and Approval: This Agreement is contingent upon the City 
having sufficient funds available for the subject of this Agreement.  Contractor shall have 
no right of action against City in the event City is unable to perform its obligations under 
this Agreement as a result of insufficient funds.  Further, this Agreement is subject to and 
conditioned upon approval by ordinance by the City Council. 

47. Notices: Any notice, request or demand provided for in this Agreement shall be deemed 
to have been given when the same shall have been personally delivered to the following 
offices or deposited in the United States Mail, Registered or Certified, with postage 
thereon prepaid as follows: 

to the City:   City of Republic, Missouri     
    Attn: City Administrator    
    213 North Main Street 

Republic, Missouri 65738 
 

to Contractor:  Schroer Manufacturing Company d/b/a Shor-Line 
511 Osage Ave 
Kansas City, KS, 66105    
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

187

Item 9.



Page 12 of 12 
Schroer Manufacturing Company d/b/a Shor-Line – Contractor Agreement 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of 
the day and year first above written. 

CONTRACTOR 

Schroer Manufacturing Company d/b/a Shor-Line  

__________________________  
(Signature) 
 
__________________________  
(Printed Name) 

__________________________  
(Title) 

 

CITY OF REPUBLIC     

 

_________________________________ 
David Cameron, City Administrator      

 

_________________________________ 
Attest: Laura Burbridge, City Clerk      

 

Approved as to Form:    

  

______________________________ 
Scott Ison, City Attorney 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

 

188

Item 9.



City of Republic - Invitation for Bid 
Cat and Dog Observation Pens for the Animal Control Center 

SEALED BIDS MUST BE PHYSICALLY RECEIVED AT REPUBLIC CITY HALL PRIOR TO 3:00 P.M. ON Monday, May 25th, 

2020. 

City of Republic 
C/O City Clerk, Laura Burbridge 
213 N. Main 
Republic MO 65738 

• Bids will be opened by the buyer at REPUBLIC CITY HALL AT 3:00 P.M. ON Monday, May 25th, 2020.

• Bids shall be submitted on the forms provided and must be manually signed by the individual authorized to

legally bind the company.

• Bids shall be submitted with the Invitation for Bid (IFB) project name or item clearly indicated on the

outside of the mailing envelope.

• Bids received after the opening date and time will be rejected.

• The attached Terms and Conditions shall become part of any purchase order resulting from this bid.

• FAXED/EMAILED BIDS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED.

• You are invited to submit your bid to furnish the materials and/or services described herein. Please submit

your prices/fees net of all discounts.

DESCRIPTION 

Observation Pens for Cats and Dogs for the Animal Control Center 

See attached General Conditions, Specifications, and Bid Form for detailed information. 

DELIVERY: F.O.B. DESTINATION - The articles to be furnished hereunder shall be delivered all transportation 

charges paid by the bidder to destination. 

Inquiries - All inquiries for information should be directed to: 

Christina Elmore         (417) 732-3190 

It is the intent of the City that this Invitation for Bid promotes competitive bidding. It shall be the Vendor’s 

responsibility to advise the City if any language, requirements, etc. any combination thereof, inadvertently restricts 

or limits the requirements stated in this Invitation for Bid to a single source. Such notification must be submitted in 

writing and must be received by the City contact listed above not later than three (3) days prior to the bid opening 

date. 

Exhibit A

189

Item 9.



 

 

INSTRUCTION TO BIDDERS 
 

01. Opening Location: The Bid will be opened at the Republic City Hall 213 N. Main at 3:00 P.M. ON 
Monday, May 25th,2020. 

a. All bidders or their representatives are invited to attend the opening of the IFB. 
 

02. IFB Delivery Requirements: Any Bids received after the above stated time and date will not be considered. 
It shall be the sole responsibility of the bidder to have their Bid delivered to Republic City Hall for receipt 
on or before the due date and time indicated. 

a. If a Bid is sent by U.S. Mail, the bidder shall be responsible for its timely delivery to Republic City 
Hall. 

b. Bids delayed by mail shall not be considered, shall not be opened, and shall be rejected. 
c. Arrangements may be made for their return at the bidder’s request and expense. 
d. Bids may be mailed to Republic City Hall and accepted if the signed bid form and required 

information was mailed and received prior to the due date and time. 
e. Bids sent by email will not be accepted. 

Sealed and Marked: If sent by mail, one original signed Bid shall be submitted in one sealed package, clearly 
marked on the outside of the package with the IFB project name. 
clearly indicated on the outside of the mailing envelope and addressed to. 

City of Republic 
C/O City Clerk, Laura Burbridge 
213 N. Main 
Republic MO 65738 

03. Legal Name and Signature: Bids shall clearly indicate the legal name, address, and telephone number of 
the bidder (company, firm, corporation, partnership, or individual). 

a. Bids shall be manually signed above the printed name and title of signer on the Affidavit of 
Compliance page. 

b. The signer shall have the authority to bind the company to the submitted Bid. 
c. Failure to properly sign the Bid form shall invalidate same, and it shall not be considered for 

award. 
04. Corrections: No erasures are permitted. 

a. If a correction is necessary, draw a single line through the entered figure and enter the corrected 
figure above it. 

b. Corrections must be initialed by the person signing the Bid. 
05. Clarification and Addenda: Each bidder shall examine all Invitation for Bid documents and shall judge all 

matters relating to the adequacy and accuracy of such documents. 
a. Any inquiries or suggestions, concerning interpretation, clarification, or additional information 

pertaining to the Invitation for Bid shall be made through the listed City contact in writing or 
through email. 

b. The City of Republic shall not be responsible for oral interpretations given by any City employee, 
representative, or others. 

c. The issuance of written addenda is the official method whereby interpretation, clarification, or 
additional information can be given. 

d. It shall be the responsibility of each bidder, prior to submitting their Bid, to contact listed City 
contact with questions or inquiries. 

06. IFB Expenses: There is no expressed or implied obligation for the City of Republic to reimburse responding 
firms and the City will not reimburse for any expenses incurred in preparing responses to this request. 

07. Irrevocable Offer: Any Bid may be withdrawn up until the due date and time set for opening of the IFB. 
Any Bid not so withdrawn shall, upon opening, constitute an irrevocable offer for a minimum period of 90 

190

Item 9.



days to sell to the City the goods or services set forth in the IFB, until one or more of the Bids have been 
duly accepted by the City. 

08. Responsive and Responsible Bidder: To be responsive, a bidder shall submit a Bid which conforms in all 
material respects to the requirements set forth in the Invitation for Bid. To be a responsible bidder, the 
bidder shall have the capability in all respects to perform fully the contract requirements, and the tenacity, 
perseverance, experience, integrity, reliability, capacity, facilities, equipment and credit which will ensure 
good faith performance. The lowest responsible bidder shall mean the bidder who makes the lowest Bid to 
sell goods or services of a quality which conforms closest to the quality of goods or services set forth in the 
specifications or otherwise required by the City and who is known to be fit and capable to perform the Bid 
as made. 

09. Reserved Rights: The City reserves the right to make such investigations as it deems necessary to make 
the determination of the bidder’s responsiveness and responsibility. 

a. Such information may include, but shall not be limited to: current financial statement, verification 
of availability of equipment and personnel, and past performance records. 

10. The Right to Audit: The bidder agrees to furnish supporting detail as may be required by the City to 
support charges or invoices, to make available for audit purposes all records covering charges pertinent to 
the purchase, and to make appropriate adjustments in the event discrepancies are found. 

a. The cost of any audit will be paid by the City. 
b. The City shall have the right to audit the bidder’s records pertaining to the work/product for a 

period of three (3) years after final payment. 
11. Applicable Law: All applicable laws and regulations of the State of Missouri and the City including the City 

Procurement Regulations and Procedures will apply to any resulting agreement, contract, or purchase 
order. 

a. Any involvement with the City Procurement shall be in accordance with the Procurement 
Regulations and Procedures. 

12. Right to Protest: Appeals and remedies are provided for in the City Procurement Regulations. 
a. Protestors shall seek resolution of their complaints initially with the City Purchasing Agent. 
b. Any protest shall state the basis upon which the solicitation or award is contested and shall be 

submitted within ten (10) calendar days after such aggrieved person knew or could have 
reasonably been expected to know of the facts giving rise thereto. 

13. Ethical Standards: With respect to this IFB, if any bidder violates or is a party to a violation of the general 
ethical standards of the City Procurement Code or the State of Missouri Statues, such bidder may be 
disqualified from furnishing the goods or services for which the Bid is submitted and shall be further 
disqualified from submitting any future Bids. 

14. Collusion: By offering a submission to this Invitation for Bid, the bidder certifies the bidder has not 
divulged, discussed, or compared the Bid with other bidders and has not colluded with any other bidder or 
parties to this IFB whatsoever. Also, the bidder certifies, and in the case of a joint Bid, each party thereto 
certifies as to their own organization, that in connection with this IFB: 

a. Any prices and/or cost data submitted have been arrived at independently, without consultation, 
communication, or agreement for the purpose of restricting competition, as to any matter relating 
to such prices and/or cost data, with any other bidder or with any competitor. 

b. Any prices and/or cost data for this Bid have not knowingly been disclosed by the bidder and will 
not knowingly be disclosed by the bidder prior to the scheduled opening directly or indirectly to 
any other bidder or to any competitor. 

c. No attempt has been made or will be made by the bidder to induce any other person or firm to 
submit or not to submit a Bid for the purpose of restricting competition. 

d. The only person or persons interested in this Bid, principal or principals are named therein and 
that no person other than therein mentioned has any interest in this Bid or in the contract to be 
entered into. 

e. No person or agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this contract upon an 
agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee 

191

Item 9.



exempting bona fide employees or established commercial agencies maintained by the Purchaser 
for the purpose of doing business. 

15. Contract Forms: Any agreement, contract, or purchase order resulting from the acceptance of a Bid shall 
be on forms either supplied by or approved by the City. 

16. Liability and Indemnity: 
a. In no event shall the City be liable to the Contractor for special, indirect, liquidated, incidental, or 

consequential damages, except those caused by the City’s gross negligence or willful or wanton 
misconduct arising out of or in any way connected with a breach of this contract. The maximum 
liability of the City shall be limited to the amount of money to be paid or received by the City 
under this contract. 

b. The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and save harmless the City, its elected or appointed 
officials, agents and employees from and against any and all liability, suits, damages, costs 
(including attorney fees), losses, outlays and expenses from claims in any manner caused by, or 
allegedly caused by, or arising out of, or connected with, this contract, or the work or any 
subcontract thereunder (the Contractor hereby assuming full responsibility for relations with 
subcontractors), including, but not limited to, claims for personal injuries, death, property 
damage, or for damages from the award of this contract to Contractor. 

c. The Contractor shall indemnify and hold the City harmless from all wages or overtime 
compensation due any employees in rendering services pursuant to this agreement or any 
subcontract, including payment of reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs in the defense of any claim 
made under the Fair Labor Standards Act, the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law or any other federal 
or state law. 

17. IFB Forms, Variances, and Alternates: Bids must be submitted on attached City IFB forms, although 
additional information may be attached. 

a. Bidders must indicate any variances from the City requested specifications and/or terms and 
conditions, on the IFB Affidavit of Compliance. 

b. Otherwise, bidders must fully comply with the City requested specifications and terms and 
conditions. Alternate Bids may or may not be considered at the sole discretion of the City 
Purchasing Agent. 

18. Bid Form: All blank spaces must be completed with the appropriate response. 
a. The bidder must state the price, written in ink, for what is proposed to complete each item of the 

project. 
b. Bidders shall insert the words “no bid” in the space provided for an item for which no Bid is made. 
c. The bidder shall submit an executed Bid form, affidavit of compliance with other requested 

documents. 
19. Modifications or Withdrawal of Bid: A modification for a Bid already received will be considered only if 

the modification is received prior to the time announced for opening of Bids. 
a. All modifications shall be made in writing, executed, and submitted on the same form and manner 

as the original Bid. 
b. Modifications submitted by telephone, fax, or email will not be considered. 

20. No Bid: If not submitting a Bid, respond by returning the “Statement of No Bid” no later than the stated 
Bid opening time and date, and explain the reason in the space provided. 

21. Errors in Bids: Bidders or their authorized representatives are expected to fully inform themselves as to 
the conditions, requirements, and specifications before submitting Bids; failure to do so will be at the 
bidder’s own risk. Neither law nor regulations make allowance for errors either of omission or 
commission on the part of bidders. In case of error of extension of prices in the Bid, the unit price shall 
govern. 

22. Prices: Bid give both unit price and extended total. 
a. Price must be stated in units of quantity specified in the bidding specifications. In case of 

discrepancy in computing the amount of the Bid, the unit price of the Bid will govern. 

192

Item 9.



b. All prices shall be F.O.B. destination, freight prepaid (unless otherwise stated in special 
conditions). FOB, as used in this IFB, shall mean that Seller, at their own expense, shall transport 
the equipment and/or materials and bear the risk of loss from Sellers location to a specified 
location in the City of Republic, MO 65738. Buyer shall not take title to the materials or 
equipment until it is delivered and accepted by Buyer at the address specified within the City of 
Republic. 

c. Each item must be bid separately and no attempt is to be made to tie any item or items in with 
any other item or items. 

d. If a bidder offers a discount on payment terms, the discount time will be computed from the date 
of satisfactory delivery at place of acceptance and receipt of correct invoice at the office specified. 

e. Payment terms shall be Net 30 if not otherwise specified. 
f. Pre-payment terms are not acceptable. 

23. Discounts: Any and all discounts except cash discounts for prompt payments must be incorporated as a 
reduction in the Bid price and not shown separately. 

a. The price as shown on the Bid shall be the price used in determining award(s). 
24. Descriptive Information: All equipment, materials, and articles incorporated in the product/work covered 

by this IFB are to be new and of suitable grade for the purpose intended. 
a. Brand or trade names referenced in specifications are for comparison purposes only. 
b. Bidders may submit Bids on items manufactured by other than the manufacturer specified when 

an “or equal” is stated. 
25. Deviations to Specifications and Requirements: When bidding on an “or equal,” Bids must be 

accompanied with all descriptive information necessary for an evaluation of the proposed material or 
equipment such as the detailed drawings and specifications, certified operation and test data, and 
experience records. 

a. Failure of any bidder to furnish the data necessary to determine whether the product is 
equivalent, may be cause for rejection of the specific item(s) to which it pertains. 

b. All deviations from the specifications must be noted in detail by the bidder on the Affidavit of 
Compliance form, at the time of submittal of Bid. 

c. The absence of listed deviations at the time of submittal of the Bid will hold the bidder strictly 
accountable to the specifications as written. 

d. Any deviation from the specifications as written and accepted by the City may be grounds for 
rejection of the material and/or equipment when delivered. 

26. Samples (if required): (NOT APPLICABLE) 
27. Quality Guaranty: If any product delivered does not meet applicable specifications or if the product will 

not produce the effect that the bidder represents to the City, the bidder shall pick up the product from the 
City at no expense. Also, the bidder shall refund to the City any money which has been paid for same. 

a. The bidder will be responsible for attorney fees in the event the bidder defaults and court action is 
required. 

28. Quality Terms: The City reserves the right to reject any or all materials if, in its judgment, the item reflects 
unsatisfactory workmanship, manufacturing, or shipping damages. 

29. Tax-Exempt: The City is exempt from sales taxes and Federal Excise Taxes: Missouri Tax ID Number 
12492990. 

30. Awards: 
a. Unless otherwise stated in the Invitation for Bid, cash discounts for prompt payment of invoices 

will not be considered in the evaluation of prices. However, such discounts are encouraged to 
motivate prompt payment. 

b. As the best interest of the City may require, the right is reserved to make awards by item, group of 
items, all or none or a combination thereof; to reject any and all Bids or waive any minor 
irregularity or technicality in Bids received. 

193

Item 9.



c. Awards will be made to the Bidder whose Bid (1) meets the specifications and all other 
requirements of the Invitation for Bid and (2) is the lowest and best Bid, considering price, 
delivery, responsibility of the bidder, and all other relevant factors. 

31. Authorized Product Representation: The successful bidder(s) by virtue of submitting the name and 
specifications of a manufacturer’s product will be required to furnish the named manufacturer’s product. 

a. By virtue of submission of the stated documents, it will be presumed by the City that the bidder(s) 
is legally authorized to submit and the successful bidder(s) will be legally bound to perform 
according to the documents. 

32. Regulations: It shall be the responsibility of each bidder to assure compliance with OSHA, EPA, Federal, 
State of Missouri, and City rules, regulations, or other requirements, as each may apply. 
a. E-VERIFY COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS: All Contractors/Contractors for contracts exceeding five 
thousand dollars shall by sworn affidavit and provision of documentation, affirm its enrollment and 
participation in a federal work authorization program with respect to the employees working in 
connection with the contracted services. Every such business entity shall also sign an affidavit affirming 
that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the 
contracted services. 
b. Proposers are informed the Project is subject to the requirements of Section 292.675, RSMo., which 
requires all contractors or subcontractors doing work on the Project to provide and require its on-site 
employees to complete a ten (10)hour course in construction safety and health approved by the 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration (“OSHA”) or a similar program approved by the Missouri 
Department of Labor and Industrial Relations which is at least as stringent as an approved OSHA program. 
The training must be completed within sixty (60) days of the date work on the Project commences. On-site 
employees found on the worksite without documentation of the required training shall have twenty (20) 
days to produce such documentation. 
c. Pursuant to Section 292.675 RSMo. The Contractor shall forfeit to the City as a penalty two thousand 
five hundred dollars ($2,500.00), plus one hundred dollars ($100.00) for each on-site employee employed 
by the Contractor or its Subcontractor, for each calendar day, or portion thereof, Such on-site employee is 
employed without the construction safety training required in the above paragraph. 
d. Section 208.009 RSMo. shall apply to any contracts awarded under this bid. 

33. Termination of Award: Any failure of the bidder to satisfy the requirements of the City shall be reason for 
termination of the award. 

a. Any Bid may be rejected in whole or in part for any reason by the City. 
34. Royalties and Patents: The successful bidder(s) shall pay all royalties and license fees for equipment or 

processes in conjunction with the equipment being furnished. 
a. Bidder shall defend all suits or claims for infringement of any patent right and shall hold the City 

harmless from loss on account or cost and attorney’s fees incurred. 
35. Equal Employment Opportunity Clause: The City of Republic, in accordance with the provision of Title VI 

of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252) and the Regulations of the Department of Commerce (15 CFR, 
Part 8) issued pursuant to such Act, hereby notifies all bidders that affirmatively ensure that in any 
contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement that minority businesses will be afforded full 
opportunity to submit Bids in response to this advertisement and will not be discriminated against on the 
grounds of race, color, or national origin in consideration for award. 

36. Prevailing Wages: If the public works construction project is valued at more than $75,000, the successful 

bidder shall comply with applicable State provisions concerning the payment of prevailing wages on public 

works projects. Accordingly, all workers performing work under the City Contractor Agreement shall be 

paid not less than the prevailing hourly rate of wages as determined by the Department of Labor and 

Industrial Relations of the State of Missouri (or “MoDOLIR”). 

37. Insurance Requirements: Without limiting any of the other obligations or liabilities of the Contractor, the 
Contractor shall secure and maintain at its own cost and expense, throughout the duration of this Contract 
and until the work is completed and accepted by the City, insurance of such types and in such amounts as 
may be necessary to protect it and the interests of the City against all hazards or risks of loss as hereunder 194

Item 9.



specified or which may arise out of the performance of the Contract Documents. The form and limits of 
such insurance, together with the underwriter thereof in each case, are subject to approval by the City. At 
a minimum, proof of Workers Compensation, Liability, and Automobile Liability insurance shall be 
presented. Regardless of such approval, it shall be the responsibility of the contractor to maintain adequate 
insurance coverage at all times during the term of the Contract. Failure of the Contractor to maintain 
coverage shall not relieve it of any contractual responsibility or obligation or liability under the Contract 
Documents. The limits of liability insurance shall be as established annually and published by the Secretary 
of State in the Missouri Registry. For this project, the required insurance amounts shall be: Workers’ 
Compensation - Statutory coverage per RSMo. 287.010 et seq; Employer’s Liability - $1,000,000.00; 
Commercial General Liability Insurance - $2,804,046 for all claims arising out of a single accident or 
occurrence and $420,606 for any one person in a single accident or occurrence; Automobile Liability 
Insurance - covering bodily injury and property damage for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles, with 
limits of $2,804,046 for all claims arising out of a single accident or occurrence and $420,606 for any one 
person in a single accident or occurrence. 

38. Performance Bond and Labor & Materials Payment Bond: Pursuant to RSMo. 107.170, if the project is 
estimated to exceed $50,000.00, the Contractor shall execute a Performance and Maintenance Bond and a 
Labor and Materials Payment Bond with surety approved by the City and on the forms approved by the City, 
each bond shall be in the amount of the total project cost, conditioned upon the full and faithful 
performance of all major terms and conditions of the Agreement and payment of all labor and material 
supplies. 

39. Nonresident/Foreign Contractors: The Contractor shall procure and maintain during the life of this contract: 
a. If the Contractor is a foreign corporation, a certificate of authority to transact business in the State of 
Missouri from the Secretary of State, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 351.570 RSMo. 
b. A certificate from the Missouri Director of Revenue evidencing compliance with the transient employer 
financial assurance law, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 285.230 RSMo. 

40. Bid Tabulation: Bidders may request a copy of the bid tabulation of the Invitation for Bid. 
41. Budgetary Constraints: The City reserves the right to reduce or increase the quantity, retract any item 

from the Bid, or upon notification, terminate entire agreement without any obligations or penalty based 
upon availability of funds. 

42. Additional Purchases by Other Public Agencies: The bidder by submitting a Bid authorizes other public 
agencies to “Piggy-Back” or purchase equipment and services being proposed in this Invitation for Bid 
unless otherwise noted on the Affidavit of Compliance Form. 

43. Order of Precedence: Any and all Special/General Conditions and Specifications attached hereto, which 
varies from the instruction to bidders, shall take precedence. 

44. Affidavit for Service Contracts: The Bidder represents, in accordance with RSMO 285.530.2 that they have 
not employed, or subcontracted with, unauthorized aliens in connection with the scope of work to be 
done under the IFB and agrees to provide an affidavit to the City of Republic affirming that they have not, 
and will not in connection with the IFB, knowingly employ, or subcontract with, any person who is an 
unauthorized alien. 

45. Business License – It will be the requirement of the contractor to acquire a City of Republic business 
license before they may begin work on the project. 

46. Inspection and Acceptance: No item(s) received by the City pursuant to this contract shall be deemed 
accepted until the City has had reasonable opportunity to inspect the item(s). 

a. Any item(s) which are discovered to be defective or which do not conform to any warranty of the 
Seller upon inspection may be returned at the seller’s expense for full credit or replacement. 

b. If at a later time, the defects were not ascertainable upon the initial inspection may also be 
returned at the Seller's expense for full credit or replacement. 

c. The City's return of defective items shall not exclude any other legal, equitable or contractual 
remedies the City may have. 

47. Davis-Bacon Act: If the Instructions to Bidders have indicated that the Project is financed in whole or in 
part from Federal funds, then this contract shall be subject to all applicable federal statutes, rules and 

195

Item 9.



regulations, including provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act, 40 U.S.C. §3141 et seq., and the “Federal Labor 
Standards Provisions,” incorporated into this Contract. Where the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law and the 
Davis-Bacon Act require payment of different wages for work performed under this Contract, the 
Contractor and all Subcontractors shall pay the greater of the wages required under either law. 

48. Jurisdiction and Venue: This IFB and any Agreement required under it, shall be taken and deemed to have 
been fully executed and made by the parties herein and governed by the laws of the State of Missouri for 
all purposes and intents. Venue under this Agreement or any disputes that come from it shall be in the 
Circuit Court of Greene County, Missouri. THE PARTIES HEREBY WAIVE THEIR RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL 
UNDER ANY APPLICABLE STATUTE, COMMON LAW OR FEDERAL OR STATE CONSTITUTION. 

49. Conflict of Interest: In participating in this IFB and accepting an Agreement, Contractor certifies that no 
salaried officer or employee of the City, and no member of the City Council or Mayor, has a financial 
interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement. Any federal regulations and applicable provisions in 
Section 105.450 et seq., RSMo. shall not be violated. 

50. Sovereign Immunity: In no event shall any language or requirement in this IFB or any Agreement that 
comes from this IFB be construed as or constitute a waiver or limitation of City’s defenses with regard to 
sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, or official immunity under federal or state constitutions, 
states, and/or laws. 

51. Terms: The City of Republic reserves the right to reject any and all proposals received from this bid. It 
further has the right to negotiate with any qualified source, or to cancel in part or in its entirety this bid. 
The City also reserves the right to modify, suspend, or terminate at its sole discretion any and all aspects 
of this bud process, to obtain further information from any and all respondents, and to waive any defects 
as to form or content of the bid or any submissions by any firm. This bud does not commit the City to 
award a contract, to defray any costs incurred in the preparation of a response to this request, or to 
procure or contract for services. All submissions become the property of the City as public record. All 
submissions may be subject to public review upon request. 

196

Item 9.



 

        Animal Control 

204 North Main 

Republic, Missouri 65738-1472 

Phone: (417) 732-3190 Fax: (417) 732-3499 

celmore@republicmo.com  

 

 

 

      

          BID SPECIFICATIONS 

 

The requested proposals are for furnishing and installation of all materials and labor for 

observation cages in the dog and cat observation rooms 

 

 

To supply and install 6  47 7/8”x 33 1/8”x 68” either stainless steel or fiberglass type material 

cages that would consist of two cages that are stacked on top of each other with each cage being  

47 7/8”x 28 1/8”x 27 ½”.  With 5 of the cages being placed in the dog observation room and 1 in 

the cat observation room. 

 

To supply and install 4  72”x33 1/8”x 68” stackable cages with 4 in total cages for each unit with 

each cage being 35 7/8”x 28 1/8”x 27 ½” and the interior of each of these cages needs to equal to 

at least 4 square feet and can be either stainless steel or fiberglass type material. All 4 of these 

cages would go in the cat observation room 

 

197

Item 9.

mailto:celmore@republicmo.com


198

Item 9.



 

ATTACHMENT A - BID SUBMISSION FORM 

BIDDERS MUST PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION: 

Item Description of Work Price 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Base Bid 

• Furnishing and installation of all materials and labor 

for Cat & Dog Observation Pens as identified in Area 

3 of the attached building plan 

• All bids to include: 

o Travel Expenses 

o Freight/Shipping Costs 

o Any other administrative costs 

• All work must be completed by June 30th, 2020 

Please note any of the following: 

• Any labor personnel requests of the City of 

Republic for this project. 

• Any other requests or responsibilities of the City 

of Republic for this project. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
$   

In compliance with this Invitation for Bid and to all terms, conditions, and specifications imposed therein and hereby incorporated by 
reference, the undersigned offers and agrees to furnish the goods and/or services described herein. 

 

 
 
 
 

City of Republic – Perimeter Fencing and Kennel Barriers for 

the Animal Control Center 

 

312 N Main St., Republic, MO 65738 

 

 

Company Name: 

 

 

Address: 

 

Telephone: 
 

 
Facsimile: 

Signed 
Dated 

 

E-mail: 
 

 
Cellular: 

Printed 
Title 

  
Bidders Federal ID Number: 

199

Item 9.



 

To be submitted with Vendor’s Bid 

  We DO NOT take exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements. 

  We TAKE exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements as follows: 

CITY OF REPUBLIC STATEMENT OF “NO BID” * ADDENDA 

 
Bidder acknowledges receipt of the following addendum: 

 
RETURN THIS PAGE ONLY IF YOUR COMPANY PROVIDES THE PRODUCTS/SERVICES BEING BID AND DECLINES TO DO 

SO. 

Addendum No.    

Addendum No.    

 

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, HAVE DECLINED TO BID ON YOUR IFB * FOR DESCRIPTION FOR THE FOLLOWING 

REASON(S): 

Addendum No.    
 

  SPECIFICATIONS ARE TOO “TIGHT,” I.E. GEARED TOWARD ONE BRAND OR MANUFACTURER ONLY 

(PLEASE EXPLAIN BELOW). 

Addendum No.    

Addendum No.    

  INSUFFICIENT TIME TO RESPOND TO INVITATION FOR BID. 

  OUR PRODUCT SCHEDULE WOULD NOT PERMIT US TO PREFORM. 
 

 
Print Email   

 

Print Federal Tax ID No.   

200

Item 9.



 

 

 

CITY OF REPUBLIC STATEMENT OF “NO BID” 

RETURN THIS PAGE ONLY IF YOUR COMPANY PROVIDES THE PRODUCTS/SERVICES BEING BID AND DECLINES TO DO 

SO. 

 
WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, HAVE DECLINED TO BID ON YOUR IFB FOR THE FOLLOWING REASON(S): 

 

  SPECIFICATIONS ARE TOO “TIGHT,” I.E. GEARED TOWARD ONE BRAND OR MANUFACTURER ONLY 

(PLEASE EXPLAIN BELOW). 

  INSUFFICIENT TIME TO RESPOND TO INVITATION FOR BID. 

  OUR PRODUCT SCHEDULE WOULD NOT PERMIT US TO PERFORM. 

  UNABLE TO MEET SPECIFICATIONS. 

  UNABLE TO MEET INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. 

  SPECIFICATIONS UNCLEAR (PLEASE EXPLAIN BELOW). 

  OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY BELOW). 

REMARKS: 

 

 

 

 

 

COMPANY NAME:     

ADDRESS:    

SIGNATURE AND TITLE:      

TELEPHONE NUMBER:      

DATE:    

201

Item 9.



 

 
EXEMPTION  FROM  MISSOURI SALES AND USE TAX  ON PURCHASES ’›:".’ 

 

 

 

Issued to: 

 
C I TY  0 F  R E P U B L I C 
Z 1 3 N HA I N 
RE P U B L I C  M0 6 5 73B 

NI  ssour I    Tax  ID ”',›.\.” 
 

 
Effective  Date: ’ 

, 0 7/1 l/ZO0f 

 

 

 

Y o u r    a pc p 1 k a t i o n I o r ss a 1 e / u s e I a x e x'e m.g I s L a L ups h acs b e e n a p p r a v e d 
p e r s u a n I     I o   when t  i o n    1 4 4+ II. S NJ  . 1 ,    R SP o . 7 h 1 s 1 e t I: esr— :z —1-> su esd a 
d o c ume n I a I :t q p o I y o u r me x e p t s t a I u s . 

 
P u r c h a s e s b y v o u r A g e n c y a p e nso I 

 

u b fi e” c I I o s a 1 e s osK u 
 

e I a x 

:I I     w1 t  h i  n    t  h e     c o n d u c I    o I     y o u r    Ag e.a osr.’ s  me x,e    p I     I  u n c I: :t o la's 
a n d  a c I i v i  t i e s  .  V h e n  p u n c h as  1 r\.g ”wk.I h  t h i s   e x e m p t 1 o n ,   I u r n:I s h 
all seI’]ers or vendors a copy ,of” t’h,l’s better.  Thins exémp*tion 
mav not be u’sed by individuali ama.ktpg personal purchases. 

’, /). , 

A contractor may purchase and pav tor ,comstructíon materials exempt 

from sales t,ax when fultil’1in,g a contract with your Agemcv onlv ,?’) 

:t I y o u r A g e n c :vs i s u e s a p rco J e t    cx  emp t 1o n    c e rd  :t I  :t c  a  I  e   a fii d   t he ;* /. 
contractor  makes  purchases  in comoliance  with the provi.sions ’ ;/ 
of section  Ué. D6Z, RSM.o. **„. 

 

Sales bv your .Agencv are Subject to all applicable state and 1o c a l     s a 
1 e s    t a x e s  .     y I I o u   e n 9 a g e‘    i n    I  ft es    D u    is n e s o I     s e 1 I  i  n 9 
tangible personal property or taxable  services  at rétail, vou 

must obtaîn a Missouri Retail Sales Tax License ant cÔllect and 

remît sales tax. ' 

 

Th:I s  1 s  a  c o nI i n u 1 n g  e»e map t 1 o n  s u b J e c I   I o  1.e g  s 1 a t;t v e  c h an g e s 

and review bv the Di’rector  qf Revenue. If youn A,gbncy ceases 
I e    qu a 1 i  £v    a s    n n    e x e m e I    e. n 2 i I , t h :I s me x e p t S o n u 1 11 c e a s e t o b e 
valid. This exemptizfi is not assspnahleior transferable. It 
is  an  exemption  from sales  and u:se  ta.xes! dms and is not an 
exemption from real or personal Property tax. 
 

Any alteration to this exemotion letter renders it invalid. 

202

Item 9.



 

MISSOURI PROJECT EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE 
 

Authorization for Purchasing Construction Materials for Tax Exempt Project 

(The Form and Content of this Exemption Certificate have been approved by the Missouri Department of Revenue) 

 

EXEMPT ENTITY ISSUING CERTIFICATE 

Name: City of Republic, Missouri 

Address: 213 N. Main Avenue 

City/State/Zip: Republic, Missouri 65738 

 

MO Tax Exempt I.D. #:   12492990 Letter Effective Date: 

Contract Date: Certificate Expiration Date: 
Contract #:   Revised Expiration Date:      

Project Description: Republic Aquatic Center – Flowrider Refurbishment 

Project Location: 711 E. Miller Rd. Republic, Missouri 

Estimated Project Completion Date: April 30, 2019 

Auth. Signature:  ,Mayor Jeff   Ussery Date:      
 

The Missouri exempt entity named above hereby authorizes the purchase, without sales tax, of tangible personal property 

to be incorporated or consumed in the construction of the project identified herein and no other, pursuant to Section 

144.62 RSMo. 

 
PURCHASING CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR 

Name: 
Address: 
City/State/Zip: 

INSTRUCTIONS 

EXEMPT ENTITY - A signed copy of this certificate, along with your MO Tax Exemption Letter, must be furnished to 

each contractor and/or subcontractor who will be purchasing tangible personal property for use in the project. It is the 

exempt entity’s responsibility to ensure the validity of the certificate. You must issue a certificate with a Revised 

Expiration Date if purchases will be required to complete the project beyond the original Project Exemption Date. 

 

CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR - The contractor shall furnish a completed copy of this exemption 

certificate, along with a copy of the exempt entity’s MO Tax Exemption Letter, to all subcontractors, and any contractor 

or subcontractor purchasing materials shall present copies of such documents to all material suppliers as authorization to 

purchase, on behalf of the exempt entity, all tangible personal property and materials to be incorporated or consumed in 

the construction of that project and no other on a tax-exempt basis. A copy of each certificate must be retained by the 

purchaser for a period of five years. 

 

MATERIAL SUPPLIER - A completed copy of this exemption certificate, along with the MO Tax Exemption Letter of 

the exempt entity contracting for the project, must be obtained from the contractor or subcontractor making purchases of 

tangible personal   property for use in the project, and retained for audit purposes. Invoices issued for such purchases 

must reflect the name of the exempt entity and the project number assigned by the exempt entity shown above. 

203

Item 9.



 

NOTICE AND INSTRUCTIONS TO CONTRACTORS/SUBCONTRACTORS 
REGARDING SECTIONS 285.525 THROUGH 285.550 RSMO, EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2009 

 

Effective January 1, 2009, and pursuant to the State of Missouri’s RSMO 285.530(1), No business entity or employer shall 
knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien to perform work within the State of 
Missouri. 

 

As a condition for the award of any contract or grant in excess of five thousand dollars by the state or by any political 
subdivision of the state (e.g., City of Republic, MO) to a business entity, the business entity (Company) shall, by sworn 
affidavit and provision of documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program 
with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services. Every such business entity shall sign 
an affidavit affirming that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the 
contracted services. [RSMO 285-530(2)] 

 
The City of Republic, Missouri, in order to comply with sections 285.525 through 285.550 RSMO, requires the following 
Bid and contract documents: 

 

The City of Republic encourages companies that are not enrolled and participating in a federal work authorization program 
to do so. E-Verify is an example of this type of program. Information regarding E-Verify is available at 
http://www.dhs.gov/xprevprot/programs/gc 1185221678150.shtm or by calling 888-464-4218. 

Required Affidavit for Contracts Over $5,000.00 (US) – Effective 1-1-2009, Company shall comply 

with the provisions of Section 285.525 through 285.550 R.S.Mo. Contract award is contingent on 

Company providing an acceptable notarized affidavit stating: 

 
1. that Company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with respect 

to the 
employees working in connection with the contracted services; and 

 
2. that Company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection 

with 
the contracted services. 

 
Copies of affidavit can be found and downloaded on the City of Republic Missouri Public Works 

website; 

204

Item 9.

http://www.dhs.gov/xprevprot/programs/gc%201185221678150.shtm


 

AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 285.500 R.S.MO., ET SEQ. 
FOR ALL AGREEMENTS IN EXCESS OF $5,000.00 

 
 

EFFECTIVE 1/1/2009 
 

STATE OF  ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF  ) 
 

Before me, the undersigned Notary Public, in and for the County of   , 
State of  , personally appeared (Name) 
who is   (Title) of       
(Name of company), (corporation), (partnership), (sole proprietorship), (limited liability company), and after being duly 
sworn did depose and say: 

 
(1) that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program 

with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and 
 

(2) that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien 
in connection with the contracted services. 

 
The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 R.S. Mo., et seq. 

 

Documentation of participation in a federal work authorization program is attached to this affidavit. 
 
 

Signature 
 

Printed Name 

 
 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this  day of  ,  . 
 
 

Notary Public 
 

My commission expires:     

205

Item 9.



 

Company ID Number: XXXXXX 

 
 

The foregoing constitutes the full agreement on this subject between the SSA, DHS (Department of Homeland Security), 
and the Employer. 

 

The individuals whose signatures appear below represent that they are authorized to enter into this MOU on behalf of the 
Employer and DHS respectively. 

 
To be accepted as a participant in E-Verify, you should only sign the Employer’s Section of the signature page. If you 
have any questions, contact E-Verify Operations at 888-464-4218. 

 
 

Employer, Your Company Name 
 
 

John Doe     
Name (Please type or print) Title 

 
Electronically Signed     
Signature Date 

 
 

Verification 
 

Department of Homeland Security Division 
 

USCIS Verification Division     
Name (Please type or print) Title 

 
Electronically Signed     
Signature Date 

206

Item 9.



Exhibit B

207

Item 9.



208

Item 9.



        Animal Control 

204 North Main 

Republic, Missouri 65738-1472 

Phone: (417) 732-3190 Fax: (417) 732-3499 

celmore@republicmo.com 

      BID SPECIFICATIONS 

The requested proposals are for furnishing and installation of all materials and labor for 

observation cages in the dog and cat observation rooms 

To supply and install 6  47 7/8”x 33 1/8”x 68” either stainless steel or fiberglass type material 

cages that would consist of two cages that are stacked on top of each other with each cage being  

47 7/8”x 28 1/8”x 27 ½”.  With 5 of the cages being placed in the dog observation room and 1 in 

the cat observation room. 

To supply and install 4  72”x33 1/8”x 68” stackable cages with 4 in total cages for each unit with 

each cage being 35 7/8”x 28 1/8”x 27 ½” and the interior of each of these cages needs to equal to 

at least 4 square feet and can be either stainless steel or fiberglass type material. All 4 of these 

cages would go in the cat observation room 

Exhibit C

209

Item 9.

mailto:celmore@republicmo.com


210

Item 9.



ATTACHMENT A - BID SUBMISSION FORM 

BIDDERS MUST PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION: 

Item Description of Work Price 

Base Bid 

• Furnishing and installation of all materials and labor

for Cat & Dog Observation Pens as identified in Area

3 of the attached building plan

• All bids to include:

o Travel Expenses

o Freight/Shipping Costs

o Any other administrative costs

• All work must be completed by June 30th, 2020

Please note any of the following: 

• Any labor personnel requests of the City of

Republic for this project.

• Any other requests or responsibilities of the City

of Republic for this project.

$ 

In compliance with this Invitation for Bid and to all terms, conditions, and specifications imposed therein and hereby incorporated by 
reference, the undersigned offers and agrees to furnish the goods and/or services described herein. 

City of Republic – Perimeter Fencing and Kennel Barriers for 

the Animal Control Center 

312 N Main St., Republic, MO 65738 

Company Name: 

Address: 

Telephone: 

Facsimile: 
Signed 
Dated 

E-mail:

Cellular: 
Printed 
Title 

Bidders Federal ID Number: 

211

Item 9.



 

To be submitted with Vendor’s Bid 

  We DO NOT take exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements. 

  We TAKE exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements as follows: 

CITY OF REPUBLIC STATEMENT OF “NO BID” * ADDENDA 

 
Bidder acknowledges receipt of the following addendum: 

 
RETURN THIS PAGE ONLY IF YOUR COMPANY PROVIDES THE PRODUCTS/SERVICES BEING BID AND DECLINES TO DO 

SO. 

Addendum No.    

Addendum No.    

 

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, HAVE DECLINED TO BID ON YOUR IFB * FOR DESCRIPTION FOR THE FOLLOWING 

REASON(S): 

Addendum No.    
 

  SPECIFICATIONS ARE TOO “TIGHT,” I.E. GEARED TOWARD ONE BRAND OR MANUFACTURER ONLY 

(PLEASE EXPLAIN BELOW). 

Addendum No.    

Addendum No.    

  INSUFFICIENT TIME TO RESPOND TO INVITATION FOR BID. 

  OUR PRODUCT SCHEDULE WOULD NOT PERMIT US TO PREFORM. 
 

 
Print Email   

 

Print Federal Tax ID No.   

212

Item 9.



 

 

 

CITY OF REPUBLIC STATEMENT OF “NO BID” 

RETURN THIS PAGE ONLY IF YOUR COMPANY PROVIDES THE PRODUCTS/SERVICES BEING BID AND DECLINES TO DO 

SO. 

 
WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, HAVE DECLINED TO BID ON YOUR IFB FOR THE FOLLOWING REASON(S): 

 

  SPECIFICATIONS ARE TOO “TIGHT,” I.E. GEARED TOWARD ONE BRAND OR MANUFACTURER ONLY 

(PLEASE EXPLAIN BELOW). 

  INSUFFICIENT TIME TO RESPOND TO INVITATION FOR BID. 

  OUR PRODUCT SCHEDULE WOULD NOT PERMIT US TO PERFORM. 

  UNABLE TO MEET SPECIFICATIONS. 

  UNABLE TO MEET INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. 

  SPECIFICATIONS UNCLEAR (PLEASE EXPLAIN BELOW). 

  OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY BELOW). 

REMARKS: 

 

 

 

 

 

COMPANY NAME:     

ADDRESS:    

SIGNATURE AND TITLE:      

TELEPHONE NUMBER:      

DATE:    

213

Item 9.



NOTICE OF AWARD 
 

DATED: _______________         
 
TO:         Schroer Manufacturing Company d/b/a Shor-Line 
  511 Osage Ave 
  Kansas City, KS, 66105 
 
PROJECT: Republic Animal Shelter – Perimeter Fencing and Kennel Barriers 
                           
DESCRIPTION OF WORK:  As described in the Agreement. 
 
You are notified that your Bid dated May 22, 2020, for the above Agreement has been considered.  You are the 
successful bidder and have been awarded an Agreement for the work in the Agreement. 
  
The Agreement price, based on the submitted unit pricing of your  bid is $30,287.44, with any contingency allowance set 
aside as specified in the Agreement. 
 
Two copies of each of the proposed Agreement Documents accompany this Notice of Award.  You must comply with the 
following conditions within ten business days of the date of this Notice of Award, that is by _____________________. 
 

1. You must deliver to the City two fully executed counterparts of the Agreement including all the Agreement 
Documents.  Each of the Agreement Documents must bear your signature on the cover sheet.  The date on the 
Agreement must be left blank and will be filled in by the City.  

 
2. You must deliver with the executed certificates of Insurance as specified the Agreement.   

 
Within 10 days after you comply with these conditions, the City will return to you two fully signed counterparts of the 
Agreement with the Agreement Documents attached. 
 
You are required to return an acknowledged copy of this Notice of Award to the City. 
 
 
  
____________________, __________________ Director 
 
 
 
ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE 
 
Receipt of the foregoing Notice of Award is hereby acknowledged and the following Performance Schedule is submitted 
pursuant to the terms of the Bid and Contractor Agreement, this ________day of ____________, 20___. 
 
 
 By  
 
 
 Title  

214

Item 9.



NOTICE TO PROCEED  

DATED:  

TO:    

Schroer Manufacturing Company d/b/a Shor-Line  
511 Osage Ave 
Kansas City, KS, 66105 
 
PROJECT/DESCRIPTION OF WORK: Republic Animal Shelter – Perimeter Fencing and Kennel 
Barriers / As described in the Agreement 
 
CONTRACT PRICE: $30,287.44 

You are hereby notified to commence work on the referenced contract on or before                 , 

and shall fully complete all of the work of said contract within ____________ consecutive 

calendar days thereafter.  Your final completion date is therefore                                . 

 

CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI 

By:        

 _______________, __________ Director 

 

ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE 

Receipt of the foregoing Notice to Proceed is hereby acknowleged by by the undersigned this 

____________ day of ___________________ , 20____ . 

By:        

 ______________________________  
 Title 
 

215

Item 9.



 
 

  

 

 
 

City of Republic Missouri 
213 North Main 

Republic, Missouri 65738-1472 
Phone: (417) 732-3100 Fax: (417) 732-3149 

 
NOTICE AND INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS/VENDORS 

REGARDING SECTIONS 285.525 THROUGH 285.550 RSMO 
 

Pursuant to the State of Missouri’s RSMO 285.530(1), No business entity or employer shall knowingly 
employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien to perform work within the 
State of Missouri. 
 
As a condition for the award of any contract or grant in excess of five thousand dollars by the state or 
by any political subdivision of the state (e.g., City of Republic, MO) to a business entity, the business 
entity (Company) shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of documentation, affirm its enrollment and 
participation in a federal work authorization program with respect to the employees working in 
connection with the contracted services.  Every such business entity shall sign an affidavit affirming 
that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the 
contracted services.  [RSMO 285-530(2)] 
 
The City of Republic, Missouri, in order to comply with sections 285.525 through 285.550 RSMO, 
requires the following bid and contract documents: 
 

 
The City of Republic encourages companies that are not enrolled and participating in a federal work 
authorization program to do so.  E-Verify is an example of this type of program.  Information regarding 
E-Verify is available at http://www.dhs.gov/xprevprot/programs/gc 1185221678150.shtm or by calling 
888-464-4218. 

Required Affidavit for Contracts Over $5,000.00 (US) –Company shall comply with the provisions of Section 
285.525 through 285.550 RSMo.  Contract award is contingent on Company providing an acceptable notarized 
affidavit stating: 
 

1. that Company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with respect to the 
employees working in connection with the contracted services; and 

 
2. that Company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with  

the contracted services. 
 
Copies of affidavit can be found and downloaded on the City of Republic Missouri Public Works website; 
http://www.republicmo.com/publicworksdepartment  See attached sample 
 
Additionally, Company must provide documentation evidencing current enrollment in a federal work authorization 
program (e.g., electronic signature page from E-Verify program’s Memo of Understanding (MOU).  See attached 
sample 

216

Item 9.

http://www.dhs.gov/xprevprot/programs/gc%201185221678150.shtm
http://www.republicmo.com/publicworksdepartment


 
 

 

 
 

CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 285.500 RSMO., ET SEQ. 
FOR ALL AGREEMENTS IN EXCESS OF $5,000.00 

 
STATE OF       ) 
       ) ss. 
COUNTY OF      ) 
 
Before me, the undersigned Notary Public, in and for the County of      , 
State of     , personally appeared       (Name) 
who is       (Title) of         
(Name of company), (corporation), (partnership), (sole proprietorship), (limited liability company), and 
is authorized to make this affidavit, and after being duly sworn did depose and say: 
 

(1) that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program  
     with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and 
 
(2) that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien 

in connection with the contracted services. 
 
The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 R.S. Mo., et seq. 
 
Documentation of participation in a federal work authorization program is attached to this 
affidavit. 
 
               
       Signature 
               
       Printed Name 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this    day of    ,   . 
 
               
       Notary Public 
 
My commission expires:     

217

Item 9.



 
 

 

 
 
Company ID Number: XXXXXX 
 
 
 
The foregoing constitutes the full agreement on this subject between the SSA, DHS 
(Department of Homeland Security), and the Employer. 
 
The individuals whose signatures appear below represent that they are authorized to 
enter into this MOU on behalf of the Employer and DHS respectively. 
 
To be accepted as a participant in E-Verify, you should only sign the Employer’s Section 
of the signature page.  If you have any questions, contact E-Verify Operations at 888-
464-4218. 
 
 
 
Employer, Your Company Name 
 
 
John Doe            
Name (Please type or print)     Title 
 
Electronically Signed          
Signature        Date 
 
 
Verification 
 
Department of Homeland Security Division 
 
USCIS Verification Division         
Name (Please type or print)     Title 
 
Electronically Signed          
Signature        Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

218

Item 9.



  
 

 
 

CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 292.675 RSMO. 
FOR ALL PUBLIC WORKS PROJECT CONTRACTS 

 
STATE OF       ) 
       ) ss. 
COUNTY OF      ) 
 
Before me, the undersigned Notary Public, in and for the County of      , 
State of    , personally appeared      (Name) 
who is       (Title) of        
(Name of company), (corporation), (partnership), (sole proprietorship), (limited liability 
company), and is authorized to make this affidavit, and after being duly sworn did 
depose and say: 
 

(1) that said company, pursuant to 292.675 RSMo., has provided at minimum a 
ten-hour Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) construction 
safety program for their on-site employees which includes a course in 
construction safety and health approved by OSHA or a similar program 
approved by the department which is at least as stringent as an approved 
OSHA program, unless such employees have previously completed the 
required program. 

 
The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 292.675 
RSMo. 
 
              
      Signature 
              
      Printed Name 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this    day of   ,   . 
 
              
      Notary Public 
 
My commission expires:     
 

219

Item 9.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 20-R-21 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, Awarding the Bid for the Purchase of Network Switching 
Hardware. 

Submitted By: Josh Jones, IS Director & Michael Sallee, IT Technician 

Date: June 16, 2020 
 

 

Issue Statement 

To award the bid for purchase of network switch hardware. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

As part of a multi-phase project to bring to date communication and internet technologies, the 
City of Republic solicited sealed bids for network switch hardware. General hardware 
specifications (Figure 1) were shared in an Invitation for Bid published in the Greene County 
Commonwealth on the 20th of May. Two bids were submitted, each containing Cisco Catalyst 
series network equipment, making them nearly identical in bid items. Table 1 below shows the 
cost comparison between contracts. 
 

Solution Submitted By Bid Total 

Cisco Catalyst C9200 Series Switches Pearson Kelly $    41,703.70 

Cisco Catalyst C9200 Series Switches CDW-G $      29,800.00 

 
Table 1: Bid Solution Summary 

 

Existing network infrastructure at the City averages nearly 10 years in age, with all equipment 
deemed “End of Life” by vendor and is no longer supported in hardware repair or security 
updates. Communications technology and internet availability have greatly advance since the 
purchase of this equipment, and the City’s steady adoption of new internet-based solutions 
have brought the speed limitations of the equipment to light, with employees seeing occasional 
performance impacts. Additionally, the upgrade becomes even more necessary, as the 
equipment plays a vital role in the operation of the new cloud hosted phone system recently 
approved by council on May 19th. The two items will be operating in conjunction at network 
speeds of up to 1 Gbps, which is nearly 10 times our current network operating speeds. This 
equipment also serves as the backbone for all city wireless networks and will provide a capable,  

220

Item 10.



 

 
 
 
reliable, and stable foundation to the future build out of said network. 
 

Recommended Action 

Given the strong similarity in bid content, with both meeting the requirements specified in the invitation 

for bid, price becomes the operating factor of the bid. Staff recommends award of the bid to CDW-G, 

who included the proper equipment at the most aggressive price. 

  

221

Item 10.



 

 

Figure 1: General Hardware Specifications as included in the IFB 
 

Bid Scope (Requirements) 

The City’s needs for networking equipment are specific and straightforward. Below are items 

requested for the bid. For reasoning behind these needs, see existing environment section. Please 

feel free to include any optional components as recommendation for an improved solution. 

- All switches include L2 features and routed access capabilities (L3 segmentation is not 

needed) 

- 48 port PoE switches (Quantity: 8) 
- 24 port PoE switches (Quantity: 6) 
- Support licensing for each device 
- Any optional items at bidder's discretion 

 

Existing Environment 

The City of Republic network includes 8 buildings which are connected to one another via fiber 

MPLS network provided by Liberty Connect Utilities. One building acts as hub for all sites, 

hosting all server and core network resources, fiber internet service, and phone system 

equipment. Each site connects to the fiber MPLS directly with an access switch and routes all 

traffic back to and through the hub site. The hub site includes a core switch stack, model Cisco 

Catalyst 6506-E. Existing access switches are also Cisco Catalyst devices and include the 

following models (quantity): 

 3560G-24PS (2) 
 6506-E (1) 
 3750-48PS (1) 
 3560V2-48PS (4) 
 WS-C3560-48PS (1) 
 3550-48 (1) 
 3750G-24PS (1) 
 3524 PWR XL (1) 
 C3750-24P (1) 
 C3560-24PS (1) 

 

Many of our current access switches contain L3 switching and routing capabilities. Current 

network topology and traffic pattern minimize the extent of benefit for these capabilities. 

Between this and general cost consideration, the City’s interest is in L2 switching equipment. 

Existing equipment includes PoE function and 10/100 mbps data transfer capabilities. 

222

Item 10.



RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-21 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-21
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AWARDING THE BID FOR NETWORK SWITCHING HARDWARE

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, ("City" or “Republic”) is a municipal 
corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, 
and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

WHEREAS, the City solicited sealed bids for network switching hardware (herein called 
the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, two vendors provided duly submitted bids for the Project and the lowest 
bidder was CDW-G, all bids being on file with the City Clerk; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to accept the lowest, responsible bid to govern the 
Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The submitted bid from CDW-G, attached hereto as “Attachment 1” and 
incorporated herein, is accepted for the Project at the unit prices shown thereon 
and not to exceed $29,800.00. 

Section 2. The City Administrator, or designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to take 
the necessary steps to execute this Resolution. 

Section 3. The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 

Section 4. This Resolution shall take effect after passage as provided by law. 

 PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Republic, Missouri, this 16th day of June 2020. 

Jeff Ussery, Mayor 
Attest: 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: ___________________________________, Scott Ison, City Attorney 

Final Passage and Vote:  ________________________________________________________ 

223

Item 10.



Attachment 1

224

Item 10.



225

Item 10.



226

Item 10.



227

Item 10.



228

Item 10.



229

Item 10.



230

Item 10.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 20-R-22 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, Approving the Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ended 
December 31, 2019. 

Submitted By: Debbie Parks, Finance Director and presented by Jon Cummings, CPA, 
CGMA/KPM CPAs & Advisors  

Date: June 10, 2020 
 

Issue Statement 

Then City of Republic is required to undergo an independent audit at least once per annum. 

 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

KPM CPAs, PC, conducted the audit of the City’s financial accounting and reporting practices for the 

fiscal year-ended December 31, 2019.  The auditor’s opinion is that the city’s financial statements 

present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, 

the business-type activities, and each major fund of the City of Republic, Missouri as of December 31, 

2019, and the respective changes in financial position, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year 

then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

The audit report is designed to report on the financial condition of the City and demonstrates the city’s 

financial accountability to its citizenry.  Included in the document is the “Independent Auditor’s Report”, 

otherwise known as the auditor’s opinion. The basic financial statements are presented through two 

views:  1) government-wide statements, which focus on the City of Republic as a whole entity, and 2) 

major individual funds, through the presentation of fund financial statements.  This report also includes 

the Management Discussion & Analysis, which provides an extensive overview of the accompanying 

financial statements.   

In addition to the Financial Statement Audit, the fiscal year 2019 qualified for a Single Audit.  The City 

received more than $750,000 in federal grant funds and triggered the Single Audit.  The two major 

projects that were audited included the Oakwood/Hines Intersection trough the Highway Planning and 

Construction Grant and the Owen Park Trail through the Recreational Trails Program Grant. The Single 

Audit did not have any material deficiencies and received an unmodified opinion. 

Recommended Action 

City Staff recommends that City Council approve the audit report for the fiscal year-ended December 31, 

2019, as presented. 

231

Item 11.



RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-22 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-22
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
APPROVING THE AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, ("City" or “Republic”) is a municipal 
corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, 
and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

WHEREAS, the City has the requirement for an annual audit per the City Charter; and 

WHEREAS, the City has selected the independent audit firm of KPM CPAs, PC, to 
perform the audit; and 

WHEREAS, KPM CPAs, PC, has completed the audit for the year January 1, 2019, through 
December 31, 2019.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The audit report as presented by the certified public accounting firm of KPM 
CPAs, PC, for the year January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2019, is 
approved and accepted. 

Section 2. The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 

Section 3. This Resolution shall take effect after passage as provided by law. 

 PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Republic, Missouri, this 16th day of June 2020. 

Jeff Ussery, Mayor
Attest: 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: ___________________________________, Scott Ison, City Attorney 

Final Passage and Vote:  ________________________________________________________ 

232

Item 11.


	Top
	1.	Minutes
	City Council Meeting Minutes Document 6-2-20 Council

	2.	Vendor List
	2020 Vendor Audit Reports

	3.	UB adjustments
	Missed Billing Adjustments

	4.	2nd Reading of Judge term of office
	2020-05-19 - Exhibit - Judge term of office
	2020-06-02 - Ordinance - Judge term of office PACKET

	5.	election results
	ITEM-Staff-9de9b1f4f5134d68a80ec7a583cc721c (2)
	2020-06-16 - Resolution - Election Results PACKET
	Attachment B
	Attachment A

	6.	REZN 20-004 127 East Mill (R1-M to R-2)
	REZN 20-004 Council Staff Report
	2020-06-16 - Ordinance - Rezone - 127 E Mill PACKET
	REZN 20-004 FLU Map
	REZN 20-004 Vicinity Map
	REZN 20-004 Zoning Map
	&#39;R-2&#39; Two-Family Residential District Regulations
	Uhrig Petition
	Taylor Petition
	Buffer Map with Parcels List

	7.	REZN 20-005 616 North Phelps (R1-M to R1-H)
	REZN 20-005 Council Staff Report
	2020-06-16 - Ordinance - Rezone - 616 North Phelps. PACKETpdf
	REZN 20-005 Vicinity Map
	REZN 20-005 FLU Map
	REZN 20-005 Zoning Map
	&#39;R1-H&#39; High Density Single-Family Residential District

	8.	Award of Kennels and Fencing at Animal Control Facility
	Exhibit for Kennel and Fencing Award
	2020-06-16 - Resolution - Bid acceptance animal shelter fencing. PACKETpdf
	Attachment 1
	Attachment 2

	9.	Award of Observation Pens bid at animal control facility
	Exhibit for Observation Pens Award
	2020-06-16 - Resolution - Bid acceptance animal shelter cages PACKET
	Attachment 1
	Attachment 2

	10.	Network Switch Hardware
	Network Switch Hardware Exhibit 06092020
	2020-06-16 - Resolution - Network switches PACKET
	Attachment 1

	11.	2019 Fiscal Audit
	2019 Audit Exhibit
	2020-06-16 - Resolution - Audit PACKET

	Bottom

